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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

BEFORE THE 

TEXAS STATE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

HOUSE SELECT COMMITTEE ON IMPEACHMENT 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

IN THE MATTER OF 
HOUSE SIMPLE RESOLUTION NO. 161 
JUDGE 0. P. CARRILLO 

PUBLIC HEARING 

BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tueaday, the 20th day 

of Ma), 1975, beginning at 8:00 o'clock p.m., at the Old 

Supreme, Court Room, State Capitol Building, Austin, Texas, 

the above-entitled matter came on for hearing before the 

HOUSE SELECT COMMITTEE ON IMPEACHMENT, the HONORABLE L. 

DeW~tt Hale, Chairman, presiding, and the following pro-

ceedings were reported by Hickman Reporting Service, 504 

Travis Building, 205 West 9th Street, Austin, Texas 78701. 
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PROCEEDINGS 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Committee will please 

The Clerk will call the role. 

THE CLERK Mr. Maloney? 

MR. MALONEY: Present 

THE CLERK: Mr. Chavez? 

MRe CHAVEZ: Present 

THE CLERK: Mr. Donaldson? 

(No response.) 

THE CLERK: Mr. Kaster? 

MR. KASTER.: Here. 

THE CLERK: Mr. Laney? 

MR. LANEYs 'Here. 

THE CLERK: Mr. Nabers? 

MR. NAMBERS: Here. 

THE CLERK: Ms. Weddington? 

MS. WEDDINGTON: Here. 

THE CLERK: Mr. Slackz 

(NO response.) 

THE CLERKs Mr. Thompson? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: There is a quorum present. 

24 This Committee is convened pursuant to House 

25 Simple Resolution Number 167, vhtch was adopted by the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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"BE. IT RESOLVEO by the. House of RepresentA·~ 

tives of the 64th T~egielature, that there is 

hereby created a $elect committee of the House 

of Representatives composed of 11 members ap-

pointed by the Speaker, the chairman and vice-

chairman thereof to be appointed bv the Sneaker, 

to consider Rouse Sim~le Resolution No. 161 gnd 

investigate charges brought against 0. P. Carrillo, 

and renort back to .the Rouse its recommendations 

on whether presenting to the Senate of Texas a 

bill of impeachment against 0. P. Carrillo is in 

order; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the committee is authorized 

to meet at the ~all of the chairman, meet in 

executive ses.st .. on when ordered by the committee, 

and dpend funds for necessary expenses and em-

Qloymttat of -personnel as ap~roved by the Com-

eittee on House Administration; ~nd, be it further 

aRSOLVED, that the committee shall have all 

powers aranted .to eoemlttees of the Rouse by 

Arttele 5962, Revised Civil Statutes of Texas, 

192S, the Lesi•lati.ve lteoraaniaation Act of 1961, 

and the Rules of the House of Representatives." 

we•re asttetabled this evenitJ.I under authority 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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of House Simple Resolution 167 to consider and a~t upon 

House Simple Re~olutton 161, requeAting that im~enchment 

charges be rreferred ag~lnst the Honorable 0. P. CArrillo, 

Judge of the 229th JudtciBl District of the StAtA of 

Texas. 

The Authority of this Committee to act uoon 

the Resolution committed to us is contained in Article 15~ 

Section 1, of the Constitution of Texas, which Provides 

that the power of impeachment shall be vested in the 

House of Representatives. 

The Constitutional authority is made more pre-

else and certain procedures are prescribed in Article 

5961, and the following articles, Vernon's Annotated 

Civil Statutes of the State of Texas. 

The prooosition before us imposes upon this 

16 committee a heavy responsibility and a solemn duty. For 

17 more than a eentury and a half, Texas has been blessed 

18 with many great men serving in the judicial branch of our 

19 government. These men have maintained high standards 

M of courage, honesty. and integrity. We are all dedicate~ 

21 to the ~rotectlon of the honor of the judicial branch of 

22 government. To do this, we must lenve no Rtone unturned 

23 

24 

in our efforts to uncover any misconduct that would tar-

nisb the re9utation of the Judiciary and simultaneously 

we must strive to protect the innocent from any charges 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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which are not well found~d in fact. 

The perimeters of the task before us have been 

well defined by the Supreme Court of Texas in a lanrlmark 

, 
~ad~ox, 236 S.W. 888, wherein the court stated in part 

as follows: 
l 

"The sole function of the House and Senate 

is not to compose 'the Legislature,' and to act 

together in the making of laws. Each, in the 

plainest language, is given separate olenary po~er 

and jurisdiction ln relation to matters of im~ 

~eaehment: The House the power to 'impeach,' 

tha~ is, to p~efer charges; the Senate the oower 

to 'try' thoae charges. These powers are essen-

tially judicial in their nature. Their proper 

exercise does not, in the remotest degree, in-

volve any legislative function. 

tn the matter of t.mpeachment the House a,ete 

somewhat ,in the capacity of a grand jury. It -
investigates, bears witnesses, and determines 

whether or not there is Rufficient ground to 

justify the presentment of charges, and, if so, 

it adopts 81'PrOprta.t .. articles and prefers them 

before the Senate. In doing these things, the 

House ls not 'legislating,' nor is lt conducting 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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an investigation i.n order that it may be i.n 

better ?Osition to legislate. It is inveRtigating 

facttt in order that it may determine whether 

one of the people's servants has done an official 

wrong worthy of im~eachment under the princir1e~ 

and practices obt3ining in such cases, and, if 

eo, to ,.,resent the matter for trial before the 

constituted tribunal. All of this is judicial in 

eharacter. 

The same is true of the Senate. except it~ 

~owers are so clearly judicial a~ to make argument 

on the point almost superfluous. 'Impeachment,' 

says the Constitution, shall be •tried' by the 

Senate. During the trial the Senate sites •as 

a court of imt)eachment,• and at its conclusion 

renders 8 'judgment.• Obv.Lously, s body author-

{zed to sit as a 'court' to 'try' charges pre-

ferred b~fore it, that is, to hear the evidence 

and declare the law and to render 'judgment,' oos-

sesses judicial power, and in its exercise acts 

as a court. The Senate sitting in an impeachment 

trial is just a~ truly a court as is thlg court. 

Its jurisdiction is very limited, but 8Ucb as it 

has is of the highest. It is original, exclusive, 

and final. Within the scope of lts constitutional 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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That w.gs the Stmrame Court i.n .!':!rg_u_~_o_n v~:. 

-~ Maddox. 

The Supreme Court ha~ ~eflned the function of 

this committee a~ judicial in character rather th8n 
I 

legislative. Our responsibility i~ neither that of 

7 ~rosecutor or jury. Our sole function is to conduct an 

8 investigation to determine whether or not there are suf-

9 ficient grounds to justify the presentment of chnrges, 

JO and if so, to adopt appropriate articles of im~eachment 

II and recommend such articles for the consideration of the 

12 Bouse of ReY>resentatives. J 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

! think each member of this committee is fully I 
eogni~ant of the gravity of the chargee which we consider. 

I am confident that each of you will approach the charges 

before .us with a. completely open mind, dedie~tted to the 

development of facts and firm in the conviction that any 

decision tnade by this committee wilt be a.mply supported 

by the evidence which we now begin to hear. 

As your chairman, 1 assure you that I will 

devote my best abilities to insure that the hearings of 

this committee are cortducted tn a. fair and impa.rtta.l 

aanner and that our deliberations will reflect credit 

u~on each member of the committee and upon the House of 

I 

25 l.e~resentatives for whom we now act. The Chair urges 
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that we move ext>editiously, yet deliberately, ;;Y'i.th .:1ue 

regard for the rights and pri~ileges of all who ~re tn-

vo1ved in this oroceeding. The Chair seeks advice and 

counsel from each of you and requests your full coopers-

tion and dedicated efforts to the end that our work oro~-

uet will be one whlch'will do justice to all concerned. 
I 

Hpw~ver un?leasant the task may be, the Chair 
I ' 

will do his duty as he sees it. ! know that each.of you 

will do tikewise. The people of Texas can expect no more; 

•e of this committee should offer no less. May we pro-
, 

ceed in such a way that history will look favorably upon 

our efforts as we seek to fulflUour obligations under 

the Constitution and laws of Texatt .-

Pursuant to the authority vested in me by the 

Bouse Simple Resolution 167 and appointment by the Speake 

as Chairman of this Comtllittee, on Ma.y 19, 197S, I sent 

the following telegram, which I would like to read into 

tbe record at this time: 

"Honorable o. P. Carrillo. District Judge, 

County Courthouse, San Diego. Texas. 

The House Select Committee on Im9eaehment 

wilt meet in the State Ca~itol at 8:00 p.m. on 

Tuesday, May 20 to consider H.S.R. No. 161 by 

Canales, seeking your impea.chm.ent from the. 

office of District Judge. Daily meeting~ ' 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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thereafter ere contemplate~ until the in1uiry is 

completed. You are invited to be present in 

person or by attorney; however, cross-examination 

of witnesses will not be oermitted, since this 

is only an investigation and not a prosecution. 

Any evidence you care to present bearing on the 

inqu~ry will be welcome. The principal function ,. . 

of this committee is to develor> fa.c'ts and your 

assistance in this endeavor will be aporeci.sted." 

And signed by me, L. DeWitt Hale. as Chairman of the com-

mittee. 

The Chair is advised that Judge Carrillo is 

here, and we're delighted to have you here, Judge, t.o 

~artieipate in this proceeding. 

JUDGE CARRILLO: Tha.nk you very much. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Cha.ir lays before the 

eommittee at this time as the pending business of this 

Committee House Simple Resolution Number 161 by Cans.les, 

and recognizes the author of that resolution, Reoresent~-

tive Terry Canales. 

MR. CANALES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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PRESENTATION BY T~E AUTHOR 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, members of the 

Committee on Im!'eachment, I'd like to thank you for the 

time that you will contribute to this Committee as T know 

you •re on very many other important matters that are 

i pending presently in these late hours of the 64th Legis-

s lative Session. However, I believe the matter at hand 

9 is of s~ffieient gravity that I believe the time dedi-

10 eated or devoted to it will well merit the consequence. 

11 Tonight it is my intention, after having met 

12 'Efith substantial amounts of witnesses and having put 

13 sufficient research in this to finally decide to intro-

14 duce Rouse Simple Reso\utton 1&1, and I hope that I will 

15 not prove to have been, not reflecting on Judge Carrillo, 

16 but I hope that the matter will not prove to be one that 

17 was introduced as a matter of haste. 

18 Tonight I will introduce several witnesses, or 

19 at least several witnesses are present, available to the 

20 Committee. The first one on the agenda will be a Mr. 

21 Cleofas Gonzalez, a former employee of a partnership 

22 in whieh Mr. 0. P. Carrillo and his brother, Commissioner 

23 Ramtro Carrillo, were engaged in in Benavides, Texas, in 

24 

25 

the county of Duval. 

It is my intention to try to present a brief 

U-----------------------------------------~---------------------
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2 

r~ •yno:S:s ~f 'the evideDU which each wttoo .. vl.l1 testify 

II to, so tl\st the Cotamittee will have a background, and so 

3 ll the bearing can be conducted as expeditiously as possible 
i 

4 i because I realize that it: is--well, with the colorful and 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

rich htetory of Duval County, it is very possible to go 

off on tangents. 

Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez, •a I mentioned earlier. 

wa• a foreer employee of the pat:'tnershtp between Judfle o. 

P. Carrillo and hie brother, which was operated under 

the IUUUG I believe. acd the wt.tntles will correct me if 

I'm alctaken, of the Farm end Ranch Store.. This is 

loeatGd in Benavides, Tenns .. end it 1• part .and parcel 

of the County Warehouse. The witness will explain to 

you that tl\e Couaty Warohouee aa4 the Farra ad R.anch Store 

are all part and parcel of tbo •••• butldlas and coa.rplex. 

M~o Cleofaa Goftsalez began ~rk witb this part• 

naro\lp f.n the early 1960'o, and thAt nome year. or ap• 

protti&llltely nt that time. this Perm and R.aftcb Store was 

About 1965,--ca4 having couneeled utth this 

tPitacoo. bo ta<ltettted to toe .epprostbaately in that year, 

thGttO ~GO c.-oate4 an eot:tt', OJ." at 1caatlt: a 

ODtit~ cG11ed 

oadoS!'otarultflQ 

· . ths 0t1aor • Qftd 

the Zertuoht!t Geael'tll St.ore .. 

tb«lt at that ttmo Mr. Beet or: 

opprosil8tltoly a year: later, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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~ was taken into the Army, whether voluntarily or unvolun- I 
l 

tartly is not the question. I 

This store, the witness will testify, never 
I 

had any mercha.ndise. It was a fictitious entity and neve~ 

used for any other purpose other than as a subterfuge, 

dxeept for possibly on one occasion, ia which Christmas 

presents were bought 1 I think. 

The history will show that Mr. 0. P. Carrillo, 

tho Judae, the Honorable Judge here, was at that time, 

though not serving on the bench, I believe, a member of 

the school board of the Benavides Independent School Dis-

trlct. 

Mr. Gonzalez. Cleofas Gonzalez, who will be 

your first wi~ness, will iadieate and testify before this 

Committee that when he was working at the Farm and Ranch 

Store the Honorable 0. P. Carrillo told him that they 

couldn't sell merchandise to any of the governmental 

agencies in this area, which included the Benavides 

Independent School District, the County, the Water Dis­

trict, and the City, because of the permeation of the 

local governmental agencies with members of the Judge•s 

family. I believe that the Honorable Jud&e Carrillo was 

I 
I 

i 
i 

23 at that time on the School Bo crd. His brother was, if 

24. t am not mistaken, a City Alderman, and his Daddy was 

25 serving on the Water District. The reason being that they: 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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couldn't purchase or sell merchandise to the county was 

because of the possible conflict of interest because of 

the family serving in the executive positions of these 

different governmental agencies. 

To circumvent the prohibition or the possible 

conflict of interest, Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez was brought 

an invoice register with instructions by the Judge o. P. 

Carrillo to make billings that were merchandise sold 

throush the Zertuche Store--! mean, through the--excuse 

me--through the Farm and Ranch Store. He have to realize 

that there are going to be two entities we're dealing 

12 with: one which did not exist, only on paper. and the 

13 other one, vhieh was in fact a Farm and Ranch Store owned 

14 and operated by the Honorable o. P. Carrillo and his 

15 brother, later County Commissioner Ramiro Carrillo. 

16 He was told that any purchases made by govern-

17 mental agencies to avoid a conflict of interest should, 

1s when they were made, be written out on an invoice, not fo 

19 the Farm and Ranch Store where the purchase was actually 

20 made, but for Zertuche General Store. Merchandise was 

21 bought tbeli through the Farm a:1d Ranch Supply, but: in-

22 voices were drawn on the Zertuche General Store. Money 

23 

24 

25 

was d-eposited to the Zertuche General Store pursuant to 

-the invoices and people who were billed, and Mr. Gonzalez 

was directed to fill out, after having deposited these 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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16 

checks in the account of the Zertuche General Store, he 

was instructed to draw out on pre-signed checks--excuse 

me--whatever amounts had been purchased from--it is con-

fusing--from th&--actually from the Farm and Ranch Store, 

but invoiced through the Zertuche General Store--he we.s 

iaat.rueted to take this amount which had been paid to 

this paper entity and redeposit i.t in the Farm and Ranch 

Store, all amounts not actually having gone into this 

aeC:OUOt 1 Some being drawn OUt in easb and SOQle of the 

money, I think, possibly being left to pay personal bills 

of the family involved. 
I 

12 Additionally, to the sale of merchandise, which I 

13 

14 

15 

16 

wee sold to the counties, in moet instances before in-

voices were prepared, at the end .of the months, Mr. 

Cleofcs Goazalez, your first witness here, ~as told to 

tavoiee the county or the different governmental agencies 

11 for tractor rentals. It is questionable, and I'll let 

zs the witness testify as to whether there actually were 

19 tractor rentals or not. The county, or whichever govern-

20 aen.tal entity.was involved, was invoiced for this rental. 

21 and the money was also deposited to Zertuche General 

I 
I 
' 1 

I 22 

23 

Store. but I believe as a general rule this money never J 
Farm and Raile wa•s--wwell, from there it went back into the 

24 

25 

Store, the actual eQtlty, but from there it was not 

deposited, or it took a different trail from the money 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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\ 

that was actually used, or taken as receipts for mer-

chandise distributed. 

It is the indication to your Speaker that the 

checks on the Farm and Ranch Store, the actual entity, 

were then made, some to Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers, 

which it has been brought to my attention is a trust 

for the beneficiaries being the children of D. c. Chapa 

and his grandchildren, and among these the Judge's Daddy 

9 is Mr. D. C. Chapa. There is a difference in l~st names. 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

At the time that all of these transactions were 

taking place, it has been brought to my attention that 

Mr. A. Zertuche was away at school. He was never present ) 
I 

at the time that all these transactions were taking place.! 
I 
I I have presented and put on the members of the 1 

committee's desks some figures there which are indicative 

of some of the invoices that were sent to the county 

during the time that this Zertuche General Store and pur-

portedly existed. I have here, in this folder, for the 

Committee's review. a record of tbe Benavides Independent 

School District invoices, Which were in faet--well, I'll 

let the Committee look through them. And it has the I 
listing of all the different eheeks vhieh were issued I 
and a record W48 kept, and at the time that all of tbese--l 

this begins in January 14th of 1970 and it has continued 

to the present.as info't'1lW1tion has been brought to me, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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18 

through this particular subterfuge, or another one of 

similar import. 

I will pre•ent this to the Committee for your 

individual review. It is pretty voluminous. If the 

Chairman feels that it would merit your indi•idual at* 

tentlon, he c~n ask the Clerk to prepare eoptes for each 

one of the members.. I've taken the time to uaderline 

s all of the aeeounts or the ebeck numbers, ete.t that have 

9 been paid to the Zertuche General Store. Again, which 

to never existed except for on paper. And we have a 

ll letter from the Comptroller certifying tbe fact that this 
I 

12 store ~es never registered or existed as far as the State I 

13 I 

I 
14 CHAIRMAN HALE1 Mr. Canales, let the Chair\ 

interrupt you just a minute. Ms. Wedding and Mr. Chavez 1 ~~ 

16 say they dtdn 1 t get copies. Did you have enough for 

t7 everyoae? 

18 MR. CANALES: I did give, I think. at 

19 least 1! copies to the Sergeant. I'm not sure lfhat 

20 might have happened to them. I'm sorry. l thought that 

21 they had st vett evet'Ybody one. 

22 

23 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right. That's fine. 

MR. CANALES: This is the only copy 1 

24 have of this. As you see, it is qutte voluminous, and 

25 if ybu wiab, you ean revt•w it now during the testimony, 
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11 

12 
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14 
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16 
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20 
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22 

23 

24 

25 

ll) 

if it appears to be bori~g, or you can take it home and 

review it. It is the records of the Benavides Independen9 

School District up to and including August 30th of 1973. 

Of course, at that time, Mr. o. P. Catrillo was no longer i 

on the Board. However, his father, D. C. Chapa and his 

nephew, I believe, a Mr. Rojelio Guajardo were serving 

on the Board, if I'm not mistaken. 

However, the record speaks for itself, and if 

the Chairman p~rmlts. I'll pl:'esent it to the Committee 

here for their review. 

It is my understanding that during this whole 
I 

time, or at least for the majority of the time in which I 

these transactions were actually taking place, Mr. Cleofasl 
I 
' Gonzalez, as his testimony will indicate~ was on the oay- ' 

roll of the County of Duval, when in fact h s chores or 

his actual duties were that of a clerk of the Zertuche 

General Store which never existed and of the Farm and 

Ranch Store, of which Mr. 0. P. Carrillo and his brother 

were proprietors. 

Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez will testify that he was 

the only person to issue invoices from the Zertuche 

General Stare, .to his knowledge, and that he knows of no 

body else who worked there, again supporting the proposi-

tion that it did not exist. 

It is my understanding that after the money · 
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bad been deposited, paid to the Zertuche General Store~ 

the subterfuge which was used to circumvent a conflict 

of interest, the money was then deposited in the F~trm and 

Ranch Store, and from there. Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez will 

testify that sometimes checks were issued to these dif-

ferent persons and sometimes cash was issued to Mr. o. P. 

Carrillo ia person and sometimes to his brother, Ram.iro, 
-

·' ~~-:taeitcat.ed that he would take it and deliver it to 

Mr. o. P. C8rr111o. 
I 

Mr. Goft8alea was also the purchasing agent, and ! 

I ta fact the actual manager of the Farm and Ranch Store 

at the time that all of this was transpiring •. This is 

cola; to be a very complicated matter to explain, but at 

the same ttme that tb1s store vas operating, the front 

part of what could be consid•red the County Precinct 

Warehouse--t•m not sure if all of the.mempers here of the 

Coe~ittee are familiar with the way the precincts work, 

but they senerally h~ve warehou&es for- each of the pre-

19 ct.a~t·o. Well, at this place whezoe the Farm and Ranch 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Store was located the~o was also located the County ~are~ 

hou••• aad whethesr inadvertently or not. as the Committee 

should decide, merehatadises and inventories of the county 

and of the store were comingled in a warehoutJe which was 

designed or intended to be kept and used for the purposes 

of storing county laventory. 
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It is the witness' lntenc to testify that Ro~c-

times--and this ia going to be difficult to understand-,-

thot the s'tore, through one of its proprietors, would 

indtcatG to him that tbey were to draw an invoice on the 
i 

uaercb,cndise vhieh wa.a had, or being kept at this f'&rtieu ... ' 

lar store. when ho knew that the merchandise had not been , 

purchased and was not p:resaat. at least in the form of 

8 Mt:cbandiee belonaina to the store itself. It vas not 

9 preseat a,t the pr4uaisea. There was merchandise belong-

IO ing to the eouaty on tho premises.. That the management 

II 

J 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

of this particula~ Farm and Ranch Store would tell Mr. 

Cteofo.s 
I 

Gonzalez to draw out aa invoice--again oc Zertucb~ 

Ceaettal Storo,. beeeuoe it: ttJas being sold to a county 

entity • or a governmeatal enttry··-tut w4!ua told to draw out 

an lnvoiee to bi11 the county for this matevtal, which in 

fact already beloased to the eouuty and was again being 

sold to tho county wbeo they came up to pick it up for 

use. 

Additionally, the witness has iildtcated t:bat he 

wtll teatlfy that the material oa occaslone vasa involved 

aad not delivered. 

The witnese will also indicate that eouDty 

metett'lal aot only was resold to the county• but indiffer­

ently sold to the pablt.c, should the occasion artae and 

a cliont f~ the general public should coae i.a requeatin 
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either posts. cement, nails, barbed wire, ett., whatever 

merchandise the county might have had on hand at the par-

t1cular time. 

Mr. Gonzalet will testify to this in detail, 
I 

5 II if the Com.mi t tee should demand. It i~ my· understand i.ng 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

that his employment ended with this particular firm,--! 

say "vith the firm"; he was being paid by the county, the 

county of Duval,-ended approximately May, 1974. 

Additionally, Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez will indi-
". 

eate to this CotlUDittee that there were very severe im-

proprieties being conducted with a Food Stamp program, or 

something similar to this. It is my understanding that 

Judge o. P. Carrillo was usina this governmental subsidy 

to the impoverished people to asatat them in buying food. 

to purchase food for his own use. 

tt has also been my understanding that county 

vehicles, tractors, trailers, trucks and gasoline were 

employed not only for ranch purposes, for delivering 

grain thot bad been hervested at the ranch of 0. P. Carrt lot 

but for other purpooee, to t~tansport his fan machinery, 

coterplllars, etc. In fact, I believe Mr. Cleofas Gon ... 

zolea ~11 tea~ify to the effect that there is prGsently 

beiag r:epm1t:ed at the county preetnet off:tee a D-8 eater- . 

•illar ~h1ch te~esently leased to the Judge o. P. CarrilJo. 

l hope I hGV"e briefly anaar1zed everything the l 
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7 

8 
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10 
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12 

J3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

24 

25 

witness will ?resent as best he can--and I hope you will 

be somewhat lenient with him to the extent that he is i 
! 

aot as well--or is not as proficient in English as I o.m, i 

\ ., 
i 

Aa you see, I stutter very well. 

And at this time I will present, for your 

examination, Mr. Cleofas Gonzales. 

With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I will re-

quest that the witness be permitted to sit down during 

testimocy. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: That will be perfectly all 

right. 

Do you intend to assist him by questions, Mr. 

Canales, or is he just going to make a statement? 

MR. CANALES: It is not my intent, Your 

Ronor,--Mr. Chairman, to interrupt the Committee questions. . I 

unless I feel that Mr. Gonzales is being confused by some 

question and requtres some explanation, which I will re­

quest the Chair's permission. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Is he prepared to make a 

statement first before be yields to questions? I pre-

sume he has some testimony? 

MR. CANALES: I think he will make a brief 

statement or try to summarize as best he can the events 

which I have tried to sum.arize for the Committee's bene-

fit, and allow the Committee at that time to go in and 
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.pick at the particulars, if you so desire. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: tvell, it occurs to me ,.,e 

would need testimony as to the principal events fir$t, 

other than your preliminary summary, and it occurs to 

me the witness should be prepared to make some type of 

statement, either--that's why I asked if you were going 

to ask him questions. 

MR. CANALES: The witness will make a 

9 statement. Mr. Chairman. I don•t know bow detailed the 

10 Committee would like to be. I decided, or at least I 

11 thought it would be best to allow the witness to make a 

12 general statement, trying to include as best possible. 

13 all of the events, but as you will realize, thu took 

I4 place over tt period of 13 or 14 years, and it will be 

15 difficult for b.im to iaclude--atad it would be unwieldy-· 

16 for the Courmittee to try to listen to--testimony covering 

I7 a perio~ of 13 or 14 yearo in detail. We are interested. 

rs ' I bell$ve. not in the aeeual business. transactions whieh 

19 at.ght have been eo.nducted by the store, but more the ones 

20 thct td.ght prove to be tn violation of eertaf.a penal c.ode 

21 artieles aad c·ode canons of etbiea mtich the State Bar 

22 eight hcve late'tplreted o~ set forth for the judtct•ry, 

23 a act 9et not. 

24 1 aua available for questions to the CoUlmittee 

25 nt thle ti•o, if they have oay'thing they would like to 
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18 

19 

20 
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22 
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24 

25 

25 

clear up before I allow Mr. Gonzalez to take the floor. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right. Are t.her~~ 

questions uf Mr. Canales? Mr. Maloney? 

MR. MALONEY: Mr. Chairman, it seems that 

Mr. Canales, unless he has some testimony to offer of his 

own knowledge, anything he says would be of no benefit 

to the Committee. 

C'RAI BMAN HAJ..E: I think that's true. i 
I 
I 

CANALES: That is feeling also, 
l 

MR. my I 
I 
I 

Mr. Chairman. It was just my intent summarize the 
I to I 
I 
I 

testimony that would be given to you, so that the Committek 

would know in which manner to cross examine, so to speak, 

the witness, and would not go off on tangents which might 

involve hearsay on his part. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Well, I know tt•s going to 

be extremely difficult to avoid going off on these tangent • 

but the Chair is going to'do the best I can to try to con-

fine everything to the perimeters of the inquiry with whic 

we are charged. And the question was raised a moment ago 

by one of the members of the Committee as to how far back 

ve should go on this. Could you tell the Chair, when did 

Judge Carrillo become District Judge? 

MR. CANALES: If I am not mistaken, it 

was in the neighborhood of 1969 or 1970. These records 

and the testimony will cover the period from the time 
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tb.&t be left the posi.ti.on that he held with the School 

Board l!lDd osaumed the bench as a District .Judge up until 

the relatt•ely recent present, unttl l believe NovEJmher 

of • 74. 

CliAtiMAN BALE: Do you haV'e any furthe!' 

6 queetions, Mr. Maloney? 

7 

8 

MR. MALONEY: Wo further questions. 

.CBAtRM.A5 HALE: Mt'. Slack, do you have 

9 any qu.turtiorut of Mr. Caaales? 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

Ma. SLAClt: No questions. 

CRAlDMAN KALE: Mr. Hendrick$? 

tm. R!MDR.lCU: M~. Canalea 1 do you bave I 
I 
I 

MB. CANALES: I 
I bave no personal knouledge I 

of tho t'IC'&taooetiouo thot took pta.c:e.. 1 

mt. llmft>liltCJUt 'fbat 0 s all. 

CJIAtiMAtf IIAU: M2'. tfabers? 

D. nAIElUh DJo. 

Clltlt~ Ul.Bt ~. Kaster? 

MI.. I(ASTii\: Y~o • 

t;2tt.. CQaolco • ehto c~ry ,_..t,:e talkiac obout • 

gotee eo P1r0QQ&1Co but I tllHUlU )'OU juot ta1hod about vluat 

etllo t:$ttaaoo to cotag to calk about? 
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MR. CANALES: I would like to present a 

2 summary if the Comt~tittee will' permit, of each individual 

3 I witness befora they are presented, so that the Committee 

.t will know what he itJ speaking about. The first--well, 

5 11 Mr. Gol\sutle.c ~ill cover the impropri.eti.es which I have 
, I 

6 tried to explain or bring out in my summary~ which has 
l 

1 just been presented. 

s There. are other--there will be other testimony 

9 preseated which will deal with official misconduct, not 

10 misappropriation of county funds or whatever charges 

z 1 that might be involved. 

12 MR. ASTER: !·was just hopeful that you 

13 were going to give us a oapsu1e of what your case you're 

14 going to present here in summary, so that myself, not 

15 being a lawyer, I could know what to b.;;;; expecting. Now, 

t6 all I know is about wh~t this oae witness, and I don't 

17 know how it fits into the scheme. 

18 MR. CANALES: Mr. Kaster, I sometimes clai 

19 to be a lawyer, but I am not a prosecutor so I'm not very 

20 good at summarizing or presenting a criminal case. It 

21 'tfill be the determination of the Committee to determine 

22 from the testimony -I 1 d like to ask the Chair before 1 

23 finish answering your question wh•ther the Chair has en-

24 gaged counsel for the Committee? 

25 CHAIRMAN HALE: No, sir. No counsel has 
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been engaged. Mr. Bob Johnson is sitting in as counsel 

for the CoiDUlittee at the request of the Committee, tea ... 

porarily at least. 

MR. CANALES: Ae counee-"'. for the Commit. tee 

or as parliamentarian for the Committee? 

CHAIRMAN HALF.: Well, in whatever capacity 

ue want to use him, Mr. Canales. 

MR. CANALES; Thank you. 

MR. CASTOlt Then, to finish. I'm confused 

about what--November' '74 has to do. You said that Judge cat-

'l'illo became judae I. a .,,. la he still judge now? 

MR. CANALES: Yes, he.is presosu: ly sit tics 

on tbo benoh. Jud~~ Ca~rlllo to presently under indict• 

meat. I bcvo ono of the coemlttco elerks presently copy• 

iaa o~ :oroutag the ohargoo which havo been file4 agataet 

Judgo Cor~t1lo.lo tho Federal Dletrlct Court foT tho 

So~tbora District of Tenao, tho Corpus Christi Divlston •. 

Thowo tl'I'G oovorlll counts 0 1 doa 1 t kacm:axac:tly how many 

thoc o.ro pJtooont17 poadlag. c~taina1 oouft .. ts iavolvlag 

vlolotloao of the lacOtae tau or the ln.teraa.l aeveaue code. 

opoelftcolly ·bose4 oa tllo teotlaoay that Hr, e;t.~~~-s 

CJoaualoi t3ill preaont to tbto Cotmilittoe. The teottuny 

that Utr. Goaooloo rill pro.oeD.t oad poostbly o Mr. Cou1llll 

~111 4&a1 O'.t"41rcot itoolf to tb~ polats which ere deQlt 

't1ith ia tko ettlotaol ladlcttaOat. TllorG are other ceoes 
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I of What I Would consider to be official oppression or 
I 

2 ! judicial oppression and misconduct which will be presented 

3 subsequent to this at the Committee's leisure. Thank you~ 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

I 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Mr. Chatrra-.0:. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Mr. Donaldson. 

MR. DONALDSON: Pass. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney. 

MR. LAMEY: Pass. 

CHAIRMAN !:tALE: Ma. Thompson. 

MS. THOMPSON: Pass. 

.CHAIRMAN BALE: Ms. Weddington. 

MS. WEDDINGTON: No, sir. 

CHAilUIAN HALE: Mr. Chavez. 

MR. CHAVEZ: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Canales, it it your intention to have the j 
Co.aittee consider any transaction that the Judge might 

hcve been involved in prior to the time that he took offie ? 

MR.. CANALES: I think a portion of it, Mr. 

19 Cheves, will be included, howeve~ the majority of it will 

20 be from 1970 forward, including all of the years in which 

21 he hoc served on the beach. Yes. 

22 MR. CHAVEZ: So that in the even~ 

23 Mk. CANALES: If you'll excuse me. if tee-

24 ttmoay is offered which i&--eovers a period prior to his 

25 Q&Guaption of the bench, although I believe it is 
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pertinent, it is designed on my part: or on the part of the 
I 

2 l1witness not for any other purpose but to show a general 

3 I trend or modus operandi, 1£ nothing else, if I can use 

4 jj that. t:erm, 

5 1 MR. CHAVEZ: Some of these actions, I pre-

6 sume, from what you told us in your statement were con-

i tinuias act~ continuing transaction~ 
i 
I 

8 MR. CANALES: I 
They have continued up unti 1 I 

9 now. Yes. This witness cannot testify to matters con-
I 

10 1974 J 

11 because he left that employment at that time. He can 

12 teotify to other matters which are in his personal ex-

13 perience that hnve occurred there in the community. It 

14 is Q aaell co1DIIl\Ultty, and it ia consequently subject to 

15 tho Ge~utiny of all of the individuals around there be" 

16 cause of the compactness of its size 11 and everybody knows 

17 everybody elso.;~ o buaiottss. 

18 MR. CHAVEZ: You mention two-- two brothers 

19 involved in thi.--

20 MR. CANALES; Well. I'm hesitant to involve 

21 ~be other brother because he's o.ot 1.D.Volved, and I apolo• 

22 giae to the Coeai.ttee, but it deals with a partnership 

23 la ~'l.oh he 'tfas a pa-rt:icip&llt and c:oosequeQtly, it would 

24 atsleAd the co.-ittee if I were to tell the. that it was 

25 hlo hueiaoos cs a sole proprietorship. It wae, in fact 
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a parrtoettolbip oo-1. hwa o etore eel*tlfi.ccte bare wld.ch 

2 I •ave C"tUh!l:•od. I ootleve 1t 0 & la your--yt:Ull, it'a lD 

4 

6 

7 

8 ' 

9 

10 

II 

12 

14 

1'5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Nl. Ci!IAVDa Yhot'a O. P. Cal'rt.llo? 

e. CAm~liBSa 'fco 0 onoctly. o. P. a.l'ul 

a. ». Ca1&'r111o. l 'bolt.e-.o. 
i 

tb~te tile COalltJ CoaieliOR411:'t 

I 
HI.. ealYIIt 

u;.. CAJ!AUI a 

D. CIIA'flla 

CBAlaAII ttAUs 1'ha1tik yot~. Do ycha va~t.t to 

col& J$Ctt t.1ltaeoe1 

D. CABALU: t '11 oall •1 td&aesa. 1°11 

ool1 tltJo Cleofas Gtlmllelo z ott dhlb ~t.se. 

ellA!~ ttALit Oo JOU uut co peoe oat 

tbeeo sebee ooto~talo Eteee •~ aett 

H&. CAL3ALIII 1•11 &eb. tlle eeqout Ot: ttae 

olorb ~o fOGO d.loo out. 'i'boOGt mebo1re of tile CGttSf.tte•, 

arre oop\too Gf tllo--1 bollwa0 cbo lodlertaoat. I lut.vea • t 

l!Ofl cleo eet ~eo. fto7 ~ jace t.a•a b~oqbt ta .... 

Ofl4 pgoooaeoct to eo., oo l ~U QOlt ,o...-t 1\ove aot beea 

~lo ee oQr"!lOgf.no ctaeo ftlYOCllf--to rovlov ethla at your 

lolctntta. '2\'aor otto OQ)tloo o~ ctao f.m.Gteeooat t1lalob taco 

,t?Oooe<dl7 tlooa roCtat?Qc4~ 094 !. ttoliow of alto cwtt:l!raal 

d(!)eflae ee oGOO oi tbo ot1lev oottotts t1llleb cnrQ of .. ecottd 

lm e~lo ootttotr la tbo Vcadow.·o1 DS.ot~lec coutrt t.a cosrpu 
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\I ChristL I 1 11 at this time call Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez, 

2 11 Mr. Chairman. 
I 

3 l CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Mr. Gonzalez, fi.-rst 
I 

4 1 let me-- 1 don't mean to be rude by this question-- Do 

s you understand English? 

6 MR. GONZALEZ: Yes, sir. 

7 CHAIRMA.N HALE: -and you know what I'm 

a saying to you? 

9 MR. GONZALEz: Yes, sir. 

10 CHAIRMAN HALE: As Chairman, I wish to ad-

11 vise you of your rights with reference to your testimony. 1 

12 After you have completed your statement, members of the 

13 Committee may ask questions concerning your testimony. 

14 You muot answer these questions truthfully, and your re-

15 fusal to do so would subject you to punishment for con-

!6 teapt of chQ legislature~ You can refuse to answer ques-

17 tiona ooly on the ground that such answers might incrim· 

1s incte you o~ tend to incriminate you in some way_ Alao 

19 I further advise that you are privileged to have an attor• 

20 ney of your selectioll to sit with and advise you as to 

21 your anawers(if you desire. The Chair will attempt to 

22 protect youl:' rights at all times. Do you understand the 

23 adviee 1 have given you? 

24 

25 

MR. GONZALE~: Yes, air. 

CltAIBMAN HALE: A.re you ready to testify 
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at this time? 

MR. GONZALEZ: Yes, sir. 
I 

3 I CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you stand and raise 

4 your right hand? 
I 

5 I 
I 

6 MR. CLEOFAS GONZALEZ 

7 was called as a witness by the Author of HSR-161 and, 

8 beina duly sworn by the Chairman, testified as follows: 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

MR. CAMALEZ: Mr. Chairman, I don't be­

ltcave that the Chair advised Mr. Gonzalez--and I believe 

it voul• be itt order to advise him--that be is subject 

to tlua peMlties of perjury should he lie to the 

Coaaittee. 
'··:.: .. I 

14 CHAlilM.ll HALE: Well. I thought I suggeste~ 

15 

16 

I 

I tour teotimotty is under oath 11 and if it is un• 

that to him, 

17 truthful, t1hy• you are subject, of course. to the penal-

18 tieo of parjury. For the record, would you please state 

19 your ttcme. your addressD your mailing address, and-- Well 

20 ~e knoo that capacity in which you appear here. --your 

21 name and JOUr mailing addreoD. 

22 A Cleofaa Gonzalez, General Delivery, Benavides, 

23 

24 

25 

Tenao. Duval County. 

You may proceet CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you. 

with Uhatever statement you wish to make. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10. 

Gonzalez - direct .34 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

MR. GONZALEZ: First of all I've got some 

corrections to make that I didn • t hear right from M:r. 

Canales, and that is--so it would be put on records-- I 

didn't hear right--Hector Zertuche--

First, it was a general store. This store went 

on for about a year. Then Hector Zertuche went to the 

army, and his brother, Arturo Zertuche, took over, and 

they named the store Zertuche General Store. And another 

correction I got for him to make-- He said about food 

11 stamps. Thoy weren't food stamps; they were Duval County 

12 Volfare orders, for food, drugs, doctor, and so forth. 

13 Now, I am road7 to Qnsver any questions, or if you want 

14 &Q to just verify how I started working for the County and 

15 nll this? 

16 

17 

CHARIMAN HALl: I think it might be helpful 

ODd will the memborc of tho Committee apeak up if you 

18 differ. I think it would be very helpful, Mr. Gonzalez~ 

19 if you simply otated in narrative form similar to what 

20 Mr Canale.s did thea basic facts as you see them. At this 

21 point, unfortunately, the membero of the Committee are not 

22 sufficiently informed on what the facts ere to reclly be 

23 cblo to 1ntalligontly anower quootiona. 

24 Ml. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if the Chair 

2s -c1ould prefor and if you believe it might enpodite matters, 
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Q You say that Mr. Hector Zertuche was the owner 

at that time. What happened to Mr. Hector Zertuche? 

A Well, it was first--when they organized this sto~a 

it was Hector Zertuche and they named it Gene:r:·al Store. 

Then Mr. Zertuche had to leave for the armyl he was called 

for service. 

Q Mr. Hector Zertuche? 

A Hector Zertuche--and then his brother took over 

and they named that store- Zertuche General Store. 

Q Who was his brother, Mr. Gonzalez? 

A Arturo Zertuchee 

Q Mr. :Gonzalez, to your knowledge, idd the 

Zertuche GonerQl Store evor exist as an entity which owns 

merchandiao itoelf? 

A Not thct I know, air, just on one occasion that 

they brought some Christmao gtfts-they didn't go so .. : ··•~ 

good oo-I don't know where the merchandise went to, but 

Farm and Ranch had to pay for that merchandise. 

Q Dtd the Zertuche General Store ever have any 

premises at which they operated other than the Farm and 

l.anch etore? 

A Well, the only time they put all that merchan-

d1so on tho old Bial Sales Bulldina--

Q It woo bGld at thO--Bial Sales Building? 

A Yao. 
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barbed wire and posts, widmills; making water troughs 

2 for those _lands that were divided into highway. 1 

3 was a warehouoeman, and I used to deliver the merchandise 

4 to the people that worked with the county. 

5 Q Where was this merchandise kept? 

6 A Well, we started on that behind the old Bial 

7 Sales Building, when it first started. 

8 Q Was the warehouse ever trans1erred to a building'( 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q -that was being used as the Farm and Ranch Stor~ 

11 --the one that we have been discussing? 

12 A Yes, air. Later on Mr. 0. P. Carrillo bought 

.13 . thlD other property from the Vaello' s bankruptcy. and they 

14 mo•ed all th~s shop and merchandise and everything to this 

15 other buildt..ng. There used to be another lumberyyar<,t; · 

16 the old VGello Lumberyyard. 

17 Q Mr. Gonsales, if I can caution you, I'd appre-

18 ciace for the bcaneflt of the court rGporter that yo~ don't 

19 begin to anowGr my qucaotions until such time as I •, ... fin-

20 lobed bocauoe it io impooslble for him to take down both 

21 converoationa at the aamG time. 

22 You say that later the Carrillo brothers pur-

23 chased abuilding from a sale and bankruptcy? 

24 

25 

A Yea, air. 

Q And which building was this? 

A Another Vaello Lumbor Company. 
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and today, you indicated to me that when you took over .the 

job of running the Farm and Ranch store, you were i.u ... 

structed to issue invoices for purchasei from governmental 

entities on a Zertuche General Store. 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

tablet? 

A 

Yes, sir. 

Dii a Zertuche General Store exist? 

Only by invoice register. 

What is an invoice register? Is it just a 

Well it's just a machine that you put some in-

voices and make out tickets, like merchandise you'.re taking. 

Q What were you told when you were delivered the 

13 invoice reg~ster? What were the instructions that you re-

14 ceived and who did you receive them from? 

15 A I received them from 0. P. Carrillo and from 

16 Ramiro D. Carrillo that 1 couldn't sell--that the Farm 

17 and Ranch coulcln't sell no merchandise to the county or 

18 school or water district or city of Benavides, or any 

19 government agency becaueo thay had some decisions. and 

20 that I had to bill them under the Zertuche General Store. 

21 That was the reason they gave uiee That's why. they brought 

22 me thi.s invoice register. 

23 Q Did you, 1n.'fact, sell merchandiee from the stole 

24 and bill it to the'Zertuche General Store? 

25 A Yes, sir. 
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Q You only used this when you were dealing with 

t:he governmen,tal entities, or did you use it when you 

were dealing with the general public? 

A Just for the governmental agencies. 

Q Mr. Gonzalez, what capacity did you serve in 

41 

i 

I 
i 

I 
I 
I 

as manager or general manager of the Farm and Ranch store?! 
I 

1 

~ 
I 

What were your duties besides a sales clerk? 

A I did everything. 

Q Did you order the inventory for the Farm and 

Ranch store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you carry on their bookkeeping for them? 

A Well I didn't do much bookkeepins; l just kept 

those lavotees and payments, receiving accounts, but I 

didn't keep no books because I wasntt getting paid for it. 

Q After you issued the tnvotcea, Mr. Gonzalez, 

on tbe Z~rtuehe General Store for merchandise that was 

sold f-rom the Farm and Ranch Store tothe governmental 

agenot.es 11 vhat did you do when you' received payments for 

the iavoiees which you later billed? 

A Well, I wa~ instructed to get all the checks 

frt.na all tbese government agencies, deposit it to the 

Zertuche General Store, then make a check. I was given a 

bunch of blank checks on Arturo Zertuche, and for me to 

make a check out to the Farm and Ranch supply for whatever 
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i 
I 
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I 

l 

amount of merchandise that,was sold to this government 

e.ntity. 

Q 

A 

Q 

to you? 

A 

Q 

You had blank cbecks? 

Yes. sir. 
I 

Were they already signed when they were deliver~d 

Yes, sir. 

You were instructed just to fill in the amounts 

and deposit them to the Farm and Ranch Store? 

A Yes, sir. I deposited them to the Zertuche 

General Store; then I made a check from the Zertuche 

General Store and I deposited whatever the government 

paid to the Zertuche General Store. And then I would 

make a eheck from the Zertuche Store to the Farm and 

R.anch Supply. 

Q Mr. Gonzalez, did you know personally Mr. 

Arturo Zertuche? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Where waa he all during this time? 

A In college at Denton. 

Q Do you know of your personal knowledge whether 

in fact, Mr. Arturo Zertuche was on the county payroll 

at that time? 

A Yes. Because I saw some of his checks.· 

Q He was being paid by the county? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q He was away in college? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q He was not running the Zertuche General Store? 

A No. 

Q Mr. Gonzalez, after the money was deposited 

from the Zertuche General Store into the Farm and Ranch 

Supply, or farm and Ranch Store owned by Judge Carrillo 
I 

and his brother, what happened to the money at that time? I 

I 

Did you make any distributio*ls to any of tbe people, or 

was the mo&Jey. left in the eheckiag account of the Farm 

nod Rt'utch Supply Store? ) 

A Well, for the merchandise that waa sole, it was I 
I kept uader the rara and Raach Supply, but I used to make 

1

1 

oome rental lnvoicoo and that'llODe~ota.catime-s I would 

make checks to dlfferent persocs and sometimes they would 

tell me to br1D& eoae cash. 

You say "rentals • '' Mr. Gonzalei;: 'tfhat type of 

19 rentalo did the Zcartuche Geaera1 Store have? 

20 A Well; 1 don't know. They would just tell me 

n at the end of the aonth, "~he a ticket for rental equip· 

22 men.t for so aue h. " 

23 Tractoro 11 truchs? 

24 A YeCJ. \fell• tbey dldl'l 1 t say what, but I think 

25 lt wne fol" troctore and truche. 
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Gonzala: ---------- ___________________ !.!!. _______ _ 

! I Q Did the Zertuche General Store own any tractors~ 

i l 
I 

2 ! 

! 
~ l 

A Rot that I know. 

Q Were you familiar with all of the merchandise 

~ thGt didn't exist in the Zertuche General Store? 
I 

" I A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Who was the money in fact distributed to? Who 

7 did you make the checks payable to, in particular? 

8 Could you name whoever you gave them to, and if you 

9 cashed checks and delivered cash, would you tell us who 

10 you delivered the cash to? 

11 A Well, I would make checks to Ramiro Carrillo 

12 and Brothers and also Oscar Carrillo, o. P., and some-

13 times to Ramiro. lnd that cash money I would just write 

14 cash and t wrote on the bottom, "for store change ... 

15 Q Mr. Gonzale 8 , did you pay any other bills out 

16 of the Zertuche General Store checking account? 

17 A Yes, 1 guess I was instructed sometimes by 

rs Mr. Carrillo. o. P. Carrillo, for me to pay First State 

19 Bank for some ear notes that Arturo 'oued· for Mobil 

20 Oil Company, or--1 just don't remember, but I did. Yes, 

2l sir. 

22 Q Then, it's my understanding that some of the 

23 

24 

ehoek.--all of the checks from the Zertuche General Store 

were deposited, the amount that you received was deposite~ 
25 in thea Fo.rm and Ranch Store? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q Nevertheless. there were still some deposits 

being made to pay for some other accounts? 

A I guess so, because they had some money. 

Q The checks were honored when you drafted them? 

A Yes. Yes, sir. 

Q M·r. Gonzalez • did you do all of the pure has ing 

for the Farm and Ranch Supply Store which Mr. Carrillo 

owned in company with his brother? 

A I did. 

Q At the time that you were working there, did 

they store county merchandise and inventory on the 

premises? 

A Y••• air. 

I 

I 
I 
i 
I 
I 
I 

. I 
Q le it beeause at· the; .f-roat part of the premises 1 

there 11 a Fartll arui 1\anch Store and in the back was the--

county warehouse? 

A Yes, sir, 

Q Dl4 you ever put the merchandise you had in 

Q , Did you have aay trouble diatinsuishing which 

24 taercllaadtse belonaed to whom? 

25 A Well, no. 
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~n~----Q ___ Y_f>_u_k_n_e_w-wh--i-c_h_m_e_~_ch:·:~~~~--~-e lo~~e~--~~----~~-e 

' 
1 1 countv? 
l I " I I I, 

3 1/ A , I !, 
' jl Q 
'l I! 

i I 
5 1! store? 

! i 

6 II A 

7 

8 

Yes, sir. 

Youiknew which merchandise belonged to the 

Yes, sir. 

9 to tho store? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q Mr. Gonzalez, being that the county warehouse 

I 

I 

12 

13 

uea on the premises where the Farm and Ranch Supply Store I 
~cs located. I would assume that when there was necessity I 

. I 
14 for using some of these supplies, the county employees 

15 were sent to pick it up. 

16 

17 

Iff 

19 

20 mclte- an invoice for everything that was taken by the 

21 county vorkeru. 

22 Q Well, Mr. Gonzalez~ he just testified that this 

23 property belonged to the county already, and you're tell-

24 ing me nov that you are selling it to them. again? 

25 A Well, I don't knott. Sometimes maybe they were 
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going to replace it or something, but--

Q Did they actually sell merchandise already 

belonging to the county, to the county again, and bill 

them through the Zertuche General Stnre? 

5 A (No response.) 

Q Did you understand my question? 

-I A ~es, sir. Well, yes, I sold to other county 

a precincts, like to Precinct County Number 2 and Precinct 

9 County Number 4. We used to sell them some posts and 

10 uire, if I got you right there. 

II Q You sold them material that already belonged 

12 to the cO\lllty? 

13 A Well, yes. 

14 Q You testified that you knew which material 

15 beloaaed to who? 

16 A Yea. 

17 Q Did you sell them material that belonged to 

18 COUfttJT 

19 A toe. sir. 

20 Q Dtd you bill them th~ough Zertuche General 

21 Storo? 

22 A Yee, olr. 

23 Q Were you. il'l fact, asAlD peid by the county 

24 t11koe you tooued these ia.voi~ea? 

25 A 
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Q ~nd this money was deposited in the Zertuche 

General Store-:-

A Yeo, sir. 

Q -accounts? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And under the same scheme it was then paid to 

the Farm and Ranch Supply Store? 

A Yes, sir. 
' 

Q And from there it was sent either to the Ramiro \ 
I 
I 

Ca~rlllo Brothers, which is a trust, or cashed and given i 
I 

to the different individuals who were owners of the store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q 

! 
I Mr. Gonsalez, you indicated to me that not all 1 

I 
' of the material which belonged to the county was stored 1 

at the warehouse, particularly tbe posts because of their! 

I 

volume and size. Where were these posts kept? 

A Well. some were kept at--Hr. Carrillo owned 

aaother place about half A mile from--
.t< 

Q Which Mr. Carrillo? Let's not confuse the 

Cotamlttee. 

A Mr. Ramiro Carrillo. 

Q Ramiro Car~illo. But it's not the Judge that 

we're talking about for this court? 

A Bo. 

Q What do they generally store out there? 
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A Well~ they've got some county equipment, like 

tractors, trucks and posts. 

Q When someone would come in from the county---~·I 

assume you knew all of the county employees? 

A Oh, yes. 

Q -and asked you for posts, -.fhat would you do? 

A Well, I would get them whatever they needed. 

Q Were they there at the warehouse, or were they 

9 out at the ranch? 

10 

II 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A They were out at the ranch. 

Q And did you bill them when they went out and 

picked up the county posts? 

A Sometimes I was instructed to do it. Yes. 

Q Who instructed you to do that? 

A Ramt.ro Carrillo. 

Q You said that some of the county material was 

in fact sold back to the county, billed· through the Zer-

tuche General Store, and later deposited in the funds 

of the Farm and Ranch Supply Store, which is owned by 

Judge Ca2!rillo. Did you ever sell any of the county's 

material to the general public? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you invoice them through Zertuche General 

Store, or through the Farm and Ranch Supply? 

A To the genernl public, I billed just from the 

Fan and Ranch Supply. j 
'-'----~-----
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Q Mr. Gonzalez, this being the county warehouse, 

do they have a gasoline pump there, or a diesel pump 

to service the machinery which the county owns and oper-

atoe? 

A Yes, sir, they do. 

Q Did you ever have occa~ion to see Judge 

fill up his personal automobile with county-owned 

Carrillo, 
! 

gasoline~ 
I 

A Yes I've filled up some of his trucks that 

were uoed on the farm. 

Q You filled up some of the trucks that he used 

11 on his farm? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Mr. Corusalez, do you know whether county equip-

ment, be it _tractors. trucks, or ~hatever, waa used to 

tranuport machinery belonging to Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Yeo, sir 

It was, in fact, used? 

A 

Q Do you know of any time in which county trucks 

were ever uoed to transport grain to market which was har­

veoted at tho o. P Carritlo Ranch? 

A Yoo, sir 

Q Did you call the D P.S. and tell them that a 

truck that belonged to the county was transporting grain 

that belonged to Judge 0. P Carrillo? 

I 
U------------------------------------------------------J 
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A Yes sir, we did. 

Q What action did the D.P.S. take? 

A They didn't say anything. They said, "Well, 

we'll get out there one of these days." 

Q What type of license plates did these trucks 

have on them? 

A Exempt license. 

Q Did they have any markings on them that would 

indicate that they belonged to the county? 

A No, sir. 

Q Did Judge Carrillo know that these trucks be-

longed to the county? 

A I think so. 

Mr. Gonzalez, I would like to get into another 

matter. and you will correct me in my identification of 

i 
l 

l 
l 

this 9roaram wherein people were assisted through the coun~ 

ty for ourcbasing groceries. 

MR. CANALES: lf the Committee will permit 

me, I have rlaht here for their examination, eome.of the 

iavoieea wbieb were sent out by the Zertuche General 

Store, again, wbieh never existed. We will prove that 

there were, in fact,. lnvole •• issued. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Counsel, let the Chair 

urge you to stay as eloae to the mlcrophonee a• .po8sible 

when we're talking here, so that •• don't miae aoy of 
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is my understanding--~nd the witness I hope will correct j 

i 

me if I'm wrong--that Mr. 0. P. Carrillo would not in fac~ 
i 

benefit monetarily, but would use the stamps himself to 

purchase his,own food. The sltps were taken to a grocer~ 

store; he purphased food, with a person with which he was 

friendly or something, who was in fact being paid with 

the slips, because he would in turn turn around and col­

lect the money wbicb be would otherwise have to receive 

from Judge 0. P. Carrillo. He would in turn collect it 

from the county, which would pay the bill at the end of 

the month, based on these voucher slips. There was no 

eaah, it wa• my underttanding. 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q Will you co~ract me if I'm wrong? 

A You're corrGct. 

MR. CANALES: They were used to purchase 

hf.m own personal food vith, ttccordt.og to the witness. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: !hank you. Attd f.nvoices 

to the county. aad th~ 

MR.. CANALES: The COUl\ty would issue a 

warraat to the individu.el who redeemed tbe.se, based on 

the quantity or the amount which is listed on each oa.e. 

There ia a dollttr .aeount listed on eaeb one. 

· If say 1 "X Store" came in and had fifty of 

theae at twenty dollars apiece, whatever that works out t , 
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,~~,-----------------------------------··-------·-······-··· ····-····--········-1 

1! that particular store would be issued a warrant by the 
I' 

_) ! 
l 
! 

-l I 
l 
1 

) ! 
I 

(J I 

i 
county, and these would be redeemed and the account paid 

for. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I see. 

Mr. Slack would like a question. 

MR. SLACK: By what authority did 0. P. 

7 Carrillo sign it? In what capacity? 

MR. CANALES: Mr .. Slack, I do not know in 

9 what capacity Mr. Carrillo signed these things. The 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

potnt that the witness, I believe, attempted to convey 

to the Committee was that regardless of the authority to 
I 
I 

sign them or not to sign them, obviously they were author-t 

ized in some vay or else the couttty would not have honoreJ 

them. Regardless of who had the authority to sign them, 

they were being honored, but the food which in faet they 

vera used to redeem or to purchase, was not going into th 

hAnds of the person who is ftQmed on the slip, where many 

of them ar• probably fictitious, you will notice that 

they are juat last names, and "Garcia" in a community in 

South Texas is more or, less like "Smith" in Dallas. I'm 

sure. There mua t be millions of Garcias and Rodriguez' 

in that area. It's a very common last name. So, con-

sequently, no first name was ever put on there, to make 

it more difficult to trace the individuals who supposedly 

were the beneficiaries of these, of the food stamps or 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 

whatever--! think they're called "chits." 

MR. SLACK: These are just puwehase 

tn a very sisplified form, but to my knowledge, tn 

eountlea these are issued out of the offiee of tho 

58 
I 
i 
I 

I 
orders I 
most i 

Cotlllty I 
5 Judge. You have to go to the County Judge--

6 

7 

8 

9. 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. CANALES: I'm not familiar ~th the 

process. 

MR.. SLACK: -in the processes where I'm 

familiar, and counties do look after indigents, of 

cou~se, historically. 

MI. CANALES: It was brought to my atten­

t1oa~ Mr. Slack, thoe the taautng agent, if it ts the 

couaty jud:e, is in fact empowered to ailo'W individuals 

to appt-o-ve'theae •. '7"11\·~fQct, I believe Mr. Gonzalez­

which I doet't think the evidence is very pertiaent to the 

' 
points whieb we' r• discuaeinth hut it i,.s e larative of 

thto particular ma·t:ter-Mr. Gonzales was tn fact em· 

powered ot C)-fte time to olga these slips • aft.er 'be left th 

employment of the Carrillo Brothers. 

Whether their authority is in the county judge, 

or vhiehevel' county. official it's to, apparen.t:ly it can 

be dele&Gted t-o oome individual. 

MJl.;SLACltt The CotMliaaioner's Court 

pQ,.tna lt a~ the proper time. they au~borised payment, 

of course. 
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Gonzalez 59 

MR. CANALES: Yes. 

MR. SLACK: If they wish to delega.te that, 

I'm. sure that-

MR. CANALES: That's my understanding. 

I couldn't vouch for the administrative procedure for 

the issuance of them. 

MR. SLACK: Thank you, sir. 

BY MR. CANALES 

Q Mr. Gon•alez, I would like to get back to some 

1o of the misappropriations. or apparent misappropriations, 

11 if I can correct myself, of county vehicles. To your 

12 knowledge, did you ever know that Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

13 employed county vehicles • for exaeple, tractors, on his 

14 raacb? 

IS A Yes, sir. _ 

16 Q Would they come by the county warehouse and 

17 pick up these vehicles? 

18 A Yes, sir. 

19 Q And you saw them let\ve? 

20 A Yes, air. 

21 Q And you ltaow for a fact that they were being 

22 used Oft his ranch? 

23 A Yes, sir. 

24 Q What would be use them on his raftch for, Mr. 

2s Goazalez? 

....____ __ -'------___ j 
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A Well, tractors or D-8 Cats, they ~ere clearing 

land thst he--improving his land, his ranch land. 

-~ The county was in possession of caterpillars, 

i n-8 Caterpillars? 
I 
I 

s I 
! 

6 I 
A 

Q 

7 Gonzalez? 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

11 roads. 

Yes. 

What other use were these tractors put to, Mr. 

By the county or by Carrillo? 

Did the county use them? 

Yes, sometimes, to make caliche for the county 

12 Q . no you know if Judge 0. P. Carrillo presently 

13 is in possession, or if not the owner, of a D-8 Cater-

14 pillar? 

15 1 thtittk lte • s got two D-8 Cats rigb.t noW.... One 

16 of them is eti 11 working at his ranch l.~nd. The other 

11 one te in the county shop at San Diego, Texas~ to be re-

1a patrad. 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 

24 A 

25 

ts it in Son Diego or in Benavides? 

In San Diego. 

It's betas repaitted in San Diego? 

1 think,. so, yea. 

A~e these tr•eters used for county purposes? 

N-o, ·sir. 

They are hte personal tractors? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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II 
-·--------------- -·-1 

i I 
i i . I 

2 ! i 
1! 
II 3 , I 
I; I, I 

-l I · 
I 

s I 
l 

' I don't know. I think they are rented from 

Plain Machinery, and somehow this rental is paid by 

County Commissioner of Precinct No. 2. Juan Leal. I 

think County Commissioner Juan Leal--his precinct pays 

about two thousand or three thousand dollars a month, I 

don•t know that. 

' 

(· I 
7 

Q Mr. Gonaalez. I would like to ask you some queR-1 

8 tions in reference to county paychecks. which might have. 

9 beeo cashed at the Farm and l!lanch Supply Store. Nere 

10 cheeks ever cashed at the Farm and Ranch Supply Store 

11 owned by Judge 0. P. Carrillo and his brother, Ramir~ 

12 were there checks ever cashed with payees. or persons who 

13 were being paid by these checks, who to your knowledge 

14 do not exist or live in the Benavides area? 

J'j A Yes, sir. 1 think so. 

16 Q Let me rephrase my question. 

17 A ·payee on a check is the person who is the 

IB recipient of the cheek. Did you ever see 4 cheek, or 

19 dld you. ever cash checks at the Fan\ and Ranch Supply 

20 Store where you worked on which the pcyees, the persons 

21 who were being paid, diet not live or exist as far as you 

22 knew? 

23 A Yea, t gu.ess I did. Yes. 

Q To the euteat of what amount per month,·Mr. 

25 Gonzalez? Approximation. 
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i' Gonzalez' 62 

A Well, some w~re made up two hundred, two .fifty. 

Q And the total amount per month, what would be 

the average in your estimation? 

A Wall, I'm going to go to about six or eight 

hundred dollars. 

Q Payees who in your opinion were fictitious 

because you knew they did not live there? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q And that a.s far as you knev, did not exist 1 

A Yef• sir. 

Q L•t ae ash you, M~. Gonzales, did the payees 

on these checks hove full names, or did they just have 
. ' 

a "Mr .. Co.r~f.D," siat1ar to these things. or just a "Mr. 

so-ond•So" without ••tng a first aauuo? 

A le11, aotae-. of thea ha4 just initials, like 

c. Pe~ea, C. Cc••e•s• aad. some of them had tl.le full name. 

Q 'Dld Mw. o. P. C4l''1'111o over briaa you any county 

chcacb.e uo cacti thore fo1r pQyeos who 70u kae't1 didn't exist? 

A (Do woopoa$e) 

~'111'1 To tho t.ooa of youl' ltnOt?l·Qdp.. .. l f you don' t · 

raaombov, 1 "WOu1fl to11 tbe Co11ltlittee, "I don't r•aember.tt 

A t ttliah lie ~.~td. ''~'Y'e~s. 

Q 'fou thlllh? 

A Yes. sir. 

q lfao tt 'e7ittt %f!IU1a-tity. ow just on occasions? 
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Gonzalez 63 

A Just on occasions. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I think I have 

tried to cross examine this witness to allow the Committee. 

to get the gist of the scheme which was being employed. 

I hope the Committee would understand that we have not 

gone into the details of each individual transaction, but 

I'm trying to show you a general scheme for defrauding 
' 

the coun~y. t~e school district, the water district and l 
i 
I 
I 
I the city, through a Zertuche General Store, which is only : 
I 

a pape~ entity, bas never existed, and the ~nds were bein~ 
traoete~red into the Farm and Ranch Supply, some of the 1 

invoices representing merchandise actually distributed, 

eoae ropa.-ooenting no merchandise at all, and some repre-

oentillg mcarcbendise which was in fact resold back, after 

f.t had elrendy been purchQ.sed. by the County Commissioner' s
1 

Court, and delivered to this warehouse to be stored there.! 

It waa lat•r resold to the governmantal entities and to 

the general public. 

At tbis~time I would hope that the Committee 

would take up whatever questions that they deem appropr1at 

of thla witness. 

Gonzalez. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you, Mr. Canales. 

Let the Chair·~ask you a few questions, Mr. 
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Gonzalez -------------·-------··------·----··· 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q What period of time does your testimony cover 

here? You said you worked for the County of Duval. 

When did you go to work for. Duval County? 

A In the early 1960. 

Q And then when did you terminate your employ-

ment with Duval County? 

A Well, I think I'm still employed, but I don't 

know. I read in the paper on April the 30th that all 

the county employees were fired, or--not fired, were 

lQid off; and that later on they would tell us who was 

htred 1 and I went to cheek over in San Diego on that 

psytoll list and my name was not there, so I don't know 

yot. They didn't aay anything to me. 

Q Welt. from 1960 up until at least sometime 

this year you were an employee of Duval County? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q About lS years? 

A Yes, air. 
<~1 :;~:~>,' .. · . 

Q And you drew $2SO a month during that enttre 

time? 

A No. I worked for about two fifty for about 

ten or twelve years. Then they raised me to four hundred~ 

Then last year I went aod told the District Judge--I 

meu the County Judge, Archer Parr. that I was going to 
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Gonzalez 65 ---- ---·-------·--··--·--·--·------.. --

quit working for the Carrillo&, that I was going to thank . i 

hlm for what they had helped me. And he asked me why 

was 1 quitting. I told him that I was getting in too 

much trouble. 

' 

Q We~e you paid money other than your check 

Duval County durillg this period of time? 

A No, sir. 

fro~ 

/l _, I 
! 

Ranch! 
I 

Q Did you draw any money out of the Farm and 
I 

Store? I 

I 

IV 
A No, sir. 

Q Did you draw any money out of the Zertuche 

General Store? 

A No, sir. 

Q Was this salary you received from Duval County 

supplemented in any way fro• any source? 

A Yes. 

Q What source? 

A Well, I mean I'v~a got a little ranch of my own. 

Q Nothing pertaining to Carrillo? 

A No. No, sir. 

Q In no way? No funds you received of any kind 

from Carrillo? 

A 

Q 

behalf? 

No, sir. No, sir. I 

Or anyone purporting to act for tham or on theii 

____ .J 
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Gonzalez 66 -------. -------·---···-····-··- ·-------·-··-

A No,. sir. They never gave me nothing. 

Q Now, was there a store known as the Farm and 

Ranch Store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q where was it located? 

A Rig~t there in the same place, where that 

County Commissioner h$d his office and his yard. 
i 
i 

Q What was the nature of the Farm and Ranch St ?· ore.
1 

A Well, we bad auto parts and hardware, seeds. j 

Q Is that the sallle as "Farm and Raneh Supply"? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And this photocopy here of the State of Texas 

Store License shcn78 that-the owner's name was 0. P. and 

R. D. C~rrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Who is 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Our District Judae here. 

Q District Judge. Who is R. D. Carrillo? 

A ltia brother, Couaty Commissioner. 

Q All right. What's his first name? 

A Ramtro. 

Q Is Ralllf.~o and o. P. 'brothers? 

A Y-es • si);'. 

Q Are the7 related to Otuuar Carrillo? 

A Yes, slr. 
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zalez 67 

Q What are their relationship? 

A Brothe1:a. 

Q They're brothers. There are three brothers? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And the Farm and Ranch Store was owned by 0. P. 

6 and R. D. Carrillo? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

J 2 

13 

14 

A Yes. sir. 

Q Would you call it a sort of a general merchan-

dise sto1:e? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. sir. 

Were you employed in that store at any time? 

Well, I worked there but I would never get 

paid for it. 

Q You worked there but were paid from Duval County 

15 funds? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Were you paid any money from any of the other 

govern111ental entities down there? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

No, sir. 

Benavides Independent School District? 

No, sir. 

Now. 1£ I understand your testimony--and I 

want you to follow me closely on thi~ou were told 

that the Farm and Ranch Store could not sell merchandise 

to these sovernmeatal agencies. Is that right? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A Right, sir. 

Q Why could you not sell to these governmental 

agencies? 

A Because Mr. Carrillo here was County Attorney 

at that time. Ramiro Carrillo was the--well. he wasn't 

6 j County Commissioner then, but he used to work for the 

68 

7 i County, and be was the City Alderman, and Mr. o. P. Car-

s 1

1 

ri11o here was a School Board Member, so he said it would 

9 j, be better for me not to make a.ny invoices out at Farm and 

10 Ranch, because of nepotism or something. 

II Q All right. But you sold merchandise out of 

12 Farm and R.Q.nch Store to these governmental agencies even 

13 so! Is th4t right? 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

Well, I s1ld it to the Zertuche General Store. 

Well, I'm S4ying, the merchandise came from 

16 the Farm and Reach Store. Is that correct? 

17 A Yes, sir. Yes, sir. 

18 Q And you delivered it to the various govern-

19 mental aaencies on their orders? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yea. air. 

Q Jut the payments for that were made to Zertuc:be/ 

and not to Farm and Ranch? 

A 

A 

'No. sf.Jr. It 11as made to Zertuche, yes sir. 

Is that correct? 

Yea, air. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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i 

Q 
I You would submit invoices to these governmental 

aseneies? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q The invoice would appear to be from Zertuche 

General Store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q The check on the governmental agency would come 

s back and the payee on that check would be Zertuche Gen-

9 eral Store? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, sir. 

Q You would deposit that check to a bank account 

in the name of Zertuche General Store? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q Then you wrote cheeks on the account of Zer-

tuche General Store and transferred the money to the 

Farm and Ranch Store? 

A Right. sir. 

Q Is that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And then at various times you drew checks on the 

l'arm and ttaneh Store to Carrillo? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Is that correct? 

(The witness nodded.) 

Did 1 understand your earlier testimony to the 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 70 

effect that a lot of the material that was in the Farm 

and Ranch Store there was not the property of the Carrillds, 
I 

but belonged to Duvar County? 

A \;,T
1
ell, yes, because. v..~e sold--you see, Mr. Carrillio 

would go •n~ ge~ a load of cedar posts and he said for me 
I . 

to bill the county for it. Let's say he bought about a 

thousand posts, so I billed the county for it. 

Q What happened to the posts? 

A Well, they were put on that county yard. 

Q Where did the posts come from? 

A From somewhere around here, Austin, or right 

around here, sometlthere around here. 

Q Well, how did the county--how did the county 

get to the point where it paid for this material on two 

different occasions? Explain that to me. 

A Well, like I said, a lot of these other county 

commissioners would go to Benavides, like Precinct No .. 2 

would so 4i.Uld say "I need a hundred posts and ten rolls 

of barbed wire." And I asked Mr. Carrillo what I do, 

and he said "Just give them to him and bill them to him." 

So I did it. 

Q 

one 

And that was material that was already owned by 

And you would transfer it to another preciftet 
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and bill the county again? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And who would the check be payable to? 

A To Zertuche and then transferred to the Farm 

and Raneh. 

Q How much money are we talking about on trans-

actions like that? 

A Well, a hundred posts I guess. when we first 

started they were sold at about eighty cents a post, or 

less. I'm just quoting prices; I don't remember. Or 

a dollar, ten. And about ten rolls of wire at sixteen 

dollars a roll. That would amount to about two hundred 

some doll.nrs, or something like that. 

Q Who ii Arturo Zertuche? 

A Well, he is related to the Carrillos. 

Q What is the relationship, if you know? 

A His e~sin, but I don't know how close. 

Q And he is a young fellow? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How old would you guess? 

A About twenty-six. 

Q What college was he attending at the time these 

traooaetlons occurred? 

A Somewhere in Denton. 1 don.•t know. Denton 

College. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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And he was ostensibly the owner of the Zertuche 

J i\ General Store? 
: \ 

-' I i 
i! 
i! 

.j 'i 
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A I guess so. 

Q Did he receive any of this money? 

A Well, he drew some checks for car payments and 

other things that be needed. Yes, I think he did. 

Q Did he have a signature card on the Zertuche 

General Store account, so he could sign checks? 

A I guess. The bank went ahead and authorized 

it •henever I took checks there and accepted them. I 

·guess they did. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Did anybody else draw checks on this account? 

Yes. Mr. Carrillo here. 

Judge Carrillo? 

Yes. sir. 

On the Zertuche General Store? 
. I 

Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do we have any of those 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I dare say. 
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BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q What batak were these accounts in? 

A First State Bank of San Diego. 

Q no you know whether or not that bank microfilms 

all of its instruments and records on a daily basis? 

A I guess they do. 

Q 

A 

You don't know? Do you know for sure, or not? 

No, I don't know. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you know, Counsel, 
I 

10 whether th$y microfilm their records? 

II MR. CANALES: I'm not aware. Mr. Chair-

12 

I 

that probably the banking regulaf 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

tioae do require them. to carry some type of permanent'· 

record of the cheeks. However. the availability cf the 

chocha. we could ash Judge o. P. Carrillo, who is proba· 

b1y ln posseaol~n of the•. 

CHAIRMAN BALE: Well, we're not in a post-

IB tioa to ask him any q~est1otta at this point in time, 

t9 Counsel, as you ••11 know. 

20 BY caAII.MAI HALE 

21 Q Now, Mr. Gonzalez,. I would like for you, if 

22 you would a·gat.n. to tell me about these food orders • 

23 ~lth p4rticular reference to how did Judge Carrillo prof· 

24 it by these food orders • which ostensibly bear his signa-

25 ture. I believe there ar~ some of them flo4\tlng around 
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What happened to that envelope with those·-

MS. WEDDINGTON: Right here, Mr. Chairman. 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

Q These orders here 1 which ostensibly bear what 

appears to be an initial on it. How did the Judge profit 

from these? 

A Well, he got some groceries from the store. 

And then at the end of the month, Mr. Yzaguirre, all 

that merchandise came from the Cash Store at Benavidest 

Texas. And Mr. YZ&RJUrre would go at the end of the -
month and tell me, "Mr. Gonzalez, 0. P. got this mer-

chandise and he said for me just to bring this here and 

for you to make some welfare orders/' and that's all. 

So I made them. And I asked Ramiro Carrillo--he's the 

that welfare orders,-1 asked him and 

Just make them out. And whenever you 

get through making them out, take them back to the 

ctore." So I would make those welfare orders, took them 

back to the store, and the store owners would give them 

back to Mr. Carrillo and Mr. Carrillo would take them to 

the Commtssioner•s Court and get them approved. 

Q All right. And the county would pay for 

then? 

II 
A Yes. sir • 

...._______;_ _____ j 
HICKMAN HI:T'ORTING SERVICE 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 



I 
1 l 

I. 
I 

2 ; 

j 
j i 

"• j . I 

I 

Gonzalez 75 _,_ .. ______ ,_] 

I 

Q You didn'~ write those checks, did you, from 

the county? You df.d~'t sign the county checks? 

A No, sir. 

Q Who signs the county checks? 

A Well, the county treasurer and the county clerk, 

() I guess. 

7 Q So it 1 s your testimony that many of these food 

8 orders on here represented food that Judge Carrillo him-

9 self took for--

10 

I I 

I 2 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

--for his own use? 

Yes, sir. 

Aad thea later the county paid for it? 

Yes. sir. 

Now, you also testified to the fact that there 

16 vere some cheeks drawn on the Farm and Ranch Store to fie 

17 tttious payees. Is that correct? 

18 A Yes, sir. 

19 MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairtnan, I don't be-

20 lta•o that .that te what the statement was. The checks 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

thll.t were drown on the rarm and Ranch Store were the ones 

~bet were distributed. The checks, t.tarrants of the 

couaty._ pGylng eouaty ent.ployees supposedly, were the 

ones that vere cashed at the Farm aad Ranch Store. 

CoUAtJ cheeks. for example, an employee of the county 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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would go down to the Farm and Ranch Store and cash his 

monthly paycheck or his weekly paychecks. These were 

the types of checks that were being cashed, that the 

evidence was referring to. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: i 
And the payee on the county 

checks would be a fictitious payee? 

MR. CANALES: According to what he has 

related to me. yes. In his opinion, they were--

9 BY CHAIRMAN HALE 

10 Q Is that right, Mr. Gonzalez? 

II A Yes, sir. 

12 Q There would be county checks issued and the 

13 payee on that check would be a fictitious payee? . 

14 A Yes 1 sir. 

IS Q But you would cash those checks? 

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q Who would get the cash? 

IR A I will. 

19 Q And 'then what did you do with the cash? 

20 A I would bring it over and give it to Ramiro 

21 Carrillo or o. P. Carrillo. 

22 Q Did that happen on many occasions? 

23 A Yes, sir. 

24 
Q Over what period of time? 

2'i ......___Ill -------

- A Well, let 1 s say about four or five years, back. I 
_ __j 
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II 
5 

6 

Q And in varying amounts of money, I assume? 

A Yes. 

Q Usually more ·than a hundred dollars in each 

check? 
! 

A Y~s, sir. About two hundred dollars. 

Q What were those supposedly for, paychecks? 

7 Were they payroll checks on the county? 

8 A Those were claim ehecks, for people that worked 

9 about a week or two. 

10 Q And the county would issue a check in payment 

11 for thoae services • ostensibly? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, sir. 

MI. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, there is a 

system--I don't know if tt•s statewide--but in the coun­

ties in my particular area, because of the impoverished 

condition of most of them, they only hire people when the 

need arf.see, iastead of maf.ntafrdtta steady employees •onth 

in and month out. 

For example, if there is work to be done on a 

particulAr road they will hire people until such time as 

thea work 1s completed and then they let them off. So 

it would be similar to eont:t:4ct labo-r. for example. 

CRAIRM.AN HALE: I see. Thank 1ou, Counael .. 

M;r. Maloney? 
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BY MR. MALONEY 

Q Mr. Gonzalez, bow old are you? 

A 

Q 

your life? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Forty. 

And you said that you lived in Benavides all 

Yes, sir. 

Are you a married man? 

Yes, sir. 

How many children do you have? 

Three. 

You said you have a ranch? 

Just a small ranch. Yes. 

How small? 

About 80 acres. 

Where did you get that? 

I bought it. 

When? 

I bought one about '68. I bought about 16 

aeres in a place, or 16 to 20 acres, 1 guess. 

Q You said that you bought one. Do you have 

more than one ranch? 

A Yes. I've got another one, about 20-some 

acres in another one, about 20-some acres. 

Q 

A 

Do you have any more than that? 

No, sir. That's all I've got. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q When did you get the other one? 

A I bought it about five years ago. 

Q Do you have any independent wealth of your 

own? 

A Well, the first land I bought was when my 

father passed away, he left us an insurance premium that 

was divided into--we \Jere only two-- I and my sister and j 
i 

my mother, you know. We divide<..t what he left us in three .. ! 

And I bought the fi~st land I bought, I bought it with 

the money my mother gave me from my father's insurance. 

Q Aad that was when? 

A About March of 1968. No, it was later than 

that... My father pused away in January 1968, I guess. 

Q Would this be the first ranch? 

A I,bougbt it a few months later, or a year later 

Q And how lllUCh d:td you pay for that t'al'lch? 

A A thousand dollars. 

Q Was this the fi~st ranch you bouaht or the 

oecoad ranch? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. siJ:. 

Yes, it wcs the fiZ"st ranch? 

Yes. sir. 

And how much 41d you pay for your seeorut ranch? 

Well, tbe second raoch belollged to fAY uncle. 

It ttao tallorited by my mother's father, so I bouaht just 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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l II' I il well. each brother got about four acres, so I gave him 

3 lj 
I, 
I I 

·l ll 
I' 

5 i : 
j I 
I' 

I, I (> 

I 
7 

8 

9 

10 

II 
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about $350 each. I haven't paid him all yet. I still 

owe my moth~r and another aunt. 

Q Were you fu~l-time at this Farm and Ranch Store? 

A Yes, :sir. 

Q Did·you ever get any chance to work your ranch, 

or did you--

A Yes. sir. I used to--every day after work. 

Q Were there any other employees at the Farm and 

bneb Store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How many? 

A Well. that were paid by the Farm and Ranch, or 

just that stayed--

Q We 11, let • s see. holf. many there we'te ftr:tat .. 

A One. 

Q And who was that? 

A It wa~e's deceased now--Pat Gonzaleze 

Q Is he any relation to you? 

A No, sir. 

Q waa there anyone else besides P•t Gonzalez 

who worked with you? 

A No. sir. 

Q What were his duties? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A Just the same thing that I did. He uaed to 

s~n:ve the trucks with gasoline and give them out: what-

ever they needed. He was kind of a warehouseman, too. 

Q Did he handle any of this money the way you did? 

A No, sir. 

Q Was be an older man, or a younger man? 

A He was an older man. 

Q Now, as I understand your testimony, you said 

that .,They told you to take this property th-at was on 

the loeation of the Farm and Ranch Store, and when you 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

SGld it to the county, the county people came by and pickea 

lt up.u Is that correct? 

A Yes. sir. Yes, sir. 

Q And they told you to bill it to Zertuche and 

'then Zertuehe would bill the county? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, every time you are saying "theyn who ar:e 

you talk.la& about? 

A Who picked up the merchandise? 

Q No. Who is it that told you each of these 
~·J.' 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

23 tiuaf You said, "They. told ••· '.' ~ho do you mean by 

24 

25 bmiro Carrillo. 
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Q It was not 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Yes, I guess he told me once. Yes, sir. 

Q When was that that he told you once? 

A Hell, I can•t give you the exact date. 

Q How long ago? 

A Well, let's see. More or less, about four or 

five or six years. 

Q Do you recall the occasion? 

A Sir? 

Q Do you recall the occasion? 

A Yes. 

MR. CANALES: Do you remember the time? 
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BY MR .. MALONEY: 

Q When yw would receive moraey from the cou.nty 

poyablo to tertuebo, this would be a eounty warrant 

paid to zortucbo. Is that correct? 

A Yoo, air. 

Q A ad you would be the one that would receive iti:' 

A Yee. etr. 

Q ADd yG\1 would deposit it: i.ft the bank? 

A Yeo. sir. 

Q Hou WO\t ld you do that? Would you f!ign so.e-

oac'e aamo oa tbo back of it or what? 

A l just WI'Ote, nror depooit 01lly, Zertuche 

Goaol'al Stol'o, by e&•'' t:u.1d I uomd to sian it by ••· 

q So you~ aaae ~ould oppear on tbo back? 

A Yoo, ot~. oa oll of tham, tho oDca tbnt 1 

de,esle. toe, olr. 

Q mot1 did you set C:he() tton.oy out of Zortucbe, 

eaat oR t'ho beak tk1t voo ta zortucho'a QCcto\!at. paid to 

A I woo stvoa cbwt toa or tvolvo s.ipod cbctcko 

f~oo A~tU~t aad I do tho ~ritlaa aysolf. 

Q So you owld aot ~rita o check oa that oceount. 

lo Gbot eorre)ct? 

A Woll, I couldn*t s1gft it. They ttore already 

o~. l juet fill thoa out. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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I! 
I I 

Q All right. Then when it was cashed would you 
I i 

2 
I I l. 
I 

get cash out of the Zertuche bank account? 
I 

3 I A No, sir, I never did. Nc~ that I remember. 

•• 
I, 
! I 
l l 

5 I I 

i I 

Mo. 1 don't tbink I did. Never • 

Q How did you ever put anything in the Farm and 
I 

6 Rauch Store then? 

7 A Well, I would write a check from the Zertuche 

8 
j 

Store to Farm and Ranch Supply. 

9 1
1 Q I thought you said you couldn't write the 

10 check. Or do you mean that you would write it and some-

11 one olae would sign it? 

12 A The checks were already signed. They were 

13 given to llG signed. 1 just fill them. out • with t:he 

14 amount and whoever it was paid to. 

15 And then you would deposit those in the Farm 

16 aad ltaneb Store? 

A 

Q 18 Would you sign anything on the back of those? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yos. "For deposit only, Farm and Ranch Supply, 

by me. tt 

Q Bow, I believe the next step was. you would 

take tbe moaey out .,of tbe Farm and Ranch Store and give 

tbat money to someone. Is that correet? 

A Whenever I was instructed to do so. :res. 

Q could you sign on that bank account? 
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A No, sir. Ramiro Carrillo \.J.as the only on!· 

who could eign there. I don't know if Mr. 0 .. P. c.arrillo' 

eigned. I never did (t{e~ a check !lligned by him. I had 

to get a cheek signed by Rami.ro Carrillo. 

Q So they would do thf' RAme thing aga1lin, givf' 

you a check that: was a.l ready signed for yotJ. to get the 

meaey out? 

Q How far was this bank from your place of 

A About sixteen m11e8. 

q Did you have to leave the premiBes to go to 

the baak? 

Q And after you would get the money out, then 

what would you do with the money? 

A artaa it back to R.amiro or o. P. Carrillo .. 

Q Did you actually gtve money to o. P. Carrillo? 

A Y••• .ttr. 

oc:eaatoa~? 

A Maray oeca stotts . 

Q O.er this entire period of ti•e tM.t you've 

teettf1ed about? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN_ TEXAS 

I 
! 



2a-4 ~ 
I ' 

) 
I I 

l i 
:~ II 

I I 
4 

11 

, I 
5 ll 1 I 

6 lj 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

l3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

-------------···-·--··a2_ _________ i 

Q ~ould tbat he correct? 

A tee, sir .. 

Q Now tben. these white slips that you have 

atvon uo, I'm not 8Ure tbat I understand exactly how 

those workod. D1d you say tbat the grocery RtOrt! 

owner would bring those to you? 

A Yet, air. 

Q One, or were there sevet"al grocery store 

owners • or one grocery store owaer'l 

A Well. on thi~ occasion only one ~tore owner. 

Q And whot t• his name? 

A Lauro Yzaguirre. He's tbe owner of the Cash 

Store. 

Q The casb Store? 

A Yeas, sir. 

Q Is he still thereabouts? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Wbat did he tell you wbea he would brina you 

tbes"? 

A Be said, no. P. Carrillo &eve me those orders 

ead he waats you to make ••• welfare orders aod take 

thGm book to him. n And I would ba•e to ask-- I woulcln 't 

do it uaat1l I askod batro ccrrtllo for permission.. I 

would ~urk rtamiro • ••t s it oluay for me to make these 
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Take thetn baek to him and I' 11 pick. them up later. ' 

Q I aotice tbat all of these white slips are 

3 in tbe amount of twenty dollars even. 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A Yes, Rf.r. 

It~ that always the way that :tt'e done! 

A 

Q 

bow many there are? 

A Sometimes they were made for thirty-five. 

Q 

A 

Q And they alvays ba~~ tbis signature oa them 

thol you've ahowa ug? 

A Yeo, slr. 

Q Vhon you get those from tbe oto~e owcer wbat 

de you do wltb thcmt? 

Aftor I make tboaa o~ders? 

Q tto. When tbe at oro owaer brings them to y.u • 

19 vbat ts tho .1.\fUtt thing that you do? 

21 Q 

The county order~ or these white ollp11 here? 

Ro. The aroc:ery store man that b..-taaa you 

22 the t.Jialte slip. 

23 

24 

25 A 

1'e ~e. 

wow. he briA&$ those to you? 

Those 11bt.to sltpe. 1to brings those. Yea. 
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Coaz~lea • Male~----------

Q Now ~h~t do you do with them? 

A I would aake a couot7 velfare order and write 

all those acmes, all I could oo one page. and take tb .. 

baolt to him. 

Q Would you take the white slips with your 

couD.ty order? 

I 

I 

I 
I 

i 
A No, sir. Thoeo white slips, I just throw them [ 

away. 

Q Jut you didn't throw these avay? 
_.;.:·· 

A No. t kept them for ••• reasoa. 

Q What reaao.? 

A ! knew 1 wac doiaa somethiaa wroas ca4 maybe 

I wGs aoias to aot ia trouble oae of thee.Q 4tly• • and I 

'tfaated some ev1deoce. 

Q H~ old ore these? I notice tboy•we not d&tod. 

A They• ret aot ••I'Y old. About o 1·••x- aaci a balf 

Q tou•ve kopt cbec for 4 year aad o bolt? 

A Yee, sir. Or raa:ybe •o~e. I tloo't lulOtt. Jut 

I kept a bwcb for aome neGOil. 

Q Th&re wcs noc cay coottaoay cs to ubore thio 

carae frn QDd uhat thte rcapr&centa. Could you tell us 

oomethlq about it? 

A Those are tbe taYotc«UJ 1 uood to coke, uti 

tbat 7ellot1 shetat ic a ste.te.t!HU'lt. 
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Q Does it ropreeoat a re4ll stateEaeDt that you I 

oent to someono.? 

Q And •bo dld you sead thio ~tGtoaoDt to? 

A Well, at first 1 wasa•t- They rGDtod a box 

~lUmber. Do you see that box ll'Wlther at tbe top? 

Q Yes. 

A Woll, at ft,.at theJ •aid fu me to make a 

ltetOQODt 4Uid CGDd it tO Cluat boa a.uaber. Tben I had 

to so to tho post office tu:a4 set the mail out. tt was 

c012f.q boch to me. 

Q All r1abt. 

A So I juat stopped c:hd.aa tbat. Thoa I just 

kopt them. 1 uko two oopleuJ. 1 bGpt the ortaiaal., 

ood tboa ahe other oae 1 juct ~ott, ltke, fot the ~ater 

Dlstrlce. I ao•e it to tbo py im Chel:'&Gt of tho Water 

D1otrictJ to tho couaty, X aavo 1t to tbe Cowaty Co111d.s• 

oloacar. lf tt•a for tbe school l talto it to the Tax­

Collector Ol' to tlao setiool offt<~JQ. I dida't have to do 

it. I d14 lt uyself. 

Q ft<aa wbea you t~OI)t to cbe t.oa aaa ••tr1eved 

CMQO fl'oc tho bou1 like JM oay0 yeu'd oeDt it to' 

JOUreolf, wbot di4 10U do 11ltla l·t tMa? 

A l dlcta•c haw 'tf'bat t:tl) 4o, so I ookod bl~t, 

nwbat Qll t a•"'n to 40! xe•e 11ho p•ttlag taa11 and 
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Coau:ol.e a .. Maloaey _itl__·-·-
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thea gettia& it back." He eaici, t'Well. live it out to 1 

I 
those foz.oemtta,n you haov. to crtach of the aovenm.,atal 

foltOClOa. So 1 quit ooadtas thot'l b7 liltl11. I just s•v• 

it to tbom at tbe oad of tbo raoatb. I would aivG it 

co tho coeatJ C~locimaoY, btc copy, to tho Water 

Dlstl'ie·t, te hie l!oa-Gt~Ca. 01r to tbe school. I would 

jut cake it to tile aet;ee1 office. to th•.Clty. 1 would 

tahe it t• ·.~llo Ctcy •tftce. 

Q ~~ ~ld 1~ 4o ~lth thie COJJ? 

A Wttb the o•nt 
Q 

A t 1oft abo oepy uwe11 1 sot pa14. 

Q All rigla~. ~- kept tha OOiJY uatl1 JOU lOt 

paldf 

A l$l11 l set p.a14. toe, 1111\". 

Q I aoc&c:c t'Mt Wboc yw t.o•• 1ivea uG hero 

lo a aCJt'Y ffia atd.o. 

A teo~~ ea.sr. 

Q lilt t.booe lavoieoe cut you he9o ote:eobed arc 

. oll orlaiaolot 

A 1 t.';lho W1!'Q to !loop tho ortglaal$ oa the 

lmQioea. X 4t4m' t c:awo ctiotat t'bot ototcaaoat ~ I e•at 

choo ebo eoe>loo oo tfaoy tJ011114a1 t add aaychi.as to 1t. 

Q so choJ' ~~14a' t add tuaythias to itt 

A Yeo • 'ltao t 'o bou c~ I ltQpt tbo OY11iM1 1 
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r invoices 

---· --------········---9-1--------········1 . I 

because I knew they couldn't arld anything to j 

I I 

) i I tbe ¢opie~ • end I sent in the statetlfH\t copy ao they 
ll 
I 

_3 I 

4 l 
I 

wouldn't add-- I knew thoy couldn't because it's not 

the original. 

5 I 
l Q You were concerned that tbe eounty ~•• going 

6 to cheat youZ 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A 

Q 

Q 

Well, I 4on't ltaow. 

Why did you keep tbi.a particular i.ftvoice? 

For tbe same thin& I did the other one. 

Tbts ie an invo1Ge that indicates that it 

11 waa paid in March 11, of 1971. 

12 Yes. 

13 Q Were you keepill& thtaaa at that time because 

14 you were .cfrat.c.i you tfere aof.q co set 1n trouble? 

iS A 

16 auspicioue, tlDd I otarted to quit tbta job but I oeuldn' t .. 

17 1 couldaa' t find a aood job. I d.14a 't went to so out 

1s froa aeuvtdes. 

19 Q 1 jt~e t be vo one o2t two more quest ioas , Mr. 

20 Goaaalea. You •nid that oa oecaetoa yov. ces'bed checks 

21 for people who did aot exist? 

22 A 

24 

25 

Theoe wero cbecks drcwn on the couat:y? 

Yeo. sil'. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A 

Q 

Gonz4loz - Ma lonoy _______________ _g_z_ _____ l 

bmtro Carrillo, the ·couaty commi9.sionttr. 0 
! I a other words • the pooplo who were supr>osed. 1 

to set the meaoy did not preteat yo~ the check~? 

A No, air. 

Q Wew tho ebeek~ endorsed on the back? 

i 
' A 

Q 

A 

I 
What did you do with the$e ebecks7 1 ~ 

I 
I, at first. wbon ve first started, the count7 1 

commisst<mer ttnld tell ma. "Co to tbe bank and deposlt 

tbe QbQek tbat JOG have taad bt-illg rae this caah. !~ so 1 

did it. Wllat I dld, JOU aee, I dida't depoa.lt tho•e 

cboek•. I just tttoto nJ'aft and lanch Supplyt~ acti •Y aatBO I 
on tbo bock. l juot did that at-out t~o tU.as, and thea 

I aot auepictous agaia, arad t onid, ~•t 'm not so1na to do 

that 8QJQOYO. Ubct I'm aoias to 4o ts. 1 •• ao:l.aa to ao 
abead tn:ad dopeott O\foeythiftG that I'•o aoe aad then uko 

eo a ob:oolt fol' tbo ocsb I'm aoiq to bri&lfl book.n 

Q lfQlt t.1 ad.aute. You 4eeiclod thea, OQee •••'•• 

that J'OU Oieht k ljOttlaa lato tfte trouble. ls that 

eorroct? 

Q ADd &boa you decided you would depooit tbeoo 

ohoett• rathor tbaa j\lst caoh tbom? 

A Yoe. otr. And I vroto, ·~J'Ot:' Deposit oaly, 

J'Ql'tl ttad laaoh Supply," by so. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzale~ - Maloney ____ _iJ _____ , 

Q 

5 

A 

Q 

And you deposited them in wba t account 'l 

Tbon bow did you set the montiy back out? 

I bed a cheek signed by Mr. Carrillo. 

So you ttould just depo.sit them and tben present 

0 one of th•se cbecks. ts that correct? 

A Yes. 3ir. Have him atgn a check. He didn't 

s like it. He said that he was setting in trouble witb 

9 tbe income titx.\ I told him, nwell, I'm-- I didn't tell 

10 hf.m anytbiq, but 1 told ayself, HI '• get tin& in trouble 

1 1 brlnalatl t::ha t cash. Maybe one of those <:l.~yA a011ebod.y ts 

12 aolfti to blame 1t on me that I'm bavin& this cash for 

I:~ my 01!Jil \188 • '' 

14 

15 

16 

Q 

A 

1: checks? 

I~ 

19 

~0 

21 

22 

A 

A 

Q 

A 

23 tbero. 

24 

25 1975? 

Now wbo t1llt it tbat aave you these chcu~ke? 

Jtnrairo Ctlrrillo. 

Did c. P. CQ.t'rillo ever give you aay of tbeae 

Wbea w.ao that? 

I eco't stve you tbe oxoct 4ate. 

This ttGUld be somet?hero ta tbe '60' e up uat11 
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AUSTIN. TE"XAS 
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j I 
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! -
! 
I 

5 ! 

·'~ I 
5 I 

' I 
I 

6 
! 
i 

7 I 
8 I 

I' 9 

I 
10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Ne. Later em. About the '70'•· Let~s say. 

tba '70'o. Late '6o•e or early '70'•· 

MI.. MALONEY: Thtlnk you, M.r. Goazal.e~ .. 

CI!Alaw\M HALE a Mr. Slack 1 

~y MJt• S~U:t:: 

Q Duriq tbls po:ri.od of tble, Mr. Ooozalez, 

d:t.d fO\l perfona ara,. duties for the county? 

Q You wect to work at cb<t store every day? 

A Ivery day. Ye& • sir. 

A 

I 

Well, 1 t1oa e ~e~"Gbouee1Mla. I save aaytbiaa I 

I 

Aad thea, what c:U.d. you do for the co\u\ty? 

to thooo ~owhors. Semotieos Ctlrrillo ttould tell me i.e. 

tbo aozoalag to elve uacnetloa• to tbe workers, wbat to 

clo ubaa ho eao aot tbo~ro, aad sS.ve tho• tools or whet.,. 

over tl\oy q,ocado4, or· potta. 

Q 1 cioa•a uadc.u:otcad. tba pl.aco wbet:o yCN 

eol'ko4, tbo\llb 0 tho otel'o, t7aa QOt oa oouaty ··•esra•t 

a ooeGtJ autobouco or eouaay pnpol'ty, ~11e tc? 

A IC tJao etto cwmcy eal'obouoe Aad Mrr. carrillo 

l'aoct blo eouac1 offtco .-~ltt thes-e c••· lt ~a a.11 

tOrJGltho'!t. 

Q 1 ooo. But lt wao oci11 ea11e.,_. 

A 'lbo J1turo aad a~••• 8\lPJJlJ. 

q rouo oa4 n~aob supply? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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. I 
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2 jl 

I 
I 

3 ! 

4 I. 
II 'I 

5 \I 

II 
I 

() I 

7 I 

8 

9 II 
10 

11 

J 2 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

1'\ 

GOD•• laz ... Slack _____ i,5_ ___ . -1 

A 

0 But tbo prcn:\isoG t~erc om1od by the county? 

A Ho. By M•• CQ~rl11o kere. 1 th1Dk. l d0a't 

Q t ·ace. But the eouty juot uted it as a 

we r-ebou so. to the c: rt..sht? 

Q Aloaa ttith the ocon, a4 they bad hardware 

on4 Y4ricua euppll&9 of thett aot\are? 

Q Aloq t1ltb couaty &quipaaont, ead tools aad 

tbet sort of thtag? 

q HOt"O •~ 1esa comiag1o4 tl\Oa. Is tlaat what 

you're tttyiJ13'l 

A Yoo. o!t:. 
" 

Q so 1a woollt1 1• ~1d •omotimc:ua ;orfom 

4utt.oo for cu couaty 41Rd noootiooo--

A t alt1uyo «ltd. 1 oosrhe4 all d.tl7 tbore. sve17 

airluco ooeobedy WfNld coso 4a4 t:l\Qy W0\114 wut ooaetblas 

or oODObodJ wo.ld oo11 thot tboy •codod the coaaicsioaer 

fouo tbio .oacl ebat, 01: ehoy aoode4. colicho coro&Wbere. l 
; 

~co kiad of o ooorotory aad ovo!ftbl!fi ! dtd. -
Q aut t1llot t •m twytaa to net: at ls abet tbero ls 

eo 41otlact,oa botoeoa you~: 4utloo t1ttb the eovaty fU'&d 
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2a-14 rl 
I: 
I ! 
l I 

' 

) 

. j 

5 

(, 
\ 
I 

7 i 
' 

I 8 
j 

I 
<) 1·1 

I 
10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2l 

22 

23 

21 

2<, 

Gopztlee - Slack 

your duties as the moaager of the Qtore? 

cot v&ry much bustaoae the~c. I ua~a, I could do 1.t. 

Yes, etr • 

MR. ILACit: 1 ba\f'O ao further quoctioaa .• 

CIAt'IMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks? 

ay u. aaatca: 

Q I bo •• oao or two quos t ions • Mr. aoaaalo z • 

Wacs the couaty clopoeitqry also this ,J"i»r11t State 

&oak ot Sea D1oaor 

A Voo, alr-. 

q Aad &11 eilo county ~ rrcato veztG dtrawe on tho 

rtwcc lteto JGak lti Sea Dtoso1 

Q ~ silo rou uoreo po1:foautaa your chtaioa fO'It 

e•o •~uro 4ld v.u olo$ uowh p~ivntoly for t'ic ra~ 

amd flomot. lteoo? Did yeu oabo solos aad tl"aaooettoaat 

A 'fOOD Cll". 

Q tfosro yn uad o. P. COI'ri.llo aood fJticado? 

A Yoc1J ol1r. X t1ec bsn aad watoo4 wtctt bu. 
Q ftoOQ vhf.Qo Clli.pa 1 Mit. OOIUlGlGJa .• hoM 709 OYOW 

eooa amy og tlioa pald 01: oooa IM t3t:lftoatm o..- •••horo 

ebat t1G\trG tcoue4 1&\ payeaac of thooo? Tboeo lUte QOttely 

otd. eo o ltpo. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez - Hendricks 

II 
I i i A 

I, 

i' Rave you ever easbed the vouchers? 

A Jo, sir. No. str. 

·l Now this &tateaent here, wa~ this an actual 

s 1 transaction? Did you actually sell this merchaodi9e7 
l 
I 

10 

.11 

I ' 

15 

16 

Q Who did you sell the merchandise to? 

A To ~boever ebe name at the top is. Several 

aover&lllCJat aae.ftci&a. 

Q I see most of these went to the Beuvide• 

Independent School District • 

A 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

You iosued the statement from the zertucbe 

Yes, sil'. 

Aad the aercbsnd1$e came out of the Farm and 

17 Raacb SUpply? 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

zo Cetaerttl Stero? 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 aoeouat? 

A 

25 Q 

Aad you de.posited tbot chock 1a the Zet:tucbe 

Yes, sir. 
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~e-16 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

Goozalez - Mendricka ·-··-· ·····-··· .. J.a ____ 1 

or you drew checks on tt, or tbo CQrrillos drew check~ I 
! 

Oft it. 

One thillS, you stato that the .Judge utted 

cOUt\tY aqulpmeat oa bls private ~Qaeb, dump trucks and 

so oa aad so forth, or trueks ira haul1ag his grain. 

Wbea tills this? 

A. 

C) 

A 

Q 

A 

raot1. 

Q 

Well, t say, a lot of times. 

EveJr1 aoath. 

Well, leat taOath? 

Wall, staeo I stcwt:e4 wolt'hintt thctnre. to ul) to 

Boo, :veu scctod oa oao occasion yott ~eported 

I 

I 

t'hot a truch tmo oomf.Jq ln 1CJ041md with tho judae • t gra1n.
1 

to thot correct? 

A 

Q 

Yes, rd.tr. 

ADd you reported that co tho Department of 

hbllc Sllfety? 

A 

Q 

it: to? 

A 

Q 

A 

0 

H«1 loas ago woe thio? 

LOot JGtlr. 

What mado you report tt te t:be Department of 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



2a-17 ' ~ hliU.c: safety1 
'! 

99 1 

I ' 

-) I ! 
; 1 , I 
! ! 

3 I I 

Well. they etcrted gett1ns after ua for aom• 

thiasa ve V~Axoe tryi.as to help thG people for c>,ur eommua• 
II 

!l ! I tey. 
I I 

5 1 j po-ople of our cOl&ilUl\1t:y. 

I' 
"( Did you talk to the bl&bway patrolman peroom• 

1 l ally. or 

8 I 
did JOU call hbl oa the talephoae'l 

j 
9 I I 

I 
10 

II 

I 2 

14 

A 

Q 

A 

A 

we talked to him; we say him, ee and a fricntd 

Vbo wa • tlle f rtead.? 

1., tbo7 did.o' t otop. 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Dlcl y0\1 oall the ltisbway patrol mol"e tb.oa oaee? 

h. We ttbousht that i.t W~S DO \'Ute • We just 

1s let tbea see if ooe of these days they wcn,oe aota: to aec 

I9 co.qbt.. 1 tk1alt tboJ did oace. I don • t kaov. But they 

20 didn't do o.ayt:b!q. 

21 Mll .. HEtml\ICJtSt 1 bolieve that'• ell 1 

22 bClYG at tbl• ttmo. 

23 

24 9Y MB. liAiltltS: ....,. t 1 1.1 n 

Q 
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:j 

·-/ 

10 

I I 

12 

14 

1:5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

aonza le ~ - 'N4 btars 

II things and evects that bap~ene-d--du--r-1n_g __ t_h_e __ t_ime 

! i 

_______ t 0 Q ___ l 
I 

I 
o. !!. 

I j I 

1 CArrillo was judge. Okay? 

A ("lo respnse.) 

Q Did he e~er tell you to bill tbe county for 

A Yes, stw. 

Q *· JUdse car~illo told you this? 

1. A Yel, sir. 

Q All right, atr. That "' dons while he was 

Q I utioG on theae ta•otces here, th• Z•rtuobe J 

CofiOlKI1 I tor& a, :I.e oaya that yw M•e bardwaft, jao:l.to1i':l.a, 

au·pp11oo. comoat, auto po~to, palat aad tires. Row 1 

aetloo abat oae of ebo b111o to tb~ lettavt<lee ladopencteat 

scbool DI.Dtriet oa Wllft'h ·t'bQ 3rd of 1971, vae for e 

tmetott t'oatnl. 

/:l Yes. air. 

q Ga:ld you tell mG onyttd.ag about tb.Bt tJ:ecto.: 

1t081t01! wt.o 03804 tbe tractor? 

A t da't ~aow. 

0 Dld you WYitG out tbla altp! 

A 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

Coazalez - NQbern 101 

Q Are all of these invoices in your handwriting? 

A They an all ia my handwriting. Yes, sit>. 

Q Vhy did. you f111 out this invoice sbovi.n" 

tractor ro1atal to tho Bocav1dos School Dtctrlc:t? 

A I"UUl\ule I wa.s iaatncted to do it. 

A 

Q. 

A 

Q 

o. P. Carrillo. 

White he ••• distriet ju4ae7 

What dlti be say? Do you recall? 

Welt. tb1w-- Somett~e tbey &et me~cbaadiao 

14 Mr. Cflrtrlllo • or his workers. A 

15 ·- wbea you say nhis workers,~, wbo do you Q 

16 &Ulll? 

17 

18 

19 

20 Yea. 

A 

Q 

A 

well, poople that work for b1a. 

All rl.G.bt. Do tlaGy also work fo1: ·th& eovatyt 

I ehtak thoy we~e pdf.d by the eouaty too. 

21 :aut they di4 a little wo-rk out at tbe raach? Q 

A zz Yes, a.tr. · 

0 

24 a tractor to use oo the raach? 

A No, sl.r. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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5 

I 

'i 

(, 

I 

B 

9 

10 

II 

12 

1.3 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Gonzalez - Wabers 

fi 
. lQ.2_ 

,..---------------·---~--··---·· ------···--··--········· . -l 

: i 
! ! 

I 

1 
I 

I I 

j i 
I 

i 

I 
i 
l 

li 
I 

i 

I 
I 

I 

All 1!'i.abt. Where did this tractor come from? 

Did the county b&ve a traetor? 

A Yes. Tbey'n got several tractor•. 

Q Tbe o•ural Store dida't have a tractor, did 

it? 

A I dob't thtak eo. 

Q You ••• What I'm t~Jln& to flad out is, why 

a tractor natal f.o-r $440 is paid out on March 3rd~ 1971. 

t •a trylag to flu out , you kftow, d td this t rae tot" do 

work oa. the school district land? 

A l 4oa't thillk so. 
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5139 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

.... 
I 

8 

9 

IO 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

103 

Q But Judge Carrillo said, "Gonzalez, you bill 

the independent school district $440 f..>r tractor rental." 

A Yes, sir. 

Q What about two tires? Also the third day of 

March, 1971. Did he say--

A Those tires were taken by the agriculture 

teacher, Mr. Aldretti • 

Q All right. 

A They were delivered to him. I got them and I 

delivered to him. 

Q But in lfact, ~ere these Zertuche owned tires? 

Did Zertuche company buy these tires? 

A Farm and Raach Supply did. 

All right. Farm and Ranch Supply did? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q The County didn't buy them? 

A No, sir. 

Q These w•re Farm aDd Ranch Supply tires? 

A Yes, sl~. 

Q All rigbt. The agriculture teacher comes in 

21 and says, "1 ne·ed two tires." 

22 A Yes, sir. 

23 Q And you said, ·~tne. I'll sell them to you 

24 from tbe Zertuche store." 

25 A Yes, sir. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 104 

Q so you bill zert.uche store? 

A Yes, sir. 
' 
~ 

Q Twri tires? 

A Ye$, air. 

Q The agriculture teacher takes the tires? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q So they in fact got that merchandise? 

A Yes, sir, they did. 

Q Did they in fact get the tractor rental? 

A Who? 

Q The school district. 

A I don't kn•w. 

Q Okay. 

I ooe some bolts and washers bere for the 2nd 

of March. Do you kaow who got those? 

A They we~a picked up by Mr. Ross. 

Q All right. 

A Be did.n' t otan a ticket, so I hate to tell 

him. "Sian • ticket, Mr. B.os.e," tto I did it ayself so 

I would kaow who took the merebandlee. 

Q So thio otgnature oa tbis ori&iaal is your 

otpature? 

A Yeo. I ~rote it. teo. 

Q It's Q aotation--

A What dOGs it a.oy thero? 
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Gonzalez 105 

Q lt saya, "for the baseball field.n 

A Yea. YGa. That's our superintendent. Mr. 

aoss pie~ed u, the aerehandiae. Yes. 

Q So you're oaying that most of this merchandise 

did in fact go to the school district? 

A Yes, sir. Those people there that signed are 

worke~a. bus .dTtv•r• or janitors. Yes. If they're 

aigD.ed there, they've sot the signatures, don·'t they? 

Yea, air. 

Q But this tractor rental deal, yc>u don't know 

t~h<ather thee o.cbool district got it or not? 

A 1 dC)n't think so, sir. I never did see a 

t~nctor working there. That beloD.ged to Zertuche also. 

Q Now, did the county have a tractor that maybe 

· it was tbe county • e tr11ctor tb.Qt was workins on tbe 

oellool dlotrict? 

A Probably, 

q But you'ro not lt:Lyiaa yes or not 

A tfo. 

Q Okay. You just doa' t know? 

A t just doa' t ltaow. 

Q ouy. Jut you do reca 11 Mr. o . P. c.a rrlllo 

tolltq you to fill out this invoice oa the tractor 

rontal'l 

A Yee. str·~ 

CHAllMAH HALl: What is the dattJ of that? 
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Gonzalez 106 

MR. NABERS: March the 3rd. 

Q All right. Mr. Gonzalez, in operating the 

Farm and Ranch Supply, Mr. R. D. Carrillo was county 

commissioner at this time? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q This County barn in which the county supplies 

were kept in and the Farm and Ranch supplies were kept 

lc, do you know who owned that barn? 

A The barn is owned by R.amiro Carrillo. 

Q Okay. And be's the county commissioner? 

A Yes. 

Q And be's R. D. Carrillo? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Now then, have you ever seen these store 

license that we've been given copies of here? 

A YGs, sir. 

Q We1:e these store license n.ailed up on tbe. wall 

or placed in the wall at this business? 

A Yes, 

sir. 

Q Did 

A Not 

asked him once 

Q That 

A Yes, 

sir. That Farm and Ranch licease. Yes, 

Zertuche have a farm and license store? 

in the place there. I don't 

attd be said that tbey did. 

they did? 

sir. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 107 

Q Jut you never have seen it7 

A No, sir. 

Q D1d Zertuche ever pay any sales tax? 

A I think they did. I don't know. 

q You didn't bother w:ttb the sales tax reporting? 

A Not for them. No. 

Q Did you bother with the sales tax reporting 

fo~ the rarm aad Ranch Store? 

A I sure did. Yes. sir. I used to make every 

report e•ery three months. Yes, sir. 

Q You were kind of the manager of the Zertuche 

store too. were you DOt? 

A tee. 

Q Why dtdn't you mnke a ealea report for them? 

A I didn't care for tt&Qt. I wasn•t getting paid 

for it. 

Q You waroa't aetti~l pet.ct for that? 

A No. I don't care. 

Q You said you were only setting paid for by 

tho eouaty. 

A Yes. That's right. 

Q Se tmy t.10Uld you Dl4ke lt for th• ran and 

B.arudta · St orGY 

A IGoause l was thore. 1 was sell:Lng for Farm 

oad Rbneh Supply, m<archaadf.se for Farm and Jl«Ulch Supply. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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I knew that Farm and Ranch Supply had some merchandise, 

so I did it. 

Q But the fact that you sold these two tires 

in the name of the Zertuche Store, that didn't make any 

difference, no le hace, hub? 

A No. Not to me. 

Q Let me ask you this: Did the Zertuche Store 

ever have any Whirlpool appliances? 

A 

Q 

A 

aaler. 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

Why would it have so•e Whirlpool appliances? 

Well, we bou&ht tbem from the Whirlpool whole-

So in fact the Zertuche did have for sale 

11 j 1 Whirlpool appliaacea? 

15 I ! A we didn't have them on the floor plan. we 

16 didn't have any there at the store. Whenever somebody 

17 came in and wanted one I could order it. 

18 Q But the Farm and Ranch Store didn't have any 

19 of these appliances. Is that right? 

20 A well, o~tce we had a washing machine and icebox* 

21 but-. 

22 Q Did you order for the Zertuche General Store 

23 aoae Whirlpool appliances for someone? 

24 A Not that I remember. 

2s llui _____ Q _____ O_ha_·_Y_· __ B_u_t __ y_o_u--do __ kn __ ow~-y~ou~·~h~a~d~a--b--o-ok __ t_h_•_r_• ____ ~ 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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you could order out o£7 

Tbe 

A Y•s, sir. 
-' 

Q Did you order these invoices 

forms. 
' 

A No. Thcay were furnished for 

Q They were furnished to you? 

A Yes. 

Q Who fu~iehed them to you? 

A Mr. Cerrillo. 

Q Judge Carrillo? 

and statements? 

me. 

A teo. Rca ordered them from a man from Laredo. 

Texas, l peso. I can't recall his name. 

Q But they uere given to you? 

A tes, sir. 

Q Do you ba9e any invoice~ Were they invoices 

that shotted the Farm and bAoh Store, were they the same 

type iavoicea? 

A The same tbt.ng. 

Q Did you poreoaQlly see or have you personall 

seea county truck$ on JudSG Carrillo's property? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q Whlle he uca diotriot judge? 

A Yes. slr. 

Q Let • ask you tbis: You stated rn:eviously, 

1 believe, that some of thta soaey tlult ca•e into tbe 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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. r···----- Gooza lez ---------------·-··-··········· .. ·ll"O .. __ .... 1 

I! Zertuche accoUJtt that want into the Farta and Ranch Store I 
i 

I 
I 
' 

II 
i 

I 

! I 
'I 
I 

I 
I! 

account, some of that 1Xl0ney was spent for payment of 

b4nk notes of Judge Carrillo. Is that correct? 

A I guess so. Yes. 

Q Well now, let's talk about what you know and 

no guesses. Okay? 

A Yes. Yes, sir. 

Q Do you actually know? 

A Yea. 

I 

I 

I 
Q waa any of the money that came from the zertuch1 

Store that eame out of that bank account, the store's 1 

bank ac4ount, was an) of that money spent for Judge 

carrillo's notes? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q was any of it spent for the commisaioner•s 

notes? 

A Not from the Gene~al Store--

Q OkQy. From the Genoral Store. Okay. Always 

tbe monoy ~nt into the Farm·and Rench Store? 

A Yos, elr. 

Q Aa4 froa the l't.lrm and Ranch Stot;'e they paid 

tbet.r aotes? 

A YcUJ, sir. 

Q Do you kf.low of your 0\fll personal knowledge 

that Judge Carrillo got groceries for the chits that 
I 

U---------------------------------------------------------~ 
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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1 n--were issued? 

2 

_\ 

:j 

5 

6 

I 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I : 
i! 

'' It 

i l 
I 
I 

I 
II 
lj 
I, . I 
lJ 

I 

I 

I 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How do you know this? 

A I know. 

Q Dld you personally see him pick up groceries? 

A Yes, si~. 

Q And in return, the store owner came to you 

and said, "JU4ge Cal'rlllo's bill ia twenty dollars. 

Issue a chit for that/' or, ~·a hundred dollars." How 

did that work? 

A That store owaer wou14 give me tbat whole 

buach of thiqs there, aad I had to make about three 

buadr4'd dollArs wo1rtb of ue.S"chaadiae that was picked up 

by b. CQrri1lo or bia workeX"s. 

Q Dld you eve'E' got aay groceries that way? 

A tto. sll". 

Q Di4 you eve~ get aay of the cash that wheoever 

you 'tMlDt to tOtm to get soae cash for Judae Carrillo, 

dlcl you enr g&t 4'\ay cash? 

A Bo* sir. 

q Did. you evalr g$t eay cash out of the Farra and 

aanoh sco~rG? 

A No. sir. X could get any m.erchendiee I wanted 

frea 'Jt.QJ:O. ·I tht.ak I had a riaht to. su11 items. 

like lf I aoe<led t1 pound of aails t•d juat get it from 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Goazalez 

there, for my own use. Yes. But small items. 
-u~---~ 

I didn't 

go and get aa item that cost over five dollars. No. 

But if I needed something I think I deserved it. 

Q Were you taking this from the Farm &nd Ranch 

Store? 

A From the Farm and Ranch Store. 

Q Or the Zertuche Store? 

A From the Farm and Ranch Store. Yes, sir. ., 

Q And you would use this on your place? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did anyone ever come in and pay you in cash_ 

fo~ merchandise that came from the Zertuche Store? 

A No, sir. 

And tbQt was always done by drafts or warrants. 

15 Is that co't'rect? In other words, checks issued for the 

16 payment of tbe merchandise given? 

17 

IR 

19 

20 

21 

Yeo, sir. 

Q Row then, was the merchandise ta this store 

comingle~ How did you kaow the County nails from the 

ra~ and aaach Store nails? 

A Vell. tt•a very easy. It all depends where 

22 I put them ia the store. 
' \ 

23 Q You made very sure that you put the county's 

24 nail here--

25 A Yes. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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i 1. 

Q --ead tba Farm aad Baaeh Store nails bore? 
I' 

' i A 
I 
i 

5 I 

.j 

5 A If 1 had eo.e. Yae. If not I wo~ld at•• 
() them • · 

Q 

s Bnaob SCore to cell the• to tbe Couaty1 

10 

I 2 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

'A 

Q 

A HJK\t OOCO\lllt? 

!he Zertuche 4loci!YUat. 

ThGf DOftr oo4 tlllf I!GI'OhCUld tse • 

»at yw'd bill it t~~-,r..-qb tile ze~tuehGi 

Q 

e~~ t:M8 O(lCO ls to abo ram oat~ lllacb Ot_. or ta to 

-td!O- C¢:l!!OtJ pS"OoiMt(l; ,_ woro "trJ' oo~tala co tt.oep 1t 

oo,oa-a~d? 

m.t 
OOSOtliOO t11aClt hol.OatPd tG eliO C""t1 boloqcad 

'Ct?J etao· CS!9CV& d\at k~04 ae ehO rana llad Maob 

lbo~il •• U1o Jrtlm orad l!Oeeta~ 
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Q tee, but if one dida't have S.t tb.Ga you'd 

sell it: to the ochor oae sa.d bl11 tho othet: oaa"l 

A I'd b~~ow 1t. 

Q Ob, ,.. • 4 bolrt:cm it. Okey. But o ltmyo t:ba~e 

vca c 'bill to tbo Couaty tthCDDO\fOJt you hor~d t.t. Is 

that co~rect? 

Q Did t.b:o Faa aa4 twaeb Store evow bo7t~OW i'I"Oill 

tllc COUt)'? 

Q Go it • o kiad of tfbeao'f'Or eo got low )"OU' 4 

bon• f~:ea tho other oao aad. tile other oaa fnm tbc 

A Ycs, Gil:. 

q Wllo w.u14 oecter tbe npp littQ feY ·alae ram 

and aoaeh store? 

A 1 will. 

Q Dld. JU41G cacrt11o Otr4ol' oay. oafpl.toc? 

A S¢mGt~s bo did. 

q SOiletimoB 'bQ did. 411 rtif3bt., . Who w•ld. 

e»ttdo» mnpp ltmo for tliO ccu.att)"t 

A '1'1to coamianioaow. 

Q Did ycm evow owdot Sfitl1 c-ty oupplloo? 

A W$11. ·: if tbo c~~, ec::Dtoo!t»a.enr told. • te, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 

Q So somEttimes you did order for the County as 

well as for the Farm and Ranch Store? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q But you never did order any supplies for 

Zertuche? 

A Never. 

Q was there any indication, or did anybody ever 

tell you, "Let's don't order supplies for the Farm Store 

because the County bas them in stock"? 

A No. 

Q Whenever you'd get low on nails or low on nuts 

end bolts in tbe County then you'd reorder from the 

County. te that right? What I'm trying to get at is, 

was there any system whereby you made sure tbe County 

did.n't have 1\ product but tbca Farm and Ranch Store did., 

so they could bill it throu1h Zertuche? 

A No. I alwa.ys kept merchandise at the J'arm and 

RAnch Supply. What l aeeded I bad it all the time. 

Q Either you bad it all the time in beth s~orea? 

A No. Ia Farm and Mnch Supply. 

Q You alwayc had plenty of suppliee ia the FArm 

and Bauch Store? 

A Well, not pleaty,' but what we .used. Those 

oaleo1.11oa used to so e'f'Ory week so 1 ordered merohaudisG 

every wecak. 
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116 
Q · Did you have more supplies for the store than 

for the County? 

A Yes. 

Q So it just kind of happened to work out that 

you would always eell the supplies from the Farm and 

Ranch Store to the County through Zertuche. Is that 

right? 

A Right, sir. 

Q But nobody ever told you to do that? 

A What? I didn't get you there. 

Q Nobody ever told you-- Let me ask you this 

question. Let me back up and rephrase my question. 

Did Judge Carrillo tell you whenever you got 

low or whenever the County didn't have something to get 

it out of the General Store? 

A What would I get out of the General Store. 

I di.da' t get-

Q well, say they needed two tires. 

A Yes. 

Q And the County didn't have two tires. 

A (The witness nodded.) 

Q But the General Store had two tires. 

A The General Store didn't have no merchandise. 

Q All riaht. The Farm aad &aAch store then. If 

the7 bad two tires, did they e'tex hav• any tires? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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coazal.ez ---------------- - -tl7 I 
Or we order them and get 1 

p---------------· 
I i I A Sometimes. Yes~ 

! I 

them, or we went to Alice and get them or order them. 

Q So then they would bill through Zertuche 

the County? 

A RiSbt• sir. 

Q or the school district? 

A Right, sir. 

Q Do you know for a fact whether or not the 

tires that are on this invoice, who bought those tires 

originally? The Farm and Ranch Store or the County? 

A The Farm and Ranch Store. 

Q Okay. Thank you. 

Did you peJ;'aonally see Judge Carrillo while 

be ttaa district ju4se fill up his persoaal aut.omof:»ile 

rith gasoline? 

A I 41da't aee him. I &atr some of his workers. 

Q SOII&G ef hie wo'll'k.ero? 

A .Yoa. 

Q ht you never did see bim. do it? 

A Bo. mo, air. 

Q Did you ever do itt Did you ever fill up 
r 

yo•• pickup with g4!tso1ine? 

A Ylfis. !hoy used to fura!sh me a.o:so1iae. tes. 

1 did. They gavo ae some aa so line. I uoa4 my own 

tnck aad tboira, arl-d I used to do some Couaty work. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Mr. Carrillo gave me about ten gallons a week. 

Q From the County pump? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did the Farm and Ranch Store have gasoline 

there also? 

A No, sir. 

Q Only County gasoline or County d1•se1t 

A Yes, sir. 

Q But you really don't know whether or not Judge 

Carrillo told these employees to fill up the personal 

vehicles, do you? 

A Yee. They would go there and they would say, 

"O. r. said for me to fill the truck here." And I told 

tbcao. ''Well,. I've got to ask Ramiro." And some tiDies 

if ltam.iro waa tbere I'd ask him and he'd say, "Yes, 

so ahead end fill it up." So I'd fill the• up. 
' 

Q But Judge Carrillo, you never did bear him 

tell one of Chose employees to fill a personal truck 

or personal car? 

A I guess that once he did. Yes. 

Q While be was district judge? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q t•m curious as to how this Zertuche St~re 

originated. Did it just one day appear on the scene 

and they hand you these statemcnits and tell you bow to 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 
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1 G I 

11 start b1.lling7 ,I 
. I 
I I '', 

A Yea, sir. 

Q But you don't recall the exact date when that 

.1 happened? 

A No, sir. 

Q Do you knov who told you to start that procedurej? 

10 

II 

I 2 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

R.amiro Carrillo and 0. P .. Carrillo. 

Both of them told you? 

Yes, sir. 

Did they tell you thls: Did 0. P. Carrillo tell 

you this while be was district judge or before he became 

district judge? 

A He was county attoraey at that time, I think. 

MR. NABERS: I believe that's all. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster. 

16 BY MR. KASTER: 

17 Mr. Oonzelez, the stor• where you worked, did 

ta it have a a tara Oil the front of it that said • ''Farm and 

19 Rench supply"? 

20 A 

21 q 

22 A 

23 Q 

'24 up Gftd 

25 A 

No. sir: .. 

R.o sign? 

Ro, 

Dtd 

order? · 

Yes, 

str. 

YeN have a counter t1here people would come 

str. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Goualea 

Q oao fo~ zo~~oho oa4 oao fo~ rc~ cad aoach? 

A It(abt, olr. 

q Ae I umrst:OAd it 11 your laotruetlons wore 

lf '"' oold otapcflltsa to cbe Cftety you just w~rote it 

ea GaQ ~atsteY. ead lf roe oold to the pub1tc you wTote 

t.t ea tho otit~.:r'C'? 

A alallt. oi~. 

Q You !wpe turooh of ti'Aoe!. orad mae tllon .Svpltmtcal 

cu: ead.pU.te Cl$pleo of oaela taveioe'l 

A 1\lght,·olw. 

Q so the~ a~Jo poop to ~14 cote ... , tlaoa you • 4 

coat! them eeo ot tho oad •• etto llO&tb. t.lftl" pou~d keep 

OiiAQt 

/A n~Bbt, ol~. 

q Doe~ of e~~oa Uosttelll t 

A Yoo, cir. 

Q so ehovo' o Juoc oao oeowo, btat ,.. 've goc 

t~o J:OCioeo~rcf 

A lli81U~. olr. 

Q Olulr. tfM7, you t1oro trao117 ruGtras tho Fom 

oad DOacla 8Vt'P17 oeosro, aa4 t.f vn'4 a•t 
cbo oolooaoa eomao hy, you•• ow4att lt? 
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Q Now if the County needed something they'd 

2 i call you, some Commissioner or worker would say, "r.:e 

3' need something and we're out," and then you'd just give 

4 it to them and then just write a bill to the County? 

(, : 
I 

II' 

7 i 

8 I 

10 

A Right, sir. 

Q Okay. Now, we've been given here some things 

that look lik~ Also you handled the checks that you 

say--looks like they're from the County, and "R and B" 

would indicate to me it's "Road and Bridge Fund, 11 but 

these variqus warrants, I just totaled some up here for 

' 
11 a couple of months. They run to quarter thousand, five 

~ 

12 thousand, three thousand, different months., total. 

13 Would oace a mollth you get several checks from the 

14 County tn payment of invoices from Zertuche, off these 

15 lnvoicea you just total them up, bill the c~unty for 

16 whatever it was, and then you'd get these warrants back 

17 from the couoty thet you would deposit to Zertuche 

1a acceuat'l 

19 A l.i&ht, s1r. 

20 Q And then yo11'd writo another check and transfer 

21 it,to Farm and anach? 

22 A lt.i&ht. 

23 &. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, those are 

24 just the CouRty. 

25 MR. lASTER: Right. I understand. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez ·------122----- -l 
' 

MR. CANALES: The other one is the school.\ 

This is the school, but you do the same thing 

for the Water District? 

A Tha same thing to all of them. 

Q So that just for the County alone, you're 

doing--here's one month for five thousand dollars worth. 

I don't kaow, whatever each one is. was the county the 

biggett buyer? 

A Yea. air. The County was the biggest buyer., 

Q Yo'tll dlda' t order tbtUJG forms for Zertuche. 

They just sa,., lf you say, "I'm running low on forms," 

you'd tell oae of tbG Cerrillos you're running low on 

forsn11 and they'd get you some more? 

A· Yea. sir. 
\ 

Q For eithor one. I meen, you'd say, "I'm 

nnniag low on Farm and B.aneb, u or "I'm running low on 

zertucbca." 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Those wero just you~ o~ders. They told you, 

ulf we aell anythlata to govermaont:al agency you write it 

on Zertuche"? 

A lli&ht. 

Q Did the people ever question it, why it was 

comins from-- Ob, tbero wos no sian on the store. Riaht? 

! 

A J.lgbt. 

U------------~--j 
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Q Did aaybody say, "How cosae1" or t:hey didn't 
I 

i 
I 
! 

evo'l' question you why you've sot cme1 They didn't oar~J?\ 

A 'Well. aoae County wol"kerG, onee as.:~- me and \ 

I told them why. Yea. 

Q What did you tell them? 

I 
I 
i 

A Woll, they told me to do this because I eoul4nrt 
I 

aell it throuah tbe Farm aDd a&Dch supply; that I had j 

to sell it through the ze~tut!he Geaaral Stox:e. 

Q But in fset all che money from either accouat 

10 ~ao 1•taa ta the ce~rilloo o~ the o~r• of tbG eterot 

11 tbo ram ea4 &aach store? 

I 2 

I.~ 

14 

I 5 

16 

17 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

q 

A 

Q 

Oka,.. 

MI.. BSTE&: Tbot' o all I have. 

CHAXIMAN HALl: Mr. Doao ldsoa. 

All cz,f tbooo OJ'O fo&- the period of Mattcb 111 

25

1 ul ___ •_•_b_•_o_t __ D_l_o_t~-l_c_t_? __________________________________ ~ 
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Gonzele~ 124 

Yes, sir. 

ADd at that time Judge o. P. Carrillo was 

District Judae. Right? 

A Yeo, sir. 

He was not on the school board? 

6 A '71? No, I don't think be was. on the school 

7 board anymore. 

8 Q no you know if at that time Ramiro Carrillo, 

9 wbat position did he bold? 

10 

II 

12 

13 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Commissioner. 

He was county co11i'ftlssioaer? 

Yes, sir. 

was any of their relatives on the school board 

14 at that time? 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

Yes, sir. 

Who? 

.71? 

In '71. 

I think .hia daddy end a grandson-- I mean, 

20 a nephew of hia, of the Carrlllos. 

21 Q Weroon the school board of the Beuvides 

22 tradeptntdeat School Diatriet? 

23 A Yes. 

2'4 Q No~. prior to the time that Judge Carrillo 

2s became diotrtct judge 11 he was on the school board. Is 
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AUSTIN, TEXAS 



3-23 IT 
l! 
I! 

~ 
~ 
i 

3 

4 

5 

6 

.. 
' 

Gonzalez 

that correct? 

A He was there for a while. Yes. 

Q Do you remember about when that was? Was 

that in the e~rly ~60's would you say? 

MR. CANAI.ES: I believe that book there 

will r•fleet some place toward the end the point at 

which he-if you want an ex.act date-it has the minutes 

of the committee of the school board meetings wherein 

the resignation took place. I 
I 

10 

II instructed I 
MR.. DONALDSON: okay. 

Q Now, on these invoices tbat you were 

12 

13 

to use for Zertuche, if 1 ccme in to Farm and Ranch and 

I bought a roll of barbed wire, you'd price that out 

I4 on a Farm and Ranch invoice. Correct? 

IS A Yes, sir. 

16 Q If it was a salce to the County or some other 

17 political subdivision, you'd price that out on ao 

lB invoice out of Zertuche? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

23 prices? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Right. air. 

Would you price them the same? 

Yes, sir. 

You were not in~tructed to use any different 

(No response.) 

In otber words, you uould sell to the county, 
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Goozalon 

t ~~ebool at tho 

1 II f.adt.UUClet 

sc'fDQ pl:"ice that you. would sell to 

I 
3 I A I said l uoulcl. 

I 
4 Jl l! 
s to oay that t1lat tnolt that ~" betq uaod to haul 

6 araia <ltd aoe l'ulve ce\lllty licoase plcu:es oa it? 

7 

8 

9 

10 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A 

0. 

A 

q 

A 

Yeo. 

i00 0 Oilr. 

~c &hot ot ~~ ciao ~baa bG ttao diotrict ju4ge? 

voo., otw. 

~ tho bu114onott t'bot you NfClrarod to, how 

1s do~ baoo c~e ••o bulldonor thot's ia tbo ropol~ shop 

19 ta soa DtooG e••a~ ~loaeo as ~•co carwtllot 

.w 

22 Q 

24 

25 

1 hattt1 folt a foct abot bo • o sot it I'Oat:c:uJ to 

Yo a. 

Ia bo doooa't oea 1t? 
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127 I 
I don • t know how it works. 1 mean ho • s eitbe~ A 

i 
Q Wbot you're saying is, you dor&' t know whether 1 

ho owns it or not. Is thQt correct? 

A I tbiak be owns them. 

on them, $3,000 a month. 

How ofton does Judge CQrrillo come by F&ra 

and lt<\lftcb store? 

A Well-

Q l!Jho do you work for t\OW? 

A County. 

Q Do you still go dowa to the Farm aad Raneh 

storE£ every day'! 

A I quit lnst year. MaJ. But I'm atill workin; 

for the County. I quit Farm oa4 Ranch aad n~ I'm 

aaotbor place now. I vo~k as a Welfare clork. I gtve 

out orders now. 

Q Do you s1vo out the t~hito slips? 

A Sir? 

Q Do you SiVG 0\lt tbo white slips? 

A No. I bavo aa oriaf.aal welfare o .. dcr book 

they furnisbcad whGo 1 sta:rted world.aa. I woat over 

tbare end asked tbam for tbat. I 'tfaon*t aotaa to work 

at :rcrm end aaaoh supply aaymoro. I 4tda' t ~oat to be 

la tbst place. I ttent 41nd talhod to couat7 Judae Archer 

P4rr aad caxpl.tli.aed to hba cad ho sald 1 well. t·hat lf I 
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conaa1&a --128 
could do this job, be lp some pe.ople out tba t couldn • t 

get 1D touch with Carrillo, the CouDty CO'U\'IIissioner, 

because be•s the one thot oppolated tboso county ordor:a. 

I told h1m I'd try; if I eould do it, I'll do it. ~'I'm 

almoot auro that I cca do it.- '11 told b1m tb&t I can. 

Q So you're still goiag down to the office 

••o#f dey aad workiaa? 

A Whet offtc&t 

Q Di~ VelfaztC) office o:r wherever it is your 
1 

uortt ts k1a8 doao. 

A 1 1 vo sot my~ offlce ia •Y ho-.. 

Q But you wct'l'k for tho county. Right? 

Q KOve 1• oorn:oa o cbock. tld.s moatb? 

A sts-1 

Q 1!1·~ yw sottoa 70111t' eltoclt this moatb? 

A l aot o eboch loot aoath • kt 1 cloa• t tmow tf 

I'm SOill6 to acat le tlt!:e smth •• aot. 

Q You cloa • t ka«7 if. yeu1 t:o f·t .. ed 7et? 

A l 4oe' t haot:J fer au~. Thoy cltlf.atetf they ho~m 

1oil.4 uo o9f. but aobody l.a . tcal11&4 ae "you' ~o lat4 off ... 

Q 

A 

OM ., 
'l'ou'B"e still ~o~htag c•oush? 

ro •1 kaG\?'lodtso. ,oo. t's 1ot•s 

tho eomtll nad co11 ebom • t'WbCI"O • t tlJ' 

ltft. DetiAl.DSOH: 1'ktt'o ell 1 
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Gonzalez 

CHAiltMAN HALE : Mr. Laney. 

BY MR. LANEY: 

Q Mr. Gonzalee, you testified that you were 

aiven theme blank checks, except they were already 

signed checks and you filled them ln. Who told you to 

till those checks in? 

A By Zertuche? 

Q Yes. 

A They did. Mr. Carrillo. 

Q Okay. Judge Carrillo told you to fill in--

gave you the orders to fill in the cheeks? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q When these checks cleared the bank and came 

back with the 'bank statements, dicl they come to you? 

A No, sir. Not the Zertuehae. 

Q And that's the one you testified that were 

o~,~ .. ill:;(Sebool •a4 one of them in the Army or something? 
. • ·~ 0~-~ . 

A Yea. He's a school teacher now. That is 

Arturo. 

Q 1 But after you took the cheeks to the bank you 

nevor saw them again? You didn't get a statement. you 

don't know what it wtts spent for or anything? 

A No. sir. 

Q You testified that you thought some ear pay-

meat• were made out of that or something? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Yes, sir, because I wae told once to send a 

car poymoct to-- ItO bad a aote at tho First St&to Bank 

of Alice, aad. for me to SJeftd a payment. 

Q OUt of this General Stora th•n you seat a 

payment ona time for a ear 9aymoat, filled in to thi1 

flaaftce company or tho baak or wbatev•r? 

A To the bank. Yaa. 

Q At ~hose orders were tbeso? 

A Ml'. Ccrrillo beft. 

Q Aud do you k.aett who thet car beleqed to? 

A 1 doa' t kl'lOtr. I tld.nk it beloased to Aroturo, 

I 
' 

I 

01r t!IQybo Mlr. Carrillo bOUght it aad put it uftder Artus-o' a I 

Btl~ aact thO aote uadet:' Arturo' a aamo. But soaehw f. t 

t10U'h0d • I. l\'lCIUUl • 

Q wt:ult cro you mahba aw, thto job you •.-o got 

uieb Wolfaro? Wbot do you moho Detf ta tltat jollt! You 

oot4 ,.,. wro matd.as 250 bock yoa.to'l"-

A t•a aot&taa $500 a aoatb. 

Q $$00 a taoatb? 

A ·tea. 

Q 'fhlo ••pae" tbtlt yn tuJed to uork wt-h thtlt is 

~. 4ocoooo4-

A Yo.o. 

<'! . Vbot vas bto aoao? 

A Pat coeaoloa. PQtricio. 

~----:------J. 
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Q Was he on the county payroll? 

Yes, sir. 

Q He never did get a check out of the General 

Store or the Farm--

A Never. He just got a check from the County 

just like I did. 

Q Did he also cash his own check or did you 

cash it for himr 

A No. He also cashed hia own check. 

Q These slips that you testified--the food slips 

or whatever that you testified that you knew in your 

knowledge, that you had knowledge that Judge Carrillo 

did buy the food with these slips or whatever, what was 

your official capacity as the receiver of these clips? 

What authority did you have to receive those slips? 

A Well, I ttorked at the commissioner's office 

and I did all this work for him. 

0 You were doing that for the commissioner? 

A Yes. I had to ask him though, and he had to 

give me permission to do it. I never did do anything 

unless I asked him to. 

Q But you were his agent then? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q These .people that brought you these slips 

that said that thoy-- Did they say that Judge Carrillo 
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Gonzalez ··-Tl"l ____ l 

came in and bought this stuff? 

A 1 asked him once and he kind of.hesitated a 

little, and I think he told me that- He said, ~'Well, 

tt•s merchandise and I've got to get paid for it. He 

just gave me this for you to make me an order." So 1 

asked Carrillo, the other Carrillo, and he said, "Go 

ahead and give it to him." So I gave it to him. 

Q Okay. But be never did tell you that it was 

the Judae's truck that came in there and picked this 

stuff up? 

A I asked him, .,Who picked this up?" He said, 

"O. P. or his: workers." PQtricio or 'lotil4s. 

Q Did you ever see him personally picking this 

stuff up? 

A Well. oceas:lonally I went to that stcre and I 

s&w this man, rat~icio Garaa, who works foro. P., getting 

oome merch4ad1a• and just signing it. 

Q You aaw his workers plck it up but you never 

41d see him personally? 

A Wbo? 

Q ~dae Ccrrillo. 

A I saw him pick up some merchandise aac:l just 

sigping that white slip, just an adding machine white 

slip. 

I 
i 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

CHAtllMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson. 

LJ.....-_____ j 
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Gonzalez 133 
{No response.) 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington. 

BY MS. WEDDINGTON: 

Q I'm interested in the checMyou were talking 

about. You said in response to a prior question that 

you never did see the bank statements on the General 

Store? 

.A No: ma • am. 

Q Did you ever see the bank statements on the 

Farm and Ranch Supply Store? 

A Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am. 

Q Those came back to you? 

' ; 

I 

I 
A Yes • ma'am. I kept them on file and I did •11-1 

kept them. Yes. I 

Q Did you actuall~when you wrote a check, did 

you actually-- Well; were the checks they save you ones 

something like this? 

A They were big checks in a big book. Yes. 

Q Were there three on a sheet? 

A Business type checks. Yes. 

Q 

A 

Okay. Three on a sheet or something like that? 

1 Yee. ma'am. 

Q Okay. And when you wrote 4 check, would you 

then put on the little stub-- Did they have a little 

stub? 
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A Yes, ma'am. 

Q And you would write on the stub what you had 

made the check for. when it was, and all that kind of 

etuff7 

A Yes, mQ'am. Sure. 

Q You testified earlier that they would give 

you ten or eleven checks. 

A·1 That was tbe Zertuche General Store. 

Q What about the Farm and Ranch Store? 

A No, because B.amiro Carrillo was there every 

4ay, so wbenevor 1 needed a check I just tell him, 

ttlttt!li''f I $Ot to 1114ke this payment," orui got to do ... _,, .. _.,.I 

thlo aad 1 need ~ cbeck," and he'd gt.ve it to me. 

Q Okay. So for the Zertuche Store they would 

t.Si9a you ehoeho alrecdy otaued? 

A Yos. u 'am. 

Q But for Fera end Ranch you would write out the 

check end tbGa shCMf it to him an4 he would sian it? 

A SOIIIettaec. and soatett.mes I just tell bill, 

"Rtnaii"Ot l SOt tO •ke this paymeat, u or "1 got to do 

th:l.a•" aa4 be di,da't hesltato to ai.ve me seve.ral. They 

we•o blaak too. 

Q Did 4aybo<ly ovor check that? Did the County 

COIIJ!Stooieaer ct tho oad of the •oath take that checkbook 

oad l•ctk throuah it to OQO vhat checks bad been written 
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and whether it balanced or anything like that? Did he 

ever check that? 

A He probably did. Yes. 

Q But he never asked you--

A He looked at it when he signed the checks. 

Sometimes he went over it. Yes. 

Q How much was the balance in that account 

usually? 

A Well, sometime&-- Well• they always had money. 

Let's say, $8,000 or more. sometimes tbey were broke. 

sometimes I had some checks come back, this and that. 

Q What was the most you ever remember having in 

that checkbook? 

A In the account1 

Q Yes. 

A. Two or three thousand dollars at ttmes • 

Q They never did seem to express nay concexon 

of just si&niaa a check for you on that account when 

they never looked at the book, tbat you could have 

written it for the whole a•ount? 

A They never did. 

Q Why do you suppose that was? 

A thoy trusted me. 

Q Did anybody ever ask you to try to collect 

ev:Ldeaee about whtlt wao going on at the sto:te'l 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



r' 

3-34 I \ \ 
I I 
! l 
I . 

2 
• t 

3 

I 
<i I 

I 
I 

5 i 

6 

7 l 

l 
8 l 

I 
I 

9 l 
10 

ll 

12 

0 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

)~ 
-/ 

Gonzatez ------·-·t36 

A I already testified to the Grand Jury in 

San Antonio:~ csbout the same thing that I 1m doing right 

ft(Rf. 

Q Were you subpoenaed to go and testify in san 

Antonio? 

A Yes, u'am. 

Q Who was the first person that asked you if you 

had any knowledge about things that bad happened at the 

store and if you'd be willing to tell about them? 

A You mean federa 1-

Q No. Juat ~nybody. 

A Ask me that question again. 

Q Okay.. Wllo was the first person that asked you 

if you would be rilliq to tell somebody in authority 

about what was aoing on in the store? 

A You mean risbt now or--

Q Just aay tt.o. WbGaOYQr you decided you were 

soiq to tell about it. 

A Woll. nobody did. I di.d it on my OWD. 

Q Who did ,.ou go to-? 

A To whet? 

Q Oby. ~ll yeu dcacid&d to do it on your ovn • 

what did you do? 

Mil. CA.lfALESt Ms. Weddington. I believe, 

lf t'• aot ad.ot&k.OD, tilts mea WtlD subpoeaaed by the 
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Gont&alez 

Federal Grand Jury. 

A Yea. Tbat' s what I told you. The Federal 

Grand Jv.ry. Yes • 

Q How did they know to subpoena you? 

A Because it a 11 started on t.he lAte Mr.• George 

B. Parr's case. They called •e--
Q Yes. 

A I think the first people that started was 

Pat Gonzalez. He was a City Alderman, and they asked 

him if he wac working and everything. He said, 11 1 work 

for tbe county aDd I'm work1D8 at the Farm and Ranch 

Supply." Tboy asked him, ''Who else works there?" and 

be said, ncleo:fas Gonsalez." so riaht then it hit me, 

and I was called to come aad testify in San Antonio, 

I guess. 

Q Wbo came and talked to you about testifying? 

A I don't roccll tbe aamo of the man. 

Q Bed you given tb&t o&mQ 1nfermat1on to anybody 

prior to the time somobody csmB and talked to you about 

teotifyiaa7 About being subpoenaed? 

A When? Ri&ht now? 

q Okay. Let me rephrase it. 

A Yes. 

Q Hcs anybody, before you were subpoenaed, ever 

asked you to try to collect some evidence about what was 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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going on at the store? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q Nobody ever has? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q What about when you went to talk to Judge 

Parr about the po4sibility of working for him7 Did he 

mention that it ~ould be nice if you could collect some 

evidence at that tiae? 

A He didn't ask me anything about evidence, nor 

Mr. Parr, Archer Parr. 

Q Did he ask you anythins about what was going on 

at the store? 

A No, ' . ma.am. 

Q He didn't ask you anything about that? 

A No, ma'aa. 

Q The. subjeet never came up? 

A. NOt tDS.'a.m. 

Q Did be ask you .to talk to anybody else about 

it? 

A Ho, ma'am. 

Q Has anybody e l$& other thiln the G'l'and Jury in 

San Aatfl)Dio showed any interest tn what you. m1ght have 

k.D.oma about what was lulppeniag at the store? 

A Well. two other IRS's called me about. let•s 

say. o year ago. Thoy celled me by phone. They said, 
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"Mr. Gonzalez, this is So-and-So. Will you please come 

to the Federal Building, the Post Office. at Alice, 

Texas?" And I told him, uWhat for?" And be said, "Well, 
,· 

we're your friend So•and-So.tt They were IRS investi· 

aators, I guess. And I told him, "Well, if I have to 

I will. but I can•t go right now because I'm by myself 

at the store. If I go over there it's going to bave to 

be after five o'clock." So that's what I did. Wait 

·until five o'clock and weat over there, and tb•y bad 

caverythitlg written down. They just asked me questions, 

aad tbey recorded; they had a recorder, and they asked 

qu~tctions and recorded everything I said there. 

Q Durin& that whole time that you were working 

for $250 a month, did you ever ask for a raise? 

A I gave him some hints sometimes that I needed 

more money, but he never did say anything about gi.vina 

me • raise. 

Q Okay. Do you know the na•es of some of the 

drivers t'bose trucks you've filled up for work that you 

think wtls on Judge Carrillo's .Land? 

~ Judae carrillo? Yes. Tomas Elizando, Juan 

Hioojoae. Patricio Garza, George Zertuche, Jr. I guess 

thoeo e.M tbe main ones. 

Q Are all of those people still workf.ag f-or 
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A Yea. And the County. 

Q Are they setting paychecks from both? 

A I don't kaow if they're gettin1 from both, 

but some of them are gettins-- Sa.e of them have already 

quit, but some of them are getting paid by the County. 

Yea. 

Q Did anybo<ly keep an inventory on the County 

supplies at tho Farm aad &aacb Sto~e? 

A No, ma'am. 

Q Were you ever asked to keep an inventory on 

it? 

A No, Dlll'am. 

Q were you ever asked to tell anybody when 

ouppll.oD tJere runa:Lq lotf? 

A No. · ·• county eommiasioaer did his 01m 

buyialg ta t_hca C$\illty. Ho. 

Q Could the County have gottea f.t cheaper if 

tboy had bouaht it directly tbatt through Fal"lll and Mach 

or 8¢bnl Sto'lrta? 

A 1 cueco they oould, beQause sometbaes they 

o...Scan4 a whole l~JQ.d of wire an4 whole load of po8ts. 

Yoo. 

q Did you evet: take &l\7 1101tey to the Judso at 

tho ceurthouse? 

A mo, •'••· 
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Gonzalez .......... 
Did he always pick it up there at the store? 

Yea, a•am. 

Did you ever take it to him at his home? 

No. 111& 'am. 

Eve~ tak• it to him at his ranch? 

No, ma'am. 

He always picked it up at the sto~e? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Has aaybody offered to gtve you anything if 

10 you would not testify~ 

II A No. ma'am. 

12 Q Doa't you think that's straJlge? 

13 A tea. 

14 Q Have tbe7 gotten sou new tractcn:s for the 

1s Couat7 dur1a1 tbe t:l.ae tbnt you've been eaployed thes-e? 

'16 

,17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

1 auess. Yes. 

There has been new equlpm:nat purchased? 

Yes. 

Would those be delivered directly to you at 

20 the County yard there? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Tbftiy vou.ld be at the Benavides yard. Yes. 

That's where you worked? 

Yes, ma'am. 

Dld they give you the invoices on that new 

equipmGat? · 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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A No, ma'am. I don• t have to do anything ·with 

that. 

Q But even when they just delivered them and 

needed to leave the invoice with somebody--

A No, ma'am. 

Q Wouldn't you be the only person there a good 

bit of the time? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

you? 

A 

Q 

No. All the workers are there. 

They'd be out on jobs a lot, weren't they? 

What? 

Weren't tbey out on joba a lot? 

No. They stay there most of the time. 

What do they do while they're there? 

Work. 

What? 

Doing some work, fixing t~cks, this and that. 

But you never had an invoice deli•ered to 

Never. 

Or you never saw an invoice for what the 

County had bought or anything? 

A No. ma'am. 

Chairman. 

MS. WEDDINGTON: Okay. Thank you, Mw. 

CHAliMAH HALE: Mr. Chavez. 

HICKMAN REPORT·ING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 

py MR, CHAVEZ: 

Q Along the lines that Ms. Weddington waa asking 

you, concerning this testifying, did you say earlier 

that about a year and a half ago or so that you had 

become suspicious and was starting to gather evidence 

or holding soae:: thiat&S''? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know more or less when it is that you 

started getting auspicious? 

A Well, that IRS cOUting in every day--
/ 

Q Well, did you start gathering these things 

before you ~ere ealled to Alice or after the IRS called 

you? 

A Well, the IRS called me a l.ot: before I was 

called to Alice.; Yes. 

Q Th1o is a little over a year and a half ago? 

A It was more than a year and a half aao. 

Q Did tbey tell you when they talked to you 

that if these things that you have told us were true 

that you and o. P. Carrillo and Ramiro Carrillo miaht 

end up in the pcutitentiary toaether? 

A Why ltlGt'l 

Q well, duriaa all these times that you knew 

that o. P. Carrillo was takiaa groceries, they were 

beica paid by co.uaty money thr:ouah you--
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Gonzalez 144 

A Through me? 

Q Didn't you say that you got these receipts 

and made out the order and sent it on up--

A I was instructed to do it by him and the other 

Carrillo. 

Q Do you think that if somebody--

A They were my bosses there, and if I didn't do 

it I would just, "Go home, boy." 

Q In other words, you don't think that you were 

doing anything wrong? 

A Probably I did, but I'm not to blame for it. 

Why should I take the rap for it? I didn*t take any for 

my on use. 

Q Are you telling us here that during all these 

yeara that all these things were aoill& on you did not 

know that you were participating in something that was 

illegal? 

A Yes, I did, but are you blaming me for doing 

it? 

Q I'm not blaming anybody, Mr. Gonzalez. I'm 

just asking you if during all these yonrs that all these 

things were taking plaee, did you or did you not know 

that you were doing something that waa illegal? 

A I waa doing it for them because they were 

telling me to do it. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Q But did you lmow that t 1ey were illegal? 

A Yes, I kaew they were illegal. Yes. 

Q And that you were participctiaa with them in 

thooo 111Ggal activities? 

A What do you mean that I was participating 

1f1th Ciaocl? I dida't get aaytbina for myself. I mean, 

I was 1astructed to do it. That'a what I was getting 

paid t•r. 

Q Well, :La effect what you have told us here is 

that o •. P. Carrillo was steal1aa moner--

A Did I say atealina money? 

Q Well• he waa getttq aroceriee that were being 

paid by CouatJ money, wasa•t be? 

A Probably. 

Q Do 1ou luum what vo 're doioa here today1 

.. A Yee. 

Q Do you know tbct if this comaittee votes ,.,hat 

they ~11 "Articles of Impeachment • '' end if the House 

of D.e':(:tresentatives says 1t approves these Al'ticlea and 

thoy'Jte oent to the Seuate end the Senate tries him that 

tbte can ruia tbie ann foro \POt-? Ho ··caD no vet- be a judae 

aaaiA Ol' cnythiq lUto tho t. 

A Did you bGuu: wlult I ce.ici that I was here doina 

tb1a f·or 1'111 pooplo? 

Q But do you understead tthQt this is a very 

HICK.MAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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serious situation? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Now, you wouldn't want anybody to face those 

kind of charges on just "maybe so" snd "I guess so" and 

things like this. 

A I'm saying they asked me to say "yes" or 1'no", 

so I '11 say "yes'' or ''no. !t 

Q All right. When I asked you a while ago that 

the JUdge was taking groceries, according to your testi­

mony, and these groceries were being paid by County money, 

you don't consider that stealing? 

A Yes, I do now. Now that you're explaining 

to me. Yes. 

Q I just want you to understand. 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Okay. You knew that he was stealing from the 

County? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q ADd you •ere helping him to steal from the 

County, weren't you? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

a ad 0Qys, 

Why was I helping him? 

well, you knew-

I was instructed to do that. 

Well, you think if Mr. Cart41es 

"Shoot Ch.Qvez over there." you 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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that you would be doing anything illegal because Canales 

told you to do it? 

A Tbat all depends. 

(Laughter.) 

Q Bow many times did you talk to the IRS agents? 

A Millions of times, I guess, by now. A lot of 

tiaes. 

Q And before bow many Grand JUries have you 

appeared? 

A (Tbe witnose raised one finger.) 

Q J\l$.t once? 

A (The witness nodded his head.) 

Q At the time that you had your conversations 

t71th the IRS agontc. did they tell you that anytb:Lna 

that you mi&ht t$11 thea might be held against you? 

A Well, they said if I said the truth, that 

aoth1a~ I asked them that. Yoo. I told tbem, "What 

would boppea if l 1ncriminato myself?" They sa1d 1 "Notbin~ 

wf.ll happen to you. just sayina the truth, nothing but 

the trutb. '1 Toot' o what they told me. , 

Q Did you appear with aa •ttorney at any of these 

iateJ:•1ewo or at any time you appc~al'e4 before the Graad 

A Why. abould I? 

Q Well, waotber you 41d or didn't. Did you or 
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didtt • t you? 

A I did not. 

Q Have they ever given you what is referred to as 

immunity? 

A They haven't said anything to me about immunity. 

Q Okay. And you've talked t~ the IRS agents for 

over a year and a half? 

A Yes. Maybe more. 

Q And you've given them all this information that 

you've given to us here tonight? 

A I don't have to give it. T~ey've got it written 

down already. They're just asking me: the questions. I 
I 

don't tell them nothing. They've alr•ady got everythins. 

They show it to me 

Q Did yoll confirm to them everything that you've 

told us here tonight? 

.A Yes, I had to, because they had there photo-

static copies of everything, so I couldn*t say "no.n 
. 

Q And although you've given them all this informa-

tion, you haven't been arrested or indicted or anything 

like that? 

A Not up to now. No. 

Q Now one thing that kind of just made me 

you ladieated that at one time some colnty trucks 

btluling grain that belonged to the Jud~e. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez 149 .· 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And that you called the DPS. 

A Yes, sir .. 

Q Now, had you already bee~.talking to the IRS 

agoDt9 at that time? 

A Yea, sir. 

Q Did you give the IRS agen*s that information? 

A No, sir. They didn't asklme that. 

Q Wby was it that you called the DPS? 
I 

Because I'm doing this for the good of the 

people, my people. I'm trying to do somethins, trying 

to do aometbina good over there. ~st like ho's doing, 

he's t:::)'iq to do, getting ell of us: out of johs. 

Q Tbct br:lngs up another int:eresting queat:l.oa 

then. Are you atviag this teatimon~ because of what 

ts happealaa 11ow, ao I read it, that! some people have 

beea reaoved fttom of.fice and ane people have lost Jobst 

I a tha:t why you 're teatifytna. beeause be's .... that? 

A Ma7he. 

Q Well, yea or not? 

A ·yes. 

Q All rS.aht, Now, as I understand it. there are 

diffGrtant polit!e$1 parties domt tbe~e~ 

A I tb1Dk you're we 11 aware ~t that. Yes. 

Q To whlcb politicfll party cto you beloq? 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVI.CE 
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Gonzalez ______ lS.O ...... .., 
( ~ ' 1 

I 

A I belong to the old partyi since I started I 

voting. I'm an old party member. 

Q All right. Now, pardon my ignorance, but which 

is tbe old party, Carrillo Party or the Parr Party? 

A I don't know. Tbe Carrillo used to be old 

party. I don't know what party they are rigbt now. 

1 think they: &l."e the old party too. 

Q 

A 

Q 

this area 

job? 

Do you belona to bio poli~ioal party? 

I think yes. 

But nevertheless, you sot carried off in 

where you lost your job or think you lost your 

A I think I'm gOilll to lose it. I dott.'t know. 

lOa I'm still world.ag. 

Q What you said a wbile ago was that one of the 

J.-ClUUJoas tbat you a.:rca teat1.fy1Dg is tnct be caused a lot 

of poople to be removed from offieeo and from jobs. 

A Not because of thct reaoon. You mentioned it 

oo I •aid uyes." There are a lot of other reasons. 

Q Now, what still has me puzzled is, why call 

tbG DPS? Were the t.rucks violatina 4\oy traf.fic law? 
• 

A Well. sometimes the DPS GtC(Jppetd ~-~~- for a lot 

of tld.nas tba t I don't: do nona, 4D4 I t.he, juo t stop 1I1Q. 

Q Well, tboy didn't otop yov.lor hauling otuff. 

tbet dicla't belong to you, 41d thoy?. 
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A Mo. t haven't done that. Not up to now, no, 
' 

Q Tbatts uhat I say, if a truck ts travelina 

down the hlahway at a no~l rate of speed, haulin& 

grain or aftytbln& elee--

A If I sea somethiq wrong I will. I ,gucuas 1 

wilt. tes • 

Q Let me finish my queQtion. You dn' t thtak 

tho DPS a.geot would stop a truck drtvtna don the 
\ 

htalmay et a a.ol'mal rate of opcuut. baultq arab • 

eaytlli.al else, just because you call tbea and aald• 

A I doa' t thtak tbc.y 11111 do tbQt because t:hGly 

dl.clll't do it. 

Q Did you e& 11 them becouee you 
' 

••t.a& thos& en:aoka to htlul hia 82raitfl 

A Wo11. 1D a m11• yes. 

Q 10 ttas 4otaa ooaethiq 11~12ac1. weoa' c bet 

A teo. ataht. 

Q Why dl.chl'a l'ft csll cho shsrtff'o offlco? 
. 

A heauae tho Sbocif..,._ Wca told thoa • I fiUOG£1 
' 

Q YGU d!d toll tbomf 

A VOo. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVI{::E 
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Gonzalez 

Q What did the Sheriff's of~ice do? 
i! 

2 'I I I 
'I II 

A Nothing. 
I 

j I Q Did you tell the County Juage? 

·1 A I don't know. I don't thi~k I did. 

5 Q Why not? 

6 A I didn't see him at the time. 

7 

8 

<) 

10 

11 

J 2 

13 followina day to tell him about this lr;hing? 

14 A I dldnrt bother to do it. ~o. 

15 Q You've never gone to your d'istrict attorney 

16 in your county to report these things.1, have you? 

I:' A No, sir. I will if I see them do it now 

18 because they're asking for sonte help. 

19 Q Yes. He's over here takinplnotes too. 

20 A,. Yes. They're asking for ao~e help, I think. 

21 Yes. 

22 MR. CHAVEZ: That's al~ .. ~ir. Cha:l'l'man. 

23 Tbank you. 

24 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Gonzalez, let the 

25 Cb4ir ask you one or two more questioDs. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Gotuullea -1-53 ......... -, 
! 

10 

II 

12 

Q Bow .ueb education have yOu bad? 

~ I am a htsb acbool graduate. 

Q Where? 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

Benavides High School. 

Benavides H1gb School. 

Are you tn4rried? 

Yes, sir. 

How many cbildrta? 

Tbfto. 

Dtd you aad your family, yOU-r wife ead tblre-G 

14 ehllch.·a, tbat'u fi•o ba you.- :family,, you'•• llwd all 

15 tbooo yoere .a ca lae~ of $250 a mO.tb? 

1.6 

17 

18 

A 

aothiag. 

t9 before oao G~:aad JU...,-. 
!.0 

22 

2.4 

25 

A 

Q 

4 

Q 

Q 

woe tbsU la Saa Aatoaie? 

too, ot.tt. 
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Gonzalez 

Grand Jury in Corpus Christi on the :income tax 
I 

----l$4:' ---·l 

indictment ?I 
' 

A I went to testify over there too, but r test!-

fied only on the late George B. Parr case. Yes. 

Q Mot on tbis inductment that •as returned 

against the Carrillos and Zertuche? 

A Up to now, no, but I'm pretty sure I am going 

to be. 

Q Let me read to you from this indictment, and 

ask you if this is the same type of transaction about 

which you've been testif;ying. And I~Jread from a photo• 

copy of the indictment: 

"Criminal Action No. 7S·C-~S tn tbe 

United States Dittrict Court, southern 

District ot Texas, Corpus Christ_i Division. 

Styled, United States of America: versus 

Ramiro D. Carrillo, o. P. Carrillo; and 

.Arturo R. Zertuche. Filed Marcbt 28th, 1975, 

with the Clerk of the Court." 

It alleges here that: 

r•o. P. Carrillo, Rata:lro D. Carrillo, 

Arturo R. Zertuehe, all restdeati of Duval 

County. 41d unlawfully, khowin&l~, and 

willfully conspire, confederatca, 1ccnnbine, 

aad agree together with each oth~r, and 

with other peraons to the Grand Jurors 
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Gonzalez 

unknown, to commit offeases aga~nst the 

Uhited States aad to defraud tau Utaited 
I 

Statoa; tbct is to so;. tboy conspired 

to slto, subscribe, oad fllo t?t~b lattonol 

Revenue Rarvf.ce falso aad frou~loat tacU .. -

v1dua1 aad partnership iaeoae tea returns 
I 

io violation of Title 26, Uaite~ Sta~ee 

Code, aacl co forth.u 

Tho dAttut 'betas 011t o.- abou~ .Jlutuery 1. 1967, 

a·oatta.aous1y tboreaftor up to ca~ 1ne1udt.aa May 31, 

Aad lt apoctftea ta. 4otm11 the foll011iq: 1974. 

''DuJ::I.DG tb<a OO\d'60 of tlao ~oaepi.-attJ 

tbG afo-..ogotd DGfoad&ata t10Uld ocuce oe..-ccil'.l 

oa1oo of tho patrttaOYoblp 0 o. P •. cad J&malro D. 

(JQZ11'i11o, doiag buaioecCJ cs Po~ aa<l ltlae!t 

suppl,, lrto1ud1au .,oloQ to ~vol~ c:oueey. 
I 

Duv~l Cotnaty CGQOonatt.a amc.l aoeloactia 

D!otwtoc, cad ., Boaov1<1oo Ia4oJ:1oacloat sohcol 

Dlaturlet. to bo 510de la tbo ~ of ao:waeotao 

aoaottol lt·osre. ~ 

A vos, oS:e •. 

Q "Durf.aa the ceuroo of tbG o~opt.rce, 

daG atOVQoatd DQfoa4e.aeo uwltt o4uso tltli4 

otllo.o ear a .-r:£• of tlaoa to 'bG 1topo~coct 
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zortucbo as cales of the Zertuche ceacnral 

Store aad aot to be reported 011 the ran 

and Raaob partaetrshlp returns .. '• 

Have you any kaOttle«tae chout that cs to hO'tf 

theJ reported tbe uuy from these vat:ious atorces? 

. A No_. td.r. 

q rsnuriq tbe course of the ct~ruapltaoy 

tbe afon84id Defeadaats would fal•ely 

c:l&ia to eaployees of tho tJaitod Statoa 

that Zel'tuchG General store W4& an indepea• 

doDt opo .. atia of DofoadGD.t zo:rtuohe; thilt 

it bad .t.ts Ot?a loeattoa apart from the ran 

and aaaeh opeJtetton. aad it was a sepaJrct.e 

operat101l fr•· Fana &ad teaaeb. n 

Do ;;ou ka$\1 aaytbt.aa abo"t thatt 

A Well, 1 bove hoard aomot.ld.q abCNt lt. Yoe. 

q· IQ that oor:root? 

A I th:Lrab lt la. teo. 

Q HO.a you .eeoa tblo book wblcb purpo•ta to be 

at leaat a po~tlJ.ll oot of mta•,•• of the 8ot¥t¥tdaa 

Iad.•poadeat School DUtrict? 

A :Uo 0 oi'#0 1 llovea't. 

Q If QQOO .:lt'G tS"M aad corrtttct copt•• of che 

•i•to&J ~ th1o ooiMetc tlult ot c aeatS.q oa O.tob~JJr lt, 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



3-55 ll 
Gonzalez _ _lii___l 

I 

I I 
! I 

1970, at a Board of Trustees meeting of the Benavides j 

I' 

·I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

s I 
I () i 

: I 
I 

JO 

II 

12 

1 Independent Sehqol District, in part. the following I 
took place, and I quote from these purported minutes: 

"At this time, M. K. Bercaw--" I may not 

be pr~nouneing that correctl~'M. x. Bercaw, 

Jr. read letter of resignation from o. P. 

carrill,o to the Board. Luis Elizando made 
I 

a motion to accept the resignation of o. P. 

Carrillo. The motion wa• seconded by Al 

Sbuaiman. The vote carried unanimously ... 

A 

Do you bave any knowledge of that? 

I've heard about it. Yes. 

o Q This refleets that that occurred o1t October 

14 19, 1970. Would that be about the date as far as you 

1s know? 

16 

i7 Q 

,.s Judgo? 

19 

.w 

ll 

22 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I guess. Yes. 

Do you know when o. P. Carrillo became District 

No, sir. I can't tell you exact. No, I can't 

Has he been judge for • number of years? 

Yes. 

Are you aware of the fact that the court ou 

23 which be sits was a newly created court at tbe time he 

24 took office 1 

25 No. 
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Tbat ho i.e the aly judge that bas ever I 
I I 
I I 
i I 

1' 

I 
II 
l! 

I 

I 

I 

Q 

oocup!od tile Mach a tho 229tb District Court? 

A I guoao bo'o the ftret oaG. Yoe. 

MR.. CA.IIAL!S: MY, ettotftea, I '• not &Qre, 

ka I thiGh thn mlsht hll" keo SC'JOabody appointed 

to tlaat boac b. but I •a aot fast1tal" with tbe er.u:in l 
i 

history ot it. t think Judge Carrillo ran an ••oatestedl 

eloetin oub&tqueat to an appoiu.tmeat. 

Ie tbot tne? 

A tes.. I think ·tbat thta aow-

MR. CANALES: Woo tbe1t& somfthody 4Pt•olated 

to that beaola fli"Ot? , I 

JU1'.)GE CAttatLLO: Juqo Luaa. 

t:m... CAliA Li!S: Judae Luaa wa • ttppototed 

cad ta e acmGI'.:il <ilectton Juda- eanl11o rea aa uaeoa· 

eoot¢od woo. 

CRAllMAtf HALl: What pear? 

Mit. CAI'AtltS': ! thtah '70. t'• aot suro. 

MR.. MIYCHBLL: conifiod asetn . ta eoveabcar 

of '74. rooereiftod. He took office tthett. 

C:BAI~·HALE: *· CGulea. tthero cltd 

t:llta hoeh of tai&iUtet~ eo• from? 

D. CABALES: Theae i'Ocorcts •• 'bl:'ouatae 

to GO hy ca attOftfl1 ~~- 1 thtah: he's eithe-r fNta 

;oa Disco or Fnar. T'bey' re xore• aoptec"' !hoy' I'O not 
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Gonzales 

certified originals. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I notice many of them 

have no signatures on them. 

l'fR. CANAI.ES: That's the way they were 

taken from the records of the school district. Photo• 

copied from there. 
i 

CHAIRMAN It4.LE: \~ere they presented to I 

you as photo-copie$ of the actual minutes of the Benavidet 

Independent School District? 

10 MR. CANALES: Yes. I would assum~ that 

11 if we subpoenaed the records of the school district it 

12 would be si~ilar to those. 

13 CHAIRMAN HALE: I noticed in thumbing 

14 through all these minutes that they reflect on practicall 

Is every •eeting here up through the early part of 1971, 

16 authorized disbursements to Zertuche General Store. 

17 And then in the latter part of 1971 and during '12, 

18 there doe an' t aeom. to be any such disbursements. How 

t9 do you account for that7 

MR. CANALES: I'm not sure that that is 

n the final rocot<d on the Zertuche General Store. Those 

22 are just tbe records that have been presented to me. 

23 But someti•e during the course of those minutes th•re 

24 JUdae o. P. Carrillo resigned from the school board. 

7.5 C~lRMAH HALE: This reflects that that 

HICKMAN Rf.:F'ORTING SERVICE 
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Gonzalez ·------·-··-xlo l 
·occurred on October 19, 1970, if these dates are cc,rrect.j 

MR. DONALDSON: What are the dates of 

the last payments to Zertuche there? 

CHAIAK4N I~LF.: At the October 19, 1970 

meeting, according to these minutes, there was a 

disbursement to Zertuche General Store of $210.57; a 

second one of $2.50; a third one of .$250; and a fourth 

one of $65.43. 

What is the date of the I MR. DONALDSON: 

last one? 
I 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Then in November 16, 1970, 1 

accordtt'lg to these purported minutes, there was a 

disbursement to Zertuche General Store for $1,259.69; 

a disbursement to Farm and Ranch Supply of $522. 

BY CHA IB.MAN HALE : 

Q Mr. Gonzalez, were you handling tbe money for 

those two operations in November; 1970? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q I noticed a disbursement on here to Farm and 

Ranch supply of $522 at that time. Did you make a b1111n 

at that time in the name of Farm and R.laneh supply? 

A I've got to see a. ticket or invoice to tell if 

I did or not. 

Q Did you ever receive any cb.ecks from Benavides 

Independent !ehool District eithe~ to Zertuche General 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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Store or to rarm Aad Ranch Suppl1 tbat were cot in 

response to a b111taa which you aent thom1 

A Probabl7 so. Yeo. 

s aot sure? 

I 
~~ . l 

A I don't re~ber. 

Q 

DOoQahor, 1970 aeetin;, ~nd that 0ppoars to be tbe 

loot dlebursotacat reflectod· hen to either of thcce 

10 ~ buoinoss entities. Ro. t~snro 1a ne u Auaust. 1971, 

11 to Fare aDd aaaeb Supply. 

12 After Mr. carri11o reatgraed. fra Cis& Joa.rd of 

13 Tnetoea of Beuvldes Iltdopeadent School Dlot~:iet • dtd 

z4 you oCtill't uklng b111tnga dtnct1,. to the• ta t:'be at1ae 

~s of rnra aad :aaach supply? 

16 A 

r's Q Aro you atill maktq btlltaae ia the ctrou1toua 

19 trouto tbrouah zertuoho. or do JOU uk• b1111.raas dii'Gctly 

zo ~ by Porm nad &ol'leh supply? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

q 

I 'a aot trOrking thoro ca)"ltH)re. 

Bow long sioc«t 7ou•v4 wevked there? 

Hay of ltlst yoor. 

Uero you ot111 b111!QS th~oush zortucbe ia 
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Gonzalez -------· --··--··H-2 . "l 

A No. sir • 

Q When did you quit billing through Zertuche? 

A About '71, I guess. The later part of '71, 

I think. 

MR.' CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if you will 

allow me to interrupt, I failed through an oversight, 

this is quite a web. It is my understanding also in 

talking with ~1r. Gonzalez, that -when this Zertuche sham 

terminated some of this business was then beiaa routed 

through a Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 

Agaia. they were brought to the Faran and Ranch Store­

What do they call them? An invoice registe~nd 

merchan<lise was then routed through Benavides I'l'&plemeat 

and Hardware Company. 

Q Who was the owner of Benavides Implem.eatt aad 

Hardware COil\pany? 

A Rodolfo couling. 

Q Is that tha same aa a. M. couling? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q · Was he the tax collector for Benavides 

IDdependon·t School District at one time? 

A He was. He was fired about a month as.o or two 

Q At the same time you a.ay have been fired? 

A Uh-buh. 

Q Mr. Gonzalez,. to the best of your knowledge, 
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Gonzalez 
~-'---=------···-"---···--------···--------·----··--- . - 163 

~~----

1 1 1 are you Uftder investigation fo'f: any c-riminal violationn 
, I 

I 

) : i I., 
3 I 

4 

l 
5 1 

I 

II 
:6 I' 

I 

!:1 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

l4 

I~ 

16 

17 

1-8 

19 

20 

21 

i2 

23 

2.4 

!:S 

ct thlo time by tllft)' asency of goveraao~tt? 

A Not that t know. No. 

Q Internal Revenue service or any otbor agenc7 

of tbe goverament? 

A No, sir. 

Q u. s. District Attorney•s Office hasn't talked 

to you about anything in the aature of a crtmiaal 

vf.oletioa? 

A No. sir. 

Q You testified before a Federal oraad Jury ia 

Soa Antoa1o on the general scme subject matt•~ you~ve 

to.ottff.ed about here tonight? 

A Yes, oir. 

Q You have discu•ae.d in so~ detaf.l tdtb tnvGte• 

tlaotore of ,tat:om&l Revenue SGrvice obout the ••• 

aeaorc 1 m tt:ert you' vo teceiftGd bfu:·e toatabt? 

A Yes, alr. 

Q . H.a9e you t~stifiod or a:l.ven an,. 1afcn:mcn:1cm 

to lll'IJ other aseccy of the goMrameat c.oaoeniq the 

aetce~~ about whleh you testified he:t'e toalsht? 

A I didn't set you~ queetlo•• 

Q Havo you t•lkerl to aay other Qt•aey of ao•en• 

CGat about the same aatterc you'•o tAlkod abeut be~o 

taataht otho~ cham the Federal Groad Jury ia San Aatoaio 
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Goa:zalez ·----------·-·····-··-··· 

Internal Revenue service? 

No, sir. 

Those are the only ones? 

Yes. sir. 

Q This is in effect the third interrogation of 

you then, about these matters? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Many of the ~hings about which you've testified 

here that involve Jud.ge o. P. CArrillo occurred prior 

to the time he beoame judge and while be was on the 

Board of Trustees of Bena'lides Independent School District? 

I A Yes, sir. 

Q And many of the events about which you've 

testified have occurred since be became District Judae? 

A Yea, slr. 

CHAIBMAN HALE: Are there further question 

of thia witness? 

Mr. Hendricks. 

BY Mit, Qlmll.CJ&S; 

Q H~. Gonsalez, who furnished these printed 

forms. tbie stateaeat, to you? 

A. Mr. Carxoillo. 

Q Whieb ~. Carrillo? 

A o. P. Carrillo. 

Q JUdge Carrillo? 
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A 

Q was be a judge when he fumish$d tbom to you? 

Q Do you know where be got itt 

A Yea.. A man from Laredo that sella office 

supplies, by the name of Salt.a4s 1 Avilardo Sa111las. I 

tbink 0 they Ol:'dered that mel'cbandt.se. I ll4UU:a, those 

office e.upplles.. 

Q Ai'G you Gpeald.ag of tho yellow fom b.ere, 

the statement, o~ are you also iDcluding-

A EverythiDg. Invoiee forms a.Ad-

Q TbG custoauars' ordor nuaber is p't'lru:a4 here 

la Austia, at the Steck C011pau.y. 

A Well~ but theeo tulleamea could bca out of 

Q waa tbel'e ever a reor:4er o.f these? 

A Not oa that ZG:rtuobe. Ho. They ordered a 

whole bou, big box. I thizdt tbel'e ate stilt some. 

Q You uvtu:- dld have to replace tbera? 

Q 11ot1• you. Mat:.l.eaed that JOU peraoully bad 

ooat cbee.ks to tbe Firat ito. to Baak ln Allee. 

A 1 did oaco or twice. Yoc. Yes, I did. 

Q Aad. that waa for tlao pa.ymel\t Oil Q car 

bel~lq to A.rt:ur:o zercuobo? 
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A Yes 1 sir. 

Q \i:rbo et.aned these choclte? 

A Arturo zertuehe. 

Q The checks wore udG out to him, or bo aiaaod 

tbe checks and tbey were on hio beak account? 

A They were signed by bi•. 

Q They were on his bank aceount thea? 

A 

Q 

... cheat 

A Bo. ao tol.&t rae to oead that payuat. the 

Ju.ctae told me co eead that ,ayacua.t. 

Q Tho check wae oa zer~t.~ebet 

A Yeo, air. 

Q Tho Pen 4ad Rtlllcll seoce dlda • :c bmlilllla hea.Yy 

equlpaeat • tract do • or e.;....rtbAq of that Ml\1110? 

A well, t th1Dk that JI.Qfdl."o cer.-lllo O'tffted e...a •. 

Yos • I thlnk ho 1 
G 30t seu~& • 

Q Dld you .gye)l sell tb~ Couaty tnetns o'" 

aaytbiDI of Chat aetur:e tbl'OU&h. the lara aad bach 

scent 

A Mo 0 oil:, 

Q BCMJ cble proclact ))oat '~t 1s ttbosro you 

satbo&- all C:bG OCitalpatOat. What pl'ootaust WOO lbotl:t 

A TbtrOo. 
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Q ADd that's whose preatnct? 

A Roa1~o corrillo. 

Mil. HENDJUCICS: That's 411. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: AI'ISI thc:aro fus-tbor queatf..oas 

' MJ:o. 'MSloaey has a question. 

BY HR. MALONEY: 

Q Mr. Gonsalez, who is :0. c. Chappa? 

A Mr. carr111o's fathe~. 

Q At the time that Mr. carrillo wos oa the school 

board, MI-. Clu:lppa trrao prestcterat of the school be~ttrd? 

A t think so. Yeo. 

Q How about LU1t Eli.aeado? 

A Be was a board member too. 

Q Is he &117 relati.Oil to o. P. Carrillo? 

A Ho, sir .. 

Q ROberto E1taaado? 

A mo. oir. 

Q DurlG& tb\t time ,_ worltod fo~ the ran ••• 

Ranola Sto~e, did Judge o. 1. C.l'ltillo aad ld.a b~otbcr 

haw that e••• a 11 durtaa cha.t 1title? 

A Yeas. air. 

Q Even dur:Laa thea rd.ao thee o. r. Cstrrillo was 

judge? 
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Gonzalez 

A Yes • sir. 

MR. MALONEY: Tllat•a ell tbat I bave­

CHAIIMAM HALE: Mr. Habero • 

Jl )(It, 1'!!\BERS; 

Q Do you know anything Qbout tha BCUlCYi.des C•daJr 

Post? 

A Yes. 

A Well. that Cedar Post baa ebQqed ao 118Dy 

aamea.. It used to be tbe Duvt.al Ced&Y Post •ad thea 

Bellnv'ldee Cod~r Poet. 

Q WtUl tttis aaother aattt)' 11ko the zertuo&et 

A Probably so. Yos. 

Q l•t you doa' t know maythf..q abtNt it? You 

d14a't wo1:k out tb<)rca? 

Q Vho dld? De rou ha~? 
A Woll, at flret tbot Duval cedar Ya~d belonaad 

co o•oo~ carrillo. 

it? 

Q Then who sot it l!lflutt? 

A lemtro ccrrillo. 

Q Doe• ..rut~ae C01:'1:l11o ba11o caythtq to do eS.th 

A I ttoa•t thillk ao. 

Q wtao to tbo ''aoaovtctco !t:!plollOat AIUt &arit1a1ro 
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A T'bat is a store. 

Q Who owns tt? 

A Rodolfo Couling. 

Q Who is be? 

A The owoe~ of tbe store. 

Q Is hG eny ~tatioa to the carrilloa? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: You say Couliq. 

CHAlBMAN IIALE t R. M. Coul1ng. I~t that 

tho oalllG aentlem.aa? 

A Ro M. Cou11ns. (tbe witQess nodded.) 
\ 

BJ 0. H.ABlUlf: 

Q Who t1as the Couaty Attorne1 in 1970? no you 

A Tb• couaty Attorney f.a 1970? Jlattd$11 ICntabt o. 

county Attomoy? 

Q Ye*• sir. 

A '10? I'a not su~. R!oor4o4 GQroio 1 1970. 

San Dioao. Io be the County AttorDOJ? I tblah atc4rdo 

Oa&-ela. 

Q Judae C•~:rillt;J. was be ever county AttoJ:O.ey? 

A Yes. 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



4-68 

2 

3 

4 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Q 

A 

Q 

Gonzalez 
i ! ; 

When.was he County Attorney? 

I don't know. t c~n't remember. 

was be County Attorney before he 111ent on the 

school board? 

A I think he was county Attorney at the same t:l.me 

Q He was on the school board and county Attorney 

Gt the same time? 

A I think he was. 

MR. NABERS: That's all t have. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further question ? 

MR. Kaster. 

BY Mit. KASTER: 

Q In your testimony about calling the 

14 Patrol about the guy hauling the grain in the 

15 exempt license plates, about when was that? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

It was Last year, in the grain season. 

Did this come abou~ 

JUne, JUly, somewhere in there. August. 

And you quit in May? 

I quit in May. 

Was this the deal that you thought maybe you 

:22 could get e,ea with them by havins the Highway Patrol 

:23 p.f.ck up one of their trucks? 

24 A No. no. no. No, I didn•t have to do nothing. 

2s Rot that I wanted revenge with them or sometbins. Is tba 
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Gonzalez 171 

11hat you mean? 

Q Yes. 

A Mo. It was something that was wrong and I--

Q Why did you quit working at the store? 

A Well, I already told you ~hat the IRS were 

after me. 

Q Oh, they were already investigating, and you 

thought you'd better just leave while the leaving was 

aood. then did you go to work for this Welfare at that 

time? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Still working for the County? 

A I think so. Yes. I don't know. 

Q You were still getting checks from the County 

Judge? 

A I got one last month. 

Q No. I'm talking about from May when you quit 

working at the store. Did you tell the county Commission~ 

er you don't want to work at the store anymore because 

the Internal Revenue is getting too hot and you 1 d like 

to go somewhere else? 

A Well, not that, but I just didn't want to do 

any more wrong doings. 

Q well, you didn't go tell him, "Look. I don't 

want to do any more wrongdoings. I want to work for you 

HICKMAN RE~PORTING SERVICE 
AUSTIN, TEXAS 



172 

A No, l 4tda't tell him aaytbtna. 

Q Whe did you talk to to move? 

A I ~GDt to tbe County 3Ud&ee 

Q Aad who u.s that? 

A Mr. Archer Parr. 

Q Ob. Aacl he said • 110k47 • you can movo somewhere 

else"? 

A ·Well, I acked him if he could locate • some• 

t1l.ore else. tbet 1 would eppre~d.cte it, and be said• 

"We 11 ~ what ld.a.d of work wo:r:o you do£ag1 H I told hill 

wbat t did. Be s~14, just like 1 ••td whil• cao. 

Q You wen decliq with M~. Parr iastead .of 

COt~lllo wben you moved? 

A Yeo. 

q tou di.cla't aek Mr. Corr111o if JOU could 110ve. 

You tUJlted Mr. fcrr ia 701.1 could move. 

A to •. Be t1a o tho couaty JudtJo • cad I tb1ak. 

"I'll 10 to him." 

Q Wo.s tl'O CGr1'11lo t.h&t was the coaattud.oaer u.S·. 

ott J'OU baoauao 1• UGJ!O Ol\aaaialo or 4o you b0t1? 

4 BeiGe thot 1 ttae x-o1oect aacl bo1:n ttt.th him, 

I Jlrooe bia o. lot of t181Go, oacl ho J•ot tunod cbe fceo 

ea aoo asa11 I o•a elwo4 of nroot.:tao b1o so 1 juot otoppcd 

Ot:OOfd.cg hltl. X'" otcill Mo fsr!oad cad evtut')'tb:llls; juet 
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aolmg on. Wid. let I voa the ro i.a t'bo court • you know, 

I mot him, aad I 41da't eapeot for b1m to talk to me. 

ue saf.d. *'Cleof~a • your youq soa wcuat to so •• tel' 

otd.ua tttth my yOtJJaS GOa?" The)''Ye ft'i.itttd•• the same 

ose, aafl the7 ao to achool toseth•~'• He said, "l.et bta 

ao tiatcn: ah11q tJttb t~s aad x•tt catte aooe& c4U!'e of bia. H 

I to14 llt.m. "Well. let ~" I vas surprised. I coulda • 

oey OQ)'tht.q. 10-11 hmM7. 1 uoate4 to J•P a him and aeG 

1f l o:lo ftJ:Od, lmt aGSa&thiq. bit • aad 1 set a 11 
.. 

aow•s • betaa tboc h& ctalkoc.t 10 me ead betas so maay 

,.OOI;llo tbore. 1 told him, "wol1, u thlak about lt.'' 

&o oolcl, 'ttt'oll. if you aacJ youl' !life waat to so you caa 

JJO oith uo- to&. n l told -ita, ''Woll. let • tbla'k obout 

ic omd lot you !taw." 'fMt 1 s td.ao(ll I ctult wontaa fo~t 

hit1. Tbot • s tbo Rirot Clitl$ ho talhG.S., obout o 1oor aao. 

AbQue t1 yoer. 

Mit. tt4fill: otuly. t'tulak you. 

CQUMAII BA.Lit Aay .tarthor ~stloao? 

Me. fhoopooa 'has a quattoa. 

·II. S. 'fBCn4Ji•Sqm t 

Q Mr. Coaaelea. J'OU atatod eowlios- thee: oectud.oa-

e117 7n t7CDU14 caoh_chocko for potty cash? 
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(, 

A 

Q 

they? 

A 

Q 

A 

(_) 

l!1ell, say like petty cash. Yes. 

114----l 
I 
I 
I 
I 

How ~ch we~e the checks? Usually how much 

About a thousand. 

A thousand dollars for petty cash? 

Yes. 11aybe 1.\\ore. 

Wa.t~> this money kept by you in the store to 

H buy just littla incidental tbtnas that you uy need? 

1) It was put there in the aafe. Yes. They've 

10 sot a b1a safe there. 

II Q Did the Jud&e ever take any of tbe uaoa.ey'l 

12 A No, ma'aa. Never. 

13 MS. THOMPSON: That• s all I have. 

CUAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez. 

l'i 11 MR. q~VE~.: I 

16 Q Mr. Gonsale~, since this thing ataJtted, ba~11 

1-: you ta auy way ever been tbl'e&cened by the ..Tudae or hie 

1s fn.·other or anybody? 

19 

20 Q 

A 

Q 

A 

21 

22 

CIAliMAN HALE 1 AD1 question#. 

Mr. Goaa01a•• let the Chair ask you eu or tuTO 
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~ more questions about these minutes. I 
i I 
I 

') 
- I BY CHAIRMAN HALE : 

3 Q I notice, if these are correct copies of the 
I 

4 j minutes of the Benavides Independent School District, 

s j I asked you a moment ago about the October 19, 1970, 

6 meeting where the minutes reflect that Judge Carrillo 

7 resigned as a member of the board. The minutes of that 1 

a same meeting reflect that D. c. Chappa also tendered a 

'9 letter of ~esignation at that time as a member of the 

10 board. Were you aware of that? 

11 A Yes, sir. 

12 Q The minutes also reflect the following: 

"Luis Elizando made a motion to appoint 

14 Rojelio Guajardo, Jr. in place of Q. P. 

15 Carrillo as a board member for Benavides 

16 Independent School District." 

17 A That's right. Yes, sir. 

IR Q Is that correct? 

19 A That is his nephe.w.; 

20 Q I was going to ask you, who is Rojelio Guajardo, 

21 Jr.? 

A 

Q 23 So his nephew replaced him as a member of the 

21 _board when he resigned? 

A Yes, sir. _j 
li______.;.,. ___ _ 
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minutes further reflect then that: 

"Mr. Luis Elizando also made a motion 

to appoint D. c. Chappa as a board member 

-1 of the Benavides Independent School District." 

176 

) Why would Mr. Chappa have resigned and then be 

6 reappointed at the same meeting, if you know? 

A No, sir. 

H Q And then the minutes further reflect then 

9 that the board was reorganized and Mr. Chappa was elected 

IO president, which position he had held at the start of 

II the meeting. 

12 A That's right. 

13 Q How do you explain that transaction? 

14 A Well, they did it. I don't think they wanted 

15 anybody else to go in there so they did it. 

16 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you have 

17 anything further you want now with respect to this 

18 witness' testimony? 

19 MR. CANALES: You might inquire with 

20 the witness' relationship that there is between the 

il 

22 

23 

2'\ 

Judge and Luis Elizando, if there is one. I'm not sure. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: I believe he was aked 

that question. 

BY CHAIRMAN HALE: 

Q Is there any relationship between Luis Elizando 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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12 
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l4 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

21 

) < 

Gonzalez 

and Judge Carrillo? 

A No. 

Q Is there any business relationship between 

them? 

A Business? 

Q Yes. 

A Not that I know. 

Q As far as you know they're not associated 

in a partnership or some business somewhere? 

A Not that I know, sir. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, apparently 

the Committee has finished with Mr. Gonzalez. If you 

would care to add anything further at this time with 

respect to his testimony. 

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, and Members 

of the Committee, as far as Mr. Gonzalez' S;r.i~estimony 

is concerned, the records that you have presently in 

your, hands, as far as the checks that were drawn and 

payable to these different Benavides Cedar Post and 

Zertuche Store and what-not, I have certified copies 

from the authority that has possession of them in my 

office, and should the Committee want, I am willing to 

offer them. 

As far as the true and correct copies of those 

instruments there, I would assume they are true, but if 
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1.78 Gonzalez ---··--· ·-·-···- ······--·--···-··· -···-·l 

there is any question I would think that the Committee I 
might then subpoena those records. I believe that they \ 

are true and correct, at least in my opinion, and I 

don't think the party who brought them to me would have 

misled me intentionally. I think they should be Xerox 

copies. 

I don't know anything else I can add to Mr . 

Gonzalez's testimony other than the fact that it appeared 

to me to indicate some possible malfeasance on the part 

of the District Judge, and is one of my primary reasons 

for bringing this action. Ultimately the weight will 

lie on the Committee to determine what the facts are 

and if the facts bear referral to the Senate for trial. 

It is, according to my watch, a quarter 'til 

twelve. I was informed by the Chair that the Committee 

would like to adjourn at twelve. I don't know whether 

it would be fair to the Committee to begin testimony of 

another witness who would by no means complete his 

testimony in fifteen or ten minutes. If the Chair 

desires I'll be more than happy to call my next witness. 

I'll put it to you. 

excused.) 

(The witness, Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez, was 
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canale~, we hnd a 

meeting of the Committee last night for the purpose of 

planning the method of conducting these meetings, and 

the Colllll\ittec voted unanimously at that time because of 

the heavy work schedule on the Floor of the House, as 

you are well aware, "t-7e're now starting sessions at nine 

o'clock in the morning and going until about seven or 

seven .... thirty in the evening; that we would try to 

terminate each one of these hearings no later than 

midnight. For that reason. the Chair feels-subject to 

the will of the CGmmitte~hat we should not start 

another witness tonight. 

MR. HENDRICKS: I so move. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Is there any dissent 

fr01n that? 

MR. MALONEY: I totally agree that we 

should not start a witness, but I think it might be 

helpful to the Committee if Mr. Canales could give us 

a short briefing on llhat his next witness will testify 

to. 

CHAIRMAN HALE : Thank you, Mr. Maloney. 

Before you do that, Mr. Canales; let me ask 

you one question that I asked Mr. Gonzalez a moment ago, 

about the minutes of this meeting on October 1.9. 

Do you have any explanation as to why Mr. Cbappa 
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l i l 
! l would tender his resignation and then be 1~eappoirlted, 

2 : : 
1: 

·I 

l 
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. ' . I 

i 
i 

6 ' 

I 
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l 
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I' 
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I l 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

.23 

24 

25 

then have been r~elected then as president? 

MR. G>.NALES: Mr. Chairu1~Ul, I havca no 

personal knowledge of any of these transactions •at all. 

I am trying to present in an orderly fashion what is 

almost impossible to do •. This web of interconnect:tng 

activities, and I hope that I can present a picture that: 

is recogniz~ble to the Committee. It is a very compli- I 
' i 

cated matter. It too~ me quite a while to under•tend I 

bow the County was repurchasing its own materia 1. And I 
consequently I think that the Committee £:.:-om my summation 

or summary of what was happening might be misled by 

believing that I am personally fautiliar with it. !. am 

not familiar with it. 1 am only relating, or I was 

trying to summarize what Mr. Gonzalez was going to 

put forth to the Committee so that you could better 

understand and ask more definite and precise questions 

in the particular areas in which he is familiar. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: Who do you anticipate 

calling as your next witness •. Mr. canales? 

MR. CANALES: I have at least two or 

three' more witnesses, Mr. Chairman. I have a Mr • 

Rodolfo Coulina. who is the proprietor, I think it's a 

sole proprietorship, of the Benavides Implement and 

Hardva~a Coapany. I don't know vbat Mr. Couling is 

~-----J. HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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going to testify to. He is here present with his attor- ! 

ney, and I have not conferred with him because I did not 

want to violate any confidence or lead him into som~thing 

that he might not want to get into. Any testimony that 

he gives will be on his par~ voluntarily offered. and I 

have no idea what it's going to be. 

His attorney, I think will be with him tomorrow. 

H If I knew what he was going to testify to I could give 

~) you an idea of what time-

10 CHAIRMAN HALE: Is he here this evening? 

II MR. CANALES: Yes. 

12 CHAIRMANHALE: Mr. Couling, w:f.llyou be 

u here tomorrow night? 

14 MR. CANALES: Mr. Couling is un.der sub-

15 poena. He is one of those we subpoenaed. 
I 

16 We also have a Mr. F. H. Canales, who. I think,_ 

1:- is a member of the Water Board in Duval County. I think 

1a a Mr. Ken Bercaw will be testifying al,so, and possibly 

19 Mr. Joe Guerra. I believe he is from Starr County, 

zo •n attorney from Starr county. Those are all that come 

21 to mind at this moment. 

22 MR. DONALDSON: Mr. Canales, in reference 

23 to the testimony that's been presented tonight concerning 

i4 Zertuche, and what as you outlined in your summary, before 

25 the testimony started, as being a subterfuge to allow 
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purchase of m.J.terial and equipment and that ki.nd of [ 
I 
! 

thing by polf..tical subdivisions from a contpany ouned by--! 

at least as yeu have stated that .Judge Carrillo was a i 
partner in that business--do you anticipate that yott 1 re 

going-- Is there going to be further test:f.mony in regard 

to this particular aspect? 

MR. CANALES: In respect to the Zertuche 

General Store and the Farm and Ranch Supply? I don't 

suspect there will be any more because as Mr. Gonzalez 

testified, he was the only employee of this particular 

business. I. would suspect ·that anybody else who would 

direct himself to it in any type of testimony would be 

speaking just as a matter of hearsay and gossip, and 

would have no personal knowledge o:f the facts as he 

would try to pre~ent them. He's the only one that I 

know that could possibly have known of the goings-on 

there except for possibly the two owners. 

MR. DONALDSON: one other question th.en. 

I believe also that you had outlined to us that you 

were going to present probably two or three different 

areas; one being a possible violation of penal statutes, 

which I assume that the testimony here tonight was 

related to that general category. Will you have others? 

MR. CANALES: This does relate to that 

particular category. I don't know what the new terminolog 

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE 
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is, and I'm not familiar with the old terminology of \ 

the old penal code or new penal code as to what the 

categories i( there are any criminal offenses involved 

and what categories they would tak&. 

This would be for the Committee or Committee's 

counsel to determine if there are any char~es that fall 

within the criminal statutes. Obviously th,e impeachment 
I 

I 

I 

proceeding is not limited to criminal charges. It can 

deal with official misconduct of any type •. This is not 

a criminal trial by any stretch of the imagination. 

MR. DONALDSON: I understand that. 

MR. CANALES: It's a determi~ation of tbe 

man's qualifications to sit on a bench of justice. 
I 

I 

MR. DONALDSON: So the rest of your testi· 

mon~ then is going to be related to those other possible 

categories. official misconduct and those kind of things? 

MR. CANALES: The other test~mony, as I 
I 

said about Mr. Rodolfo Couling, I don*t know what he's 
I 

' 

soins to testify to. I wQuld suspect that it bao to do 

with his Benavides Hardware and Implement, which was the 

store which picked up the sham of the Zertuche when the 

Zertuche Store was no longer beiog used as t,he subterfuge 

for sales to the County. What the man will ,testify to 

is anyboc:ly's guess. What his attomey will allow him to 

testify to, I don't know. 
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The other testimocy of Mr. Joe Guerr•• Mr. I 

.j 

I i I . 
i . 

Bercaw, and Mr. caaalas will decl more prec1eely with 

the political questions that are goins on don tber·e, 

and we sec ~o often in the ne~spapers of ~·ovals here, 

I 

I 
I 
I 

5 appointments there, and the posalble conflicts of inteJrestj, 
I 
I 

I 

et cetara, et cetera. It will deal more 'td.tb official 

misconduct in o£fic4t and po1it1oa1 oppression than with 
' 

actual misappropriation of funds, as we have coatidere<J 

tonight. It's 4 completely differ~nt fiel~. 

10 CHAIRMAN HAL!: Any other com11ents 1 

II 1:11.. CHAV!.Z: I understand t:hore are some 

12 other pGople in the audience that app4rently t.ll4y want to 

H voluntarily testify in tbis matter. I don't know whether 

1,1 1 t is for either side ox· for what purpo$e. I am wonder• 

J'i lq if tho Chair eould exploia. to tb.em when they mtgbt 

1r. be ca11ad or whether they should cOII(a back or should we 

•~ ootify tbem. 

If' CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, Certainly tbe Comlftltte 

19 would weloOJile testimony from aayone wbo bas Ally laforma• 

20 tioa betn:iq 011 the tuhject ma.ttet: of our inqUll'}'. .As I 

21 atatod ia the t.tpeaing otateant that the chair mad& bore 
·I i 

22 tbie eventag. the Chair does not eee the t'Ol.e of tb:ls 

B Coraalttcao as that of prosecutoY. we•.-. aot. here to 

2·1 prooecute anybody. We • re bore seek1ag evS.4eace and 

2'i facts, cad anyone tbllt hae any iafottmQti.oo bcu•rinc oa 
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this inquiry we would welcome your testimony. 

l85-·-l 
I 

If you'll make yourself known to thea Cha:tr 

or just be here at one of our a.oetings. we plan tc) 

meet every night this week as necessary to bear all the 

evidence that is to be presented in this matter. 

MR. CANALES: 

I 

Mr. Chairman, I believe it 
'I 

might be useful to those members who are here to explain 

to them the general procedure of a Commit~ee. which would 
' 

be to present the pros, and then all of those who are 

speaking aga!nt~t it, that is the method t:qat this Commit· 

tee ,111 i>e uaing. 

CHAIRMAN HALE: That will be the method 

that the Committee will use. Mr. Canales will present 

all the witnesses and evidence that he has at his 

C0111114a.d bearlag on this matter, as we have, started on 

here thle evening. Then if there are any others who 

baV"e testimony that they would like to pre'sent • that 

they think bears on this from the standpoibt of sub• 

stcatiating charges of misconduct against Judge Carrillo, 

we'd be alad to hear those and welcome those. 

Then at that time the Chair will recognize 

Ju4ae carrlllo, i·f be cares to testify; or' any witnesses 

thAt he cares to present, or any evid.ence·J:hat be cares 

to present in connection with any of the charges that 

wero made against him. 
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14 
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16 
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I 
I Mit. CANALES: 

aaofleot 0 Mr .. Chain.\Oa. that the d!OUQt of wita.•••••s the·t I 
I 
l 
I 

I have bore 1o not aeceasa.rily to reflect: tbe amourtt of 
! 

m.taoeaoo ot my COIIli!WlDd. It • s jutlt thct if I pr41tUm.tecl \ 

ove17 t1l.aaose at ay commud " would have t~epetitio·ua \ 

I teectooar f2:oa nov--·woll, howe,er long it takes to presea, 

lt would I 
be rapetit;tous in ztature • ead it\ an effort to be expedi• 

cmua, I'm t&"ylq to pr-oGent matters Just once by 111&t&le 

tri.taeutse'lc. · If the CO.it~ee would prefer to have severi!il 

t7itrtesses &o _.evtew the eame mattet--in th:ls part:tc~otlar 

ioatoaco 1 don"'t tbink the~e are any more •but tb• oraes 

dt.u~~l!Da wit'b offtolA1 miscoa4uet artd. political oppressiou, 

I could brtna any number, if that's what th~ Committee 

would 11ke. 

' 

,; tb1ak it •a fotr th& Committee to doteftl1ne bow uny 

, 8 t1ltaosaos you presGnt. I tld.nk you're goiD~ tto h4Ve to 

t9 ~ipt tllat carefully yours:e lf. 

20 !At m say thia 0 to tbca axtGUlt that the Chair 

u la aot ovol"hled by tbe Comalttoe, t•ra aolaa to attempt 

z.2 to bo¥e t'bQ Ca:;aaittee bear eve~ 11itnesca that you 111ntt 

z3 to preaoat. \Te t1aat to aove thie emtter expedltlovaly; 

24 I doa't vast to prolona 1t vaneeesaa~i1y. At the same 

.~ ~ 1 time • ue 'n aot a•d.o" to ruob this tblaa eo · Judameat 

u...__ ______ j 
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rr:ttbout beartlla the full. £acts, •o you ~e govn·n:~-·-··. 
I: 
• 1 accordingly ia how m&uty witn~tsea you. want ·to pre se:mt 
i i 

1 i here • 

. j 

') 

8 

~ II 
10 

J l 

1.! 

14 

MR. CANALES: Thank you, Mr~ Chnir110n. 

Do you want another witneos? 

CHAIRMAN HALE: No. not toniabt. Holt: 

toni;ht. 

Meaberfl of tbe CODBd.ttee .11 before :we termiru.ate 

tbis avaataa. it's been sua&ested to the Cbair by one 

of the ••born of tb<t COintitf.tte• that it might be an 

exeoll&at idea for ebe Committee members th••••l~es to 

remota hGre for jv.ot a raoment ttfcer we so:r:~ of a 110¥ thti 

mudicaace to clear out to soz:at of df.seuss tll:ls aatte:r 

I'i rema.lll f.or jua.t a. aomeat. 

16 Tbe Ccmlttee v111 staad at ease for just .a · 

t7 aomoae to allow OU'I' suosto to le~¥4. 

1s Let tho Chsir oa behalf of the C0181ttoo tbs.ak 

19 oveq oas of rou wltbia the e.uclioDeo tontaht. You'•o 

20 bee.a o VOl')' pet tent and attoatlvo ouclteaco •· There bOo 

21 b&ea t1 mleimus ot 4iaturb.eace. We w:tll w~tlcao you baoh 

z:z s:o any ful"thel' heo.rlaa• ef thlo Coa.lttee. : 
' 

23 (Uhoroupon, tbo boorins oao ~ecee•••• to re-

24 eonvono ot 7:30.) 

)< 
.:.. .. • 
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